
 

Agenda compiled by: 
Governance Services 
Civic Hall 
LEEDS LS1 1UR 
 

Mike Earle 
224 3209 
 
 
 

Scrutiny Support Manager: 
Peter Marrington 
Tel: 3951151 

  Produced on Recycled Paper 

 
A 

 

 

 

SCRUTINY BOARD (CENTRAL AND CORPORATE) 
 

 
Meeting to be held in Civic Hall, Leeds on 
Monday, 5th January, 2009 at 10.00 am 

 
(A pre-meeting will take place for ALL Members of the Board at 9.30 a.m.) 

 
MEMBERSHIP 

 
Councillors 

 
M Dobson (Chair) - Garforth and Swillington 

B Atha - Kirkstall 

J Bale - Guiseley and Rawdon 

S Bentley - Weetwood 

B Chastney - Weetwood 

P Davey - City and Hunslet 

J Dowson - Chapel Allerton 

P Ewens - Hyde Park and Woodhouse 

M Hamilton - Headingley 

V Kendall - Roundhay 

A Lowe - Armley 

B Selby - Killingbeck and Seacroft 

P Wadsworth - Roundhay 

 
 

Public Document Pack



 

B 

A G E N D A 
 
 

Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

1   
 

  APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION 
OF DOCUMENTS 
 
To consider any appeals in accordance with 
Procedure Rule 25* of the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules (in the event of an Appeal the 
press and public will be excluded). 
 
(* In accordance with Procedure Rule 25, notice of 
an appeal must be received in writing by the Chief 
Democratic Services Officer at least 24 hours 
before the meeting).  
 

 

2   
 

  EXEMPT INFORMATION - POSSIBLE 
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 
1 To highlight reports or appendices which 

officers have identified as containing exempt 
information, and where officers consider that 
the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information, for the reasons 
outlined in the report. 

 
2 To consider whether or not to accept the 

officers recommendation in respect of the 
above information. 

 
3 If so, to formally pass the following 

resolution:- 
 
 RESOLVED – That the press and public be 

excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following parts of the 
agenda designated as containing exempt 
information on the grounds that it is likely, in 
view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of the proceedings, 
that if members of the press and public were 
present there would be disclosure to them of 
exempt information, as follows:- 

 
 No exempt items or information have 

been identified on this agenda. 
 

 



 

 
C 

Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

3   
 

  LATE ITEMS 
 
To identify items which have been admitted to the 
agenda by the Chair for consideration. 
 
(The special circumstances shall be specified in 
the minutes.) 
 

 

4   
 

  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
To declare any personal / prejudicial interests for 
the purpose of Section 81 (3) of the Local 
Government Act 2000 and paragraphs 8 to 12 of 
the Members Code of Conduct. 
 

 

5   
 

  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
To receive any apologies for absence. 
 

 

6   
 

  MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 
 
To receive and approve the minutes of the 
previous meeting held on 1st December 2008. 
 

1 - 6 

7   
 

  BUDGET STRATEGY 2009/10 
 
To consider a report of the Director of Resources 
on the Budget Strategy 2009/10. 
 

7 - 14 

8   
 

  COUNCIL BUSINESS PLAN PERFORMANCE 
REPORT FOR QUARTER 2 2008/09 
 
To consider a report of the Head of Policy, 
Performance and Improvement on the Council 
Business Plan Performance Report for Quarter 2 
2008/9. 
 

15 - 
42 

9   
 

  WORK PROGRAMME, EXECUTIVE BOARD 
MINUTES AND FORWARD PLAN OF KEY 
DECISIONS 
 
To consider a report of the Head of Scrutiny and 
Member Development on the Board’s Work 
Programme, Executive Board Minutes and 
Forward Plan of Key Decisions. 
 

43 - 
62 



 

 
D 

Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

10   
 

  DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING 
 
Tuesday 6th January 2009 at 2.00pm (Pre meeting 
for Board Members at 1.30pm) 
 

 

 



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Monday, 5

th
 January 2009. 

SCRUTINY BOARD (CENTRAL AND CORPORATE) 
 

MONDAY, 1ST DECEMBER, 2008 
 

PRESENT: 
 

Councillor M Dobson in the Chair 

 Councillors B Atha, J Bale, S Bentley, 
B Chastney, J Dowson, P Ewens, 
M Hamilton, V Kendall, A Lowe, B Selby 
and P Wadsworth 

 
 
 

48 Chair's Opening Remarks  
 

The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting, especially the numerous 
students from Trinity College who were observing the meeting. 
 

49 Declarations of Interest  
 

Prior to the meeting Councillor Lowe declared a personal interest in Agenda 
Item 11 – Scrutiny Board Working Group – ALMO Finances, in her capacity 
as a Director of West North West ALMO (Minute  52  refers). 
 
Prior to the meeting Councillor J Dowson declared a personal interest in 
Agenda Item 11 – Scrutiny Board Working Group – ALMO Finances, in her 
capacity as a Panel Member of East North East ALMO (Minute 52 refers).  
 

50 Minutes - 3rd November 2008  
 
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meetings held on 3rd November 2008,  
be confirmed as a correct record, subject to the following amendment:  
 
Minute 43 – Declarations of Interest.   Councillor A Lowe requested that her 
declaration should include  ‘…… and were advised to leave the meeting due 
to their prejudicial interests’.  
 

51 Scrutiny Inquiry - Member Development - Session 1 - Setting the scene  
 

 The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a report to set the 
scene for the first session of the Inquiry into Member Development.   
 
The following documents were appended to the report: 
 

• The Terms of Reference for this Inquiry as agreed at its meeting held on 
 8th September 2008.  

• Member Development Strategy 2008/2011. 

• Member Development Budget for 2008/2009. 

• Benchmarking Statistics for Local Authority spend on Member  Development. 
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 1



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Monday, 5

th
 January 2009. 

The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development also tabled a letter from 
Councillor G Latty – Chair of the Member Development Working Group and 
Councillor P Gruen – Member Management Committee offering their 
comments on Member Development. 
 
Kay Sidebottom, Member Development Officer presented the report and, 
together with Peter Marrington, Head of Scrutiny & Member Development 
responded to Members’ questions and comments. 
 
A lengthy discussion ensued and in brief, the main issues raised were: 
 

• Clarification as to what involvement if any Member Development will play 
in getting members of the public interested in becoming Councillors. 
In response, the Officer informed the meeting that this was part of a new 
White Paper legislation encouraging people to become Councillors 
especially those associated with unrepresented groups.   

• Further clarification of the total expenditure for  Member Development.  
Members requested the Member Development Officer to provide their 
Working Group with calculations on the budget spent on inhouse 
training.  

• Clarification on the value for the Council achieving  the  CharterPlus 
standard.  

• Clarification of how many Councillors are currently taking advantage of 
having a personal development plan. 

• Clarification of the potential work that could be done to attract new 
people on to the Council and how would Officers achieve this without 
compromising the role of political parties/groups and the democratic 
process of election and re-election of Councillors as a measure of their 
effectiveness.    

 
The Chair thanked Kay Sidebottom for her attendance. 
 
RESOLVED -     
 
(a) That the contents of the report and the agreed terms of reference at 
 Appendix 1 be noted. 
(b) That a Working Group be set up to progress this inquiry. 
 
Note:  Councillor M Hamilton joined the meeting at 10.15 a.m. during  
 discussions on the above item.  
 
 Councillor A Lowe left the meeting during consideration of the above 
 item. 
 

52 Financial Health Monitoring 2008/09 - Half-Year Report  
 

The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a report informing 
Members of the financial health of the authority after six months of the 
financial year in respect of the revenue budget, Housing Revenue Account 
and capital programme.   

Page 2



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Monday, 5

th
 January 2009. 

 
Appended to the report were the following documents: 
 

• Appendix 1 – The Director of Resources report on Financial Health 
Monitoring 2008/2009 – Half Year Report submitted to Executive Board 
meeting held on 5th November 2008.  

• Appendix 2 – Outturn Reserves Statement 2007/2008 
 
The Chair welcomed Doug Meeson, Chief Officer (Financial Management) 
and Helen Mylan, Head of Accountancy  to the meeting who responded to 
Members’ questions and comments. 
 
A brief overview of the key points detailed within the report were provided and 
Members sought clarification on the following points: 
 

• Clarification on what the general reserve figures and why this money is not 
 being used.   Members also requested a summary of the reserves for PFi 
 Schools. 

• Clarification of the mechanisms for using those reserves from the ALMOs  
 and why is the Council not using those reserves to cover some of the 
 Council’s other expenses.  

• Clarification of how much schools are allowed to hold in reserve and for  
 how long. 
 
Members felt that the figures in the Outturn Reserves Statement were rather 
confusing as they did not seem to add up.  The Chief Officer (Financial 
Management) gave a brief explanation of the figures and informed the 
meeting that he would take on board their comments in terms of how financial 
reports are presented.  
 
The Chair thanked Officers for their attendance. 
 
RESOLVED -   
(a) That the projected financial position of the authority after six  months of 
 the new financial year and the proposed actions to mitigate against  
 budget pressures, together with the impact on reserves should   
 directorate spending not be maintained within approved estimates be 
 noted. 
(b) That any outstanding issues referred to above be dealt with by those 
 officers now identified within the minutes and reported back to Board 
 Members.  
 

53 Scrutiny Inquiry - Procurement, Outsourcing and Commissioning 
Services - Session 2  

 
Referring to the meeting held on 6th October 2008, the Chief Procurement 
Officer a report outlining the next steps in developing the ‘One-Council 
Approach to Commissioning’ presented at the first session of this inquiry;  
details of the planned and ongoing work in the areas of concern and to 

Page 3



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Monday, 5

th
 January 2009. 

highlight suggested improvement areas that Board Members may wish to 
consider when formulating their recommendations resulting from this inquiry. 
 
The Chair welcomed Wayne Baxter, Chief Procurement Officer to the meeting 
who responded to Members’ questions and comments. 
 
A brief overview of the key points detailed within the report were provided and 
the main areas of clarification and discussion were as follows: 
 

• The approach currently being undertaken to improve contract 
management through training and development on generic contract skills. 

• The certificate of competency and the 25 Council officers being trained in  
Specification writing, Tender Evaluation Skills and Contract Management 
Skills and the proposals . 

• Incorporated contract management in the pre-contract procurement phase 
 of a project and the basic guidance and training made available to council 

officers that ‘operate’ services such as the ALMOs and Education Leeds. 

• Quality assurance on contract arrangements and the need to be socially 
responsible ie greener issues taken into consideration.  

• The negotiation of contracts and procurement rules taking into account 
European regulations. 

 
The Chair thanked Wayne Baxter for his attendance. 
 
RESOLVED – That the contents of the report be noted. 
  
Note:  Councillor J Dowson left the meeting at approximately 11.55 a.m.  
 whilst the above item was being discussed.  
 

54 Income Collection  
 
   The Director of Resources submitted a report providing information and data 
 on collection performance in relation to Council Tax, Business Rates and 
 Sundry Debt and compares performance against other Core Cities. 

 
Appended to the report were copies of the following documents for the 
information/comment of the meeting: 
 

• A table showing ultimate collection rates for Council Tax (Appendix A refers). 

• A table showing Payment Trends at 21st March 2008 (Appendix B refers) 

• A table showing Payment Trends for Council Tax as at 31st March 2008  
 (Appendix C refers). 

• Outturn Reserves Statement 2007/2008 (Appendix 2 refers) was distributed 
 to Members under separate cover. 
 
The Chair welcomed Steve Carey, Resources Department who provided a brief 
overview of the key points detailed within the report and responded to Members’ 
questions and comments. 
 
In brief, the main issues discussed were: 

Page 4



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Monday, 5

th
 January 2009. 

 

• The collection performance in respect of Council Tax and Business Rates 
 for Leeds compared with other core cities. 

• The success of the Council’s preferred option of payments by Direct Debit. 

• The collection of business rates and the changes relating to empty properties 
and empty business premises and the downturn on in year collection rates.  

• The impact on investment into IT. 
 
The Chair thanked Steve Carey and Peter Hutchinson for their attendance.  
 
RESOLVED -  That the contents of the report and appendices be noted. 
 

55 Scrutiny Board Working Group - ALMO Finances  
 

The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a report of the 
Scrutiny Board Working Group – ALMO Finance, especially following the 
recent Call In of an Executive Board decision to make adjustments to capital 
programme expenditure and resources.  
 
Members also noted the briefing note on the Scrutiny Working Group – ALMO 
Finance attached at Appendix 1. 
 
RESOLVED -  To note the contents of the report and endorse the report of 
the working group.   
 

56 Work Programme  
 

The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a report inviting 
Members to consider and approve the current work programme for 
2008/2009. 
 
Appended to the report was a schedule of items for future Scrutiny Board 
meetings, an extract from the Council’s Forward Plan of Key Decisions 
relating to this Board’s portfolio for the period 1st December 2008 to 31st 
March 2009 and a copy of the minutes of the Executive Board meeting held 
on 5th November 2008.  
 
RESOLVED -  That the report and information appended to the report be 
noted. 
 

57 Dates and Times of Future Meetings  
 

That the following schedule of meetings were noted: 
 
*Tuesday  - 6th January 2009  
Monday - 2nd February 2009 
Monday - 2nd March 2009 
Monday - 6th April 2009 
 

Page 5



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Monday, 5

th
 January 2009. 

*All meeting schedule for 10.00 a.m. (Pre-Meetings at 9.30 a.m.) except for 
the re-arranged meeting to be held on Tuesday, 6th January 2009, which will 
commence at 2.00 p.m. (Pre-Meeting at 1.30 p.m.).  
 
 
 
 
 
(The Chair thanked Members for their attendance and the meeting concluded 
at 12.30 p.m.). 
 
 
 
 

Page 6



 1 

 

Report of the Director of Resources 

Scrutiny (Central and Corporate)  

Date:   5th January 2009 

 

SUBJECT:  Budget Strategy 2009/10  

 

        
 
Eligible for call In                                                   Not eligible for call in 
                                                                              (details contained in the report) 
 
 

1 Introduction 
 
1.1 Budget setting and monitoring is a continuous cycle within the financial management 

framework of the Council. Members receive quarterly reports on the in-year financial 
health of the authority and the Council’s Constitution provides for the Central and 
Corporate Scrutiny Board to scrutinise the Council’s budget   

 
1.2 Members at their meeting on 8th January 2008 considered a report of the Executive 

regarding Developing the Financial Plan 2008 – 2013 as the basis of initial budget 
proposals for 2008/09. This report provides an update to the  Council’s Financial Plan 
and medium term financial strategy and discusses the pressures and assumptions 
being considered as part of developing the Council’s 2009/10 annual financial plan.    

 
2. Background 
 
2.1 The Financial Plan is an integral part of the Council’s Business Plan 2008 to 2011 and 

covers the same three year period, but with indicative assessments for the following 
two years up to 2012/13. It provides a financial strategy to underpin the delivery of the 
Council’s priorities and sets out a framework for the preparation of the Council’s annual 
revenue budgets over the planning period. In this way the Council can ensure that its 
priorities are supported by a robust resource allocation strategy.   

 
2.2 The Financial Plan was prepared in the context of the Comprehensive Spending 

Review 2007 (CSR 07). Published in October 2007, the CSR 07 announced that 
current expenditure across the public sector was set to increase by an average 1.9% 
per year in real terms, although the rate varied significantly across government 

Specific implications for:  
 

Ethnic minorities 
  
Women 
 
Disabled people  
 
Narrowing the gap 

Electoral wards affected:  

 

 

Originator: Alan Gay 

 
Tel: 24 74226 

 

 

 

 X  

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 7



 2 

departments. Resources for local government were to rise by 1% per year in real terms 
over the next three years. 
 

2.3 The Local Government Finance Settlement 2008/09 to 2010/11 was announced on 
Thursday 24th January 2008. This was the first three year settlement (following a two-
year settlement for 2006/07 and 2007/08) and marked the Government’s move to align 
Local Government’ funding announcements with the Comprehensive Spending Review 
cycle. The increases in Revenue Support grant at the national and local level for the 
planning period are summarised below:-   

 
 

 RSG 

 National Leeds 

             % % £m 

    

2008/09 3.5 2.7 7.6 

2009/10 2.8 2.1 6.2 

2010/11 2.6 1.8 5.4 

 
2.4 Although there are significant variations between authorities, Leeds’ percentage 

increases are substantially below the average of the Core Cities, the West Yorkshire 
Districts, the metropolitan Districts and England as a whole:  

 

 Increase 
2008/09 

Increase 
2009/10 

Increase 
2010/11 

Leeds 2.7% 2.1% 1.8% 
    
Average Core City 3.5% 2.5% 2.2% 
Average West Yorkshire District 4.3% 3.1% 2.7% 
Average Metropolitan District 3.9% 2.9% 2.5% 
Average England  3.5% 2.8% 2.6% 

 
 
2.5 For 2007/08, the Council’s approved budget and Council Tax (Band D) can be 

summarised as follows: 
 
 

Budget for 2008/09     £540.5m  
Funded by: 
Business rates     £256.5m 
General government grant      £35.7m 
Council tax (4.7% increase)    £248.3m 
 
Band D Council Tax (Leeds Element)               £1,064.37 
Police precept                   £123.62 
Fire precept                                                                      £49.91  
Total                                                                            £1,237.90   

 
2.6 The Government also issued indicative figures for the 3 year school funding settlement. 

For Leeds, the annual increases in the Dedicated Schools Grant per pupil are:  
2008/09 4.3% 
2009/10 3.6% 
2010/11 4.1% 

These compare with national increases of 4.65%, 3.7% & 4.3% respectively. 
 

Page 8



 3 

 
 
2.7 It was announced that the minimum funding guarantee (MFG) per pupil for all schools 

would be 2.1% in each of the three years.  
 
 
3. Development of the Plan  
 

3.1 Taking account of the three year settlement, the estimated level of additional resources 
that would be available was likely to be less than £20m per annum over the life of the 
plan which presented a significant challenge to the authority to ensure that future 
resource allocations were more closely aligned to priorities.   

 
3.2 A new approach to the allocation of revenue resources to General Fund services was 

therefore developed whereby greater emphasis was placed on directing resources to 
Council priorities and divesting from areas considered to be lower priority. The level of 
resources to be allocated to services were determined by three components; needs, 
efficiencies and local priorities. Analysis of these three areas has shaped the overall 
resource planning framework which not only takes into account the relative importance 
of services but ensures that they are deliverable within the overall level of resources 
available to the Council.  

 
3.3 Based on the new methodology the allocation of resources reflected the following 

principles:      
 

• 2% per annum targeted savings in Support Services, rising to a cumulative10% 
by 2012/13. This applied to all central and local provision of administrative and 
support activities. Efficiencies to be generated through investment in Information 
Technology and through the rationalisation of office accommodation. 

 

• Additional capital investment of £100m, above the approved programme, over 
the period of the plan enabling investment in priority projects and providing 
funding for invest to save projects, income generating projects, investment in 
technology and physical infrastructure to deliver efficiencies and improvements 
in services over the period of the plan. 

 

• Funding for significant areas of need which included addressing base budget 
pressures, and directing resources to key local service priorities such as the 
Integrated Waste Strategy, and increasing the number of Direct Payments in 
Adult Social Care.   

 

• Cash standstill over the life of the plan for Children’s Services in 
acknowledgement of the significant scale of realignment required.  

 

• Efficiency savings targeted at areas of the Council’s services which appear 
relatively high compared to other authorities, primarily Children’s Services 
including the LEA and Youth and Community. Pricing policies and service 
provision will be reviewed where appropriate.   

 

• General reserves will be maintained at or above the minimum level in 
accordance with the risk based reserves strategy.      

 

Page 9



 4 

3.4 These assumptions combined with an estimate of available resources over the life of 
the plan enabled a five year resource allocation to be determined which set the shape 
for future budget strategies as illustrated below: 

 

 
3.5 It was acknowledged that the delivery of the plan would require a significant review of 

some of the Council’s services and activities and achievement of the planned shape 
would not be an easy task. The plan therefore assumed a phased implementation of 
the realignment in order to minimise the impact on services during the transitional 
period.  

 
3.6 Due to the scale of realignment required away from Children’s Services the plan 

recognised that a longer timeframe will be required to achieve the planned shape for 
this service, and therefore a cash standstill over the life of the plan was proposed at 
this stage.  

 
4. Update of the Financial Plan 
 
4.1 The Local Government Finance Settlement announced on 26th November 2008 

confirmed that there would be no changes to the Formula Grant for 2009/10 which is 
the second year of the current three year settlement.  

 
4.2 The Government has also announced that it expects the average Council Tax increase 

in England to be substantially below 5% in 2009/10 and has stated that it will not 
hesitate to use its capping powers as necessary. Indeed, although no decisions about 
capping in 2008/09 have been taken, the implication is that the capping criteria will be 
tighter than in previous years.     

 
4.3 The level of resources available to the Council in 2009/10 will therefore be in line with 

that originally envisaged in the Financial Plan and have been allocated to directorates 
taking account of the following issues:   

 

• Pay awards - are assumed at 2.5% per annum in line with government targets 
for public sector pay increases, which equates to £12m for 2009/10. The 

Resource Allocations by Directorate

0

20000

40000

60000

80000

100000

120000

140000

160000

180000

200000

220000

Childrens Adults Social Care City Development Env & N'hoods Central & Corp Strategic Capital financing

2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13

Page 10



 5 

employer’s contribution to the West Yorkshire Pension Fund is assumed to 
increase by a further 0.7% or £2m per annum.  

 

• Running Cost Inflation -  general running cost inflation has been increased by 
2% per annum across the board except where specific contracts are in place. 
General income inflation has been increased at 3% per annum.   

 

• NRF – As Leeds does not qualify for Working Neighbourhoods Fund, there will 
be transitional arrangements for the next two years which will see a reduction 
in funding of £5.37m in 09/10 and a further £3.59m in 10/11.  

 

• Demographic pressures especially around services for looked after children, 
older people and people with a disability.  

.  

• Waste Collection and Disposal – the government has accelerated the rate of 
growth in landfill tax to £8 per tonne and it will rise to £48 per tonne by 2010. 
This will lead to additional costs of around £1.7m in 2009/10. The Council is 
currently developing its waste management strategy that will set challenging 
targets for recycling as well as moving away from landfill for the remaining 
waste. Whilst over time this strategy will be considerably cheaper than the do 
nothing option, in the short term given the need to pump prime recycling 
initiatives and the length of time to bring on new facilities, this will result in 
significant costs over the forthcoming years.  

 

• Capital Financing Costs – increase of £6.2m reflecting the ongoing revenue 
cost of previous borrowing decisions and the additional £100m of capital 
investment referred to in paragraph 3.3. 

 

• Efficiency savings targeted at areas of the Council’s services which appear 
relatively high compared to other authorities. Pricing policies and service 
provision will be reviewed where appropriate.   

 
4.4 A review of the planned shape of the Council’s budgets over the remaining 4 year 

period of the financial strategy results in a re-direction of resources towards Children’s 
Services in the early years of the planning period. In 2009/10, a 1% increase is now 
planned with a cash standstill in 2010/11, the aim being to give Children’s Services a 
20% share of the Council’s budget by 2012/13.  

 
4.5 In addition,  a cash standstill for Central and Corporate functions is now planned for the 

life of the planning period in addition to the 2% p.a. target savings in support services 
outlined in paragraph 3.3.  

 
4.6 These revised assumptions combined with an estimate of available resources over the 

life of the plan have enabled the shape for future budget strategies to be updated as 
illustrated below: 

 

Page 11



 6 

 
5.0 Budget 2009/10 
 
5.1 The budget process is on going and a report will be submitted to the Executive Board 

on the 13th February 2009 which will include recommendations to be made to full 
Council on the 25th February 2009 as to the Council’s budget for 2009/10 and related 
Council Tax.   

 
5.2 .In addition, to the pressures identified in the Financial Plan, there a number of 

emerging issues to be addressed as part of the 2009/10 budget preparation. These 
include:    

 

• Economic Downturn - the economic slowdown is having a significant impact on 
a number of external income sources including planning and building fees, 
rental income, markets income, surveyor and legal fees and income from 
leisure activities. In addition the slowdown in the property market has led to a 
decline in the number of land search requests. It is projected that the authority 
could be facing an income shortfall of several million pounds per annum.  

 

• Energy Prices – the Council has recently renewed its gas contract at an 
additional cost of 37% and its Street Lighting electricity at a similar level.  

 

• Personalisation agenda within Adult Social Care  
 

• Use of Reserves – the 2008/09 budget includes the use of £5.1m of reserves. 
This is forecast to reduce reserves to the minimum level as determined by the 
risk based reserves policy. The extent to which the 2009/10 budget is 
supported by the further use of reserves is dependent on the ability to generate 
reserves in the current year.  

 
5.3 These pressures clearly require additional efficiencies to be identified across the 

Council in order to achieve a balanced budget for 2009/10. Work is ongoing to identify 
efficiencies and savings options at both a directorate and corporate level and in 

Resource Allocations by Directorate

0

20000

40000

60000

80000

100000

120000

140000

160000

180000

200000

220000

Childrens Adults Social

Care

City

Development

Env & N'hoods Central & Corp Strategic Capital financing

2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13

Page 12



 7 

addition to the identification of general cost reductions and efficiencies the following 
areas have been targeted: 

 

• Procurement including off-contract spend 

• Staffing including review of working practices and sickness 

• Review of service delivery options 
 

5.4 For 2009/10 the Government has decided to introduce Regulations that will require 
councils to include information about efficiency performance on the face of the council 
tax bill, and in the leaflets that accompany demand notices. This information will be 
based on forecast cumulative efficiency savings to be achieved by March 2009. This is 
obtained from National Indicator 179.   

 
6. Dedicated Schools Budget  
 
6.1 The Government has confirmed the indicative figures for school funding for the next 

two years in line with the original announcement.  
 
6.2 The Leeds finalised DSG settlement for 2008/09 was £393m. The DCSF indicative 

settlement figures for 2009/10 project gross Leeds DSG income of £405m – a year on 
year increase of 3.0%. The projected 2010/11 figure is £423m which represents a 4.3% 
annual cash increase.  

 
6.3 The funding of post 16 education is being reformed to facilitate collaboration by 

providers, learners and employers. The aim is to deliver a common system for all 16-18 
funding and incentivise partnerships to ensure that as many young people as possible 
participate and achieve in their communities. In the meantime, the Learning & Skills 
Council has confirmed a 2.1% increase in sixth form pupil funding rates for 2009/10.  

 
7. Housing Revenue Account 
 
7.1 The HRA covers the management of the Council's rented housing stock, and in 

accordance with government legislation operates as a ring-fenced account. The 
funding of the HRA is separate to the way in which the rest of the council is funded, 
with costs being met from rental income and government subsidy. However, in Leeds, 
for a number of years, the way in which the government calculates subsidy has 
resulted in a negative contribution rather than a grant. 

 
7.2 The 2008/09 budget for the HRA provides for negative subsidy of £46.4m and an 

average rent increase of 5.8%. The average guideline rent increase for 2009/10 is 
6.2% with negative subsidy of £49.4m.  

 
7.3 Housing finance is currently the subject of a major government review which is due to 

report back in Spring 2009. Amongst other areas of consideration, this has looked at 
the whole rationale and mechanism of the housing subsidy system, and may lead to 
major changes in the way the government uses this 'distributive' system to 'support' 
local authority housing, including the possible option of councils totally opting out of the 
subsidy system.   

 
8. Conclusion 
 

8.1 As anticipated, the funding available to the Council over the planning period is limited 
and clearly not sufficient to meet all the spending pressures that the Council will face. 
To respond to this the Financial Plan set out a strategy which placed resource 

Page 13



 8 

allocation in a stronger policy framework based on an analysis of needs, a focus on 
delivering efficiencies and an understanding of local priorities.   

 
8.2 This financial strategy will be subject to further review as part of the current ongoing 

preparation of detailed budget plans and this will be presented as part of the Council’s 
financial plan which will be submitted to Council in February 2009.  

 
9. Recommendation 
 
9.1  Scrutiny (Central and Corporate) is requested to: 
 

(i) Consider the budget strategy for 2009/10.  
  
 
 

Page 14



 

Report of the Head of Policy, Performance and Improvement 
 
Central and Corporate Functions Scrutiny Board 
 
Date: 5th January 2009 
 
Subject: Council Business Plan Performance Report for Quarter 2 2008/09 
 

        
 
Eligible for Call In                                                 Not Eligible for Call In 
                                                                              (Details contained in the report) 
 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The introduction of the Leeds Strategic and Council Business Plans 2008 to 2011 and changes to the 
national performance management arrangements has required significant changes to be made to our 
performance reporting and accountability arrangements within the council, and additionally across 
the partnership. 
 
The quality and robustness of our performance management arrangements for the Leeds Strategic 
and Council Business Plans will be fundamental in forming a key portfolio of evidence for both the 
organisational and area assessments under the new CAA methodology from April 2009.   
 
The revised accountability arrangements developed to ensure delivery of the plans were agreed by 
Corporate Leadership Team and Elected Members at Quarter 1, and provide a strategic overview of 
performance.  A key performance management role of Elected Members is to ensure that delivery of 
our strategic outcomes and improvement priorities within both the Leeds Strategic Plan and Council 
Business Plan is on track.  The Scrutiny Board role is to challenge the council’s performance by 
examining and questioning the range of actions, activities and decisions, and also considering and 
challenging the work of partnership bodies contributing to the delivery of improvement priorities. 

Members need to be made aware of any issues and areas of under performance, and be assured 
that actions are being taken to improve performance, that the appropriate level of resources are 
available and that problems or blockages to delivery are identified and addressed.  However, it is 
recognised that the volume of information within Action Trackers produced for each half year could 
hinder Scrutiny Boards in carrying out their roles in the accountability process. Therefore the 
attached report is based on exception, highlighting just those areas that are under performing or 
causing concern (rated Red or Amber), or where there are issues in relation to data quality.  

Specific Implications For:  
 

Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 

Originators:  Marilyn Summers 
 

 
Tel:  39 50786  

 

 

 

  

 Ward Members consulted 
 (referred to in report) 
  

 

Agenda Item 8

Page 15



1.0 Purpose of this Report 

1.1 This report provides a strategic overview of performance against those improvement priorities 
within the Council Business Plan 2008-11.  In particular the Action Tracker Summary Sheet 
(appendix 1) provides an overall assessment of progress against each of the improvement 
priorities and a rating of Red, Amber or Green is applied to indicate the status of each one. 

1.2 In appendix 2 to this report the Action Trackers are provided on an exception basis for those 
areas of under performance and/or of concern in relation to the Council Business Plan 
improvement priorities as at 30th September 2008.  In addition, performance indicator 
information is provided for those indicators from the 198 National Indicator Set which are not 
included within the Action Trackers, provided together with any locally agreed indicators 
where appropriate.  Through this the Board will continue to receive the full set of performance 
indicator information. 

2.0 Background Information 

2.1 Executive Board approved a new corporate planning framework for the council in July 2007.  
The strategic element of this framework includes two high level plans which set the policy 
objectives for the organisation and our partnership working.  These are: 

ØØØØ Leeds Strategic Plan 2008 to 2011 - which sets out the customer/citizen (external) 
focused strategic outcomes being sought by the council and its partners for the city.  
This plan includes our requirements to produce a Local Area Agreement and is the 
main delivery mechanism for the Vision for Leeds 2004 to 2020. 

ØØØØ Council Business Plan 2008 to 2011 - which sets out what the council needs to do 
internally to enable the organisation to achieve the Leeds Strategic Plan.  That is 
outlining the business development, organisational change, process transformation 
and financial planning activities that we will be undertaking over the next three years.   

2.2 Both these plans include a set of outcomes, improvement priorities and aligned performance 
indicators with three year targets.  Through our performance reporting and accountability 
arrangements we need to track our progress against the improvement priorities as well as 
against the indicators to provide both a qualitative and quantitative picture of performance.  
This is because the scope of most of the improvement priorities is wider than that of the 
performance indicator and without some form of contextual reporting we would not be able to 
capture or monitor this progress. 

3.0 Main Issues 

3.1 Comprehensive Area Assessment 
 

A key aspect of a robust performance management framework is to highlight an 
organisation’s self-awareness.  This will be a fundamental part of the CAA process where 
councils will be expected to carry out an annual self evaluation that will be crucial in 
determining the overall CAA judgement of the area and the organisation, having particular 
importance in relation to the Managing Performance KLOE. 

 
The joint inspectorates’ proposal for consultation, issued in summer 2008, notes that: 

 
“Councils and their partners, and their representative bodies, are developing approaches to 
self-evaluation.  While we are not making it a requirement of CAA, we do expect that each 
area will wish to complete an annual self-evaluation and we will take full account of it and any 
service level self-evaluation.  We do not intend to repeat the work carried out already by the 
council or its partners.  We will expect that any self-evaluation is based on verifiable 
evidence.  The more robust the self-evaluation the more reliance we will be able to place on 
it.   
 

Page 16



CAA will draw as far as possible on the information used by the council and its 
partners to manage performance and deliver improvements set out in the Local Area 
Agreement and Sustainable Community Strategies.  This approach will minimise the 
administrative burden imposed by CAA and will make optimum use of self-evaluation.” 

 
The self evaluation will enable the partnership to work through and be able to demonstrate 
that it is sufficiently self-aware of key issues and that there are effective plans in place to 
address any concerns.  It will demonstrate that the partnership is aware of where there are 
gaps in performance that need to be addressed or where more focused attention is needed to 
ensure that the partnership will deliver its outcomes.   It will also highlight where action plans 
are in place to address these issues.  This is important in ensuring self awareness and 
preparedness to really deliver on improvements.   

 
As such, it is important that timely, appropriate and accountable performance information is 
available to the relevant audiences so that problems in relation to performance and/or data 
quality are flagged, the focus of improvement activity can be challenged and that appropriate 
action is being taken and reported to address areas of under performance. 

  
Within the council Lead Chief Officers have the key role in making this happen through co-
ordinating the activities of contributors and providing an overview of the progress against the 
improvement priority for which they are accountable. This overview position is described in 
the Action Trackers previously approved by CLT and agreed by Lead Officers, and updated at 
Qtr 2 and Qtr 4 of the performance reporting and accountability process. The Action Trackers 
at Qtr 2 & Qtr 4, therefore, provide a single source of performance information for the full 
range of different stakeholders in the accountability process. 

  
3.2 Role of Scrutiny Board 
 
 A key performance management role of Elected Members is to ensure that delivery of our 

strategic outcomes and improvement priorities within both the Leeds Strategic Plan and 
Council Business Plan is on track.  Members need to be made aware of any issues and areas 
of under performance, and be assured that actions are being taken to improve performance, 
that the appropriate level of resources are available and that problems or blockages to 
delivery are identified and addressed.  However, it is recognised that the volume of 
information within the Action Trackers produced for each six months could hinder Scrutiny 
Boards in carrying out their role in the accountability process. Therefore the approach from 
Quarter 2 is to provide the Action Trackers by exception, highlighting just those areas that are 
under performing or causing concern ie those traffic lighted amber or red.  This is 
supplemented by a performance indicator report that includes all of the performance 
indicators relevant to the Board - except for those that already appear within the action 
trackers themselves.   

 The Scrutiny Board role is to challenge the council’s performance to raise standards acting as 
a balance to the Executive Board by examining and questioning the range of actions, 
activities and decisions, and also considering and challenging the work of partnership bodies 
contributing to the delivery of improvement priorities.  

3.3 Information Provided 
 

Therefore within this report the following information is provided: 

Appendix 1 Action Tracker Summary Sheet - this sheet sets out all the improvement 
priorities relevant to the Board and shows the full set of overall progress traffic lights. 

Appendix 2 Action Trackers – this appendix includes the action trackers for the 
improvement priorities that have been given an amber or red rating for overall progress.  
There is a guidance sheet to assist members in interpreting the information provided. 

 

Page 17



Appendix 3 Performance Indicator Report – this appendix list the Q2 performance 
indicator results for the indicators taken from the green action trackers, along with those from 
the rest of the 198 national indicator set and any locally agreed indicators for which quarterly 
results are available.   

4.0 Implications for Council Policy and Governance 

4.1 Effective performance management enables senior officers and Elected Members to be 
assured that the council is making adequate progress and provides a mechanism for them to 
challenge performance where appropriate.  Effective performance management also forms a 
key element of the organisational assessment proposed under the new Comprehensive Area 
Assessment.  The CAA will examine and challenge the robustness and effectiveness of both 
our corporate performance management arrangements and those across the partnership. 

5.0 Legal and Resource Implications 

5.1 The implementation of these new performance reporting arrangements is achievable within 
current resources across the organisations as they essentially replace an existing similar 
process. 

6.0 Conclusions 

6.1 The development of the partnership approach of the Leeds Strategic Plan, the introduction of 
a Council Business Plan and the changes resulting from CAA have required us to review and 
revise our council performance management framework and associated reporting processes.  
As a result, this has seen a significant change in identifying lead and contributory officers and 
partners with accountable roles for each improvement priority within the Leeds Strategic Plan 
and Council Business Plan as appropriate.  There is a need to fully complete this framework 
and strengthen a culture of accountability within the council and with partner organisations 
through our scrutiny arrangements. 

6.2 At Qtr 2 each Lead Chief Officer/partner has completed an Action Tracker against each of the 
improvement priorities, which has significantly increased the amount of performance 
information produced.  As such, in order for Elected Members to fulfil their role effectively 
through the scrutiny process, these action trackers are reported by exception; highlighting just 
those areas that are under performing or causing concern.  This is supplemented by a 
complete set of performance indicator information to enable members to maintain an 
overview of performance.  

6.3 As the lead partner for the Local Area Agreement and Leeds Strategic Plan, it is 
fundamentally important that the council can demonstrate to partners, Government Office and 
through CAA that its has an integrated, robust performance management framework that is fit 
for purpose.   

7.0 Recommendation 

7.1 That members of Scrutiny Board note the content of the report and comment on any particular 
performance issues of concern. 

 

Page 18



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 a
n
d
 C
e
n
tr
a
l 
F
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 A
c
ti
o
n
 T
ra
c
k
e
r 
S
u
m
m
a
ry
 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2
 2
0
0
8
-0
9

C
o
d
e

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P

ri
o
ri

ty
A

c
c
o
u
n
ta

b
le

 

D
ir

e
c
to

r

C
o
d
e

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P

ri
o
ri

ty
A

c
c
o
u
n
ta

b
le

 

D
ir

e
c
to

r
IO
-1
a

Im
p
ro
v
e
 o
u
r 
s
y
s
te
m
s
 a
n
d
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 u
s
 t
o
 u
s
e
 o
u
r 
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
 a
n
d
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
tl
y

J
a
m
e
s
 R
o
g
e
rs

V
fM
-1
a
D
e
liv
e
r 
o
u
r 
5
 y
e
a
r 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
 t
o
 a
lig
n
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 t
o
 o
u
r 
s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s

A
la
n
 G
a
y

IO
-1
b

U
s
e
 o
u
r 
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 s
h
a
p
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
, 
p
ro
v
id
e
 c
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
v
e
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 o
u
r 
d
e
c
is
io
n
 m
a
k
in
g
 a
t 
a
ll 
le
v
e
ls

J
a
m
e
s
 R
o
g
e
rs

V
fM
-1
b
E
m
b
e
d
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
ili
ty
 i
n
 o
u
r 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s

A
la
n
 G
a
y

IO
-1
c

E
n
s
u
re
 w
e
 h
a
v
e
 t
h
e
 r
ig
h
t 
in
te
lli
g
e
n
c
e
 t
o
 i
n
fo
rm
 o
u
r 
s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 p
la
n
n
in
g

J
a
m
e
s
 R
o
g
e
rs

V
fM
-1
c
C
o
n
s
id
e
r 
a
ll 
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 o
f 
fu
n
d
in
g
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 o
u
r 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s

A
la
n
 G
a
y

IO
-1
d

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 p
ro
te
c
t 
a
n
d
 s
h
a
re
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 l
in
e
 w
it
h
 l
e
g
is
la
ti
v
e
 a
n
d
 r
e
g
u
la
to
ry
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts

J
a
m
e
s
 R
o
g
e
rs

V
fM
-2
a
Im
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 o
f 
o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 m
a
x
im
is
in
g
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t,
 I
C
T
 a
n
d
 a
s
s
e
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

A
la
n
 G
a
y

IO
-2
a

Im
p
ro
v
e
 o
u
r 
u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
o
u
r 
c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 -
 B
IG
 I
D
E
A

J
a
m
e
s
 R
o
g
e
rs

V
fM
-2
b
E
m
b
e
d
 v
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 
m
o
n
e
y
 a
t 
a
ll 
le
v
e
ls
 

A
la
n
 G
a
y

IO
-2
b

In
c
re
a
s
e
 c
h
o
ic
e
 s
o
 c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 c
a
n
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
 m
o
re
 c
o
n
v
e
n
ie
n
t 
w
a
y
s

J
a
m
e
s
 R
o
g
e
rs

V
fM
-3

Im
p
le
m
e
n
t 
a
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 w
h
ic
h
 d
e
liv
e
rs
 v
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 
m
o
n
e
y
 a
n
d
 e
n
s
u
re
s
 t
h
e
 b
e
s
t 
p
ro
v
id
e
r

N
ic
o
lé
 J
a
c
k
s
o
n

IO
-2
c

Im
p
ro
v
e
 o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
fe
e
d
b
a
c
k

J
a
m
e
s
 R
o
g
e
rs

V
fm
-4
a
E
n
s
u
re
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 t
ra
n
s
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
/i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 i
s
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
d
 a
n
d
 c
o
-o
rd
in
a
te
d

J
a
m
e
s
 R
o
g
e
rs

IO
-2
d

M
a
n
a
g
e
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
e
x
p
e
c
ta
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 d
e
liv
e
r 
o
n
 o
u
r 
p
ro
m
is
e
s

J
a
m
e
s
 R
o
g
e
rs

V
fm
-4
b
E
n
h
a
n
c
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 a
t 
d
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
/s
e
rv
ic
e
 l
e
v
e
l

J
a
m
e
s
 R
o
g
e
rs

IO
-2
e

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 j
o
in
e
d
 u
p
 a
n
d
 p
e
rs
o
n
 c
e
n
tr
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 d
e
s
ig
n
e
d
 a
ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
o
u
r 
c
u
s
to
m
e
rs

J
a
m
e
s
 R
o
g
e
rs

V
fm
-4
c
E
m
b
e
d
 a
 c
o
n
s
is
te
n
t 
a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 w
h
ic
h
 c
le
a
rl
y
 l
in
k
s
 w
o
rk
fo
rc
e
 a
n
d
 a
s
s
e
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
n
in
g
, 
ri
s
k
, 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 

a
n
d
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

J
a
m
e
s
 R
o
g
e
rs

IO
-2
f

E
n
h
a
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 l
in
k
s
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 f
ro
n
t 
a
n
d
 b
a
c
k
 o
ff
ic
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
e
x
c
e
lle
n
t 
e
n
d
-t
o
-e
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s

J
a
m
e
s
 R
o
g
e
rs

V
fm
-4
d
E
x
p
lo
re
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 
c
o
lla
b
o
ra
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 p
ri
v
a
te
 a
n
d
 p
u
b
lic
 s
e
c
to
r 
b
o
d
ie
s
 -
 B
IG
 I
D
E
A

J
a
m
e
s
 R
o
g
e
rs

IO
-3
a

In
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t,
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
ll 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 e
s
p
e
c
ia
lly
 h
a
rd
 t
o
 r
e
a
c
h
 g
ro
u
p
s

J
a
m
e
s
 R
o
g
e
rs

V
fm
-5
a
D
e
v
e
lo
p
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 a
n
d
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 

N
ic
o
lé
 J
a
c
k
s
o
n

IO
-3
b

B
u
ild
 t
ru
s
t 
w
it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 g
re
a
te
r 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

J
a
m
e
s
 R
o
g
e
rs

V
fm
-6
a
Im
p
ro
v
e
 q
u
a
lit
y
 a
n
d
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 o
f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s

A
la
n
 G
a
y

C
o
d
e

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P

ri
o
ri

ty
A

c
c
o
u
n
ta

b
le

 

D
ir

e
c
to

r

C
o
d
e

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P

ri
o
ri

ty
A

c
c
o
u
n
ta

b
le

 

D
ir

e
c
to

r
V
P
-1
a

E
n
s
u
re
 w
e
 h
a
v
e
 t
h
e
 r
ig
h
t 
s
ta
ff
, 
in
 t
h
e
 r
ig
h
t 
p
la
c
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 r
ig
h
t 
s
k
ill
s
 a
t 
th
e
 r
ig
h
t 
ti
m
e

A
la
n
 G
a
y

V
P
-3
b

M
a
x
im
is
e
 m
e
m
b
e
r 
in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 p
o
lic
y
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t,
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 m
a
k
in
g
 a
n
d
 a
c
c
o
u
n
ta
b
ili
ty

N
ic
o
lé
 J
a
c
k
s
o
n

V
P
-1
b

E
m
p
o
w
e
r,
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 o
u
r 
s
ta
ff
 a
n
d
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 b
y
 e
m
b
e
d
d
in
g
 c
o
re
 s
k
ill
s
 a
n
d
 b
e
h
a
v
io
u
rs
 w
it
h
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 b
a
s
e
d
 a
p
p
ra
is
a
ls

A
la
n
 G
a
y

V
P
-4
a

E
n
s
u
re
 c
o
lle
a
g
u
e
s
 r
e
fl
e
c
t 
th
e
 d
iv
e
rs
it
y
 o
f 
o
u
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s

A
la
n
 G
a
y

V
P
-1
c

Im
p
ro
v
e
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 a
n
d
 t
ra
n
s
p
a
re
n
c
y
 o
f 
o
u
r 
d
e
c
is
io
n
-m
a
k
in
g
 a
n
d
 a
c
c
o
u
n
ta
b
ili
ty
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s

N
ic
o
lé
 J
a
c
k
s
o
n

V
P
-4
b

E
n
s
u
re
 f
a
ir
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 a
ll 
o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s

J
a
m
e
s
 R
o
g
e
rs

V
P
-2
a

Im
p
ro
v
e
 l
e
a
d
e
rs
h
ip
 a
t 
a
ll 
le
v
e
ls
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 a
n
d
 e
le
c
te
d
 m
e
m
b
e
rs

A
la
n
 G
a
y

V
P
-4
c

E
m
b
e
d
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 a
n
d
 d
iv
e
rs
it
y
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 
th
e
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n

J
a
m
e
s
 R
o
g
e
rs

V
P
-2
b

E
n
h
a
n
c
e
 o
u
r 
le
a
d
e
rs
h
ip
 o
f 
th
e
 c
it
y

J
a
m
e
s
 R
o
g
e
rs

V
P
-5
a

R
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 c
a
rb
o
n
 e
m
is
s
io
n
s
 a
ri
s
in
g
 f
ro
m
 o
u
r 
b
u
ild
in
g
s
, 
v
e
h
ic
le
s
 a
n
d
 o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 -
 B
IG
 I
D
E
A

A
la
n
 G
a
y

V
P
-2
c

S
tr
e
n
g
th
e
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 (
s
k
ill
s
 a
n
d
 m
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s
) 
a
t 
a
ll 
le
v
e
ls

J
a
m
e
s
 R
o
g
e
rs

V
P
-5
b

In
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 o
f 
s
o
c
ia
lly
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 g
o
o
d
s
 a
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 p
ro
c
u
re

N
ic
o
lé
 J
a
c
k
s
o
n

V
P
-3
a

S
tr
e
n
g
th
e
n
 o
u
r 
d
e
m
o
c
ra
ti
c
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 p
o
lic
y
 m
a
k
in
g

N
ic
o
lé
 J
a
c
k
s
o
n

V
P
-5
c

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
o
u
r 
s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 o
u
r 
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 s
o
c
ia
l 
re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ty
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e

A
la
n
 G
a
y

 

C
o
d
e

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P

ri
o
ri

ty
A

c
c
o
u
n
ta

b
le

 

D
ir

e
c
to

r
E
N
V
-1
b
R
e
d
u
c
e
 e
m
is
s
io
n
s
 f
ro
m
 p
u
b
lic
 s
e
c
to
r 
b
u
ild
in
g
s
, 
o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 a
n
d
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 o
th
e
rs
 t
o
 d
o
 s
o

 J
e
a
n
 D
e
n
t

E
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
t

L
e
e
d
s
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 P
la

n

C
o
u
n
c
il
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n

W
e
 a

re
 a

n
 i
n
te

ll
e
g
e
n
t 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
, 
u
s
in

g
 g

o
o
d
 q

u
a
li
ty

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 d

e
li
v
e
r 

b
e
tt
e
r 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s

O
u
r 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

re
 c

le
a
rl

y
 p

ri
o
ri

ti
s
e
d
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 e

x
c
e
ll
e
n
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 v

a
lu

e
 f
o
r 

m
o
n
e
y

W
e
 a

re
 a

 v
a
lu

e
s
 l
e
d
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 o

u
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 a
re

 m
o
ti
v
a
te

d
 a

n
d
 e

m
p
o
w

e
re

d

Page 19



Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 a

n
d
 C

e
n
tr

a
l 
F
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n
 A

c
ti
o
n
 T

ra
c
k
e
rs

 Q
u
a
rt

e
r 

2
 2

0
0
8
-0

9
 

 

L
a
s
t 
s
a
v
e
d
 b
y
 L
e
e
d
s
 U
s
e
r 
o
n
 2
2
/1
2
/2
0
0
8
 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r:

 T
B

A
 

O
v
e
ra

ll
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

a
ti
n
g
 

 

C
o
d
e
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P

ri
o
ri

ty
 

C
o
n
tr

ib
u
to

ry
 O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 
(C

O
) 

V
fM

-2
a
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 o
f 
o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 m

a
x
im
is
in
g
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t,
 

IC
T
 a
n
d
 a
s
s
e
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

V
fM

-2
b
 

E
m
b
e
d
 v
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 
m
o
n
e
y
 a
t 
a
ll 
le
v
e
ls
 

A
C
E
 (
P
la
n
n
in
g
, 
P
o
lic
y
 a
n
d
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t)
 

F
in
a
n
c
e
 L
e
a
d
s
 a
n
d
 C
O
R
S
 i
n
 D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
s
 

C
h
ie
f 
P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
n
g
 C
h
ie
f 
IC
T
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

C
h
ie
f 
A
s
s
e
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r 

C
h
ie
f 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 T
ra
n
s
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

O
v
e
ra

ll
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
P

ro
g
re

s
s
 o

n
 t
h
e
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P

ri
o
ri

ty
 

A
 V
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 
M
o
n
e
y
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 i
n
 c
o
n
ju
n
c
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 C
O
R
s
 a
n
d
 P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
. 
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
n
d
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 B
o
a
rd
 i
s
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 b
o
th
 t
h
e
s
e
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 d
ir
e
c
tl
y
. 

 

R
e
f 

T
it
le

 
B

a
s
e
 

li
n
e
 

T
a
rg

e
t 

Y
e
a
r 

to
 D

a
te

 
R

e
s
u
lt
 

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

 
D

a
ta

 Q
u
a
li
ty

 

B
P
-0
4
 

U
s
e
 o
f 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 s
c
o
re
 

3
 

3
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
In
d
ic
a
to
r 
 

R
e
s
u
lt
 n
o
t 
a
v
a
ila
b
le
 u
n
ti
l 
Q
3
 

N
o
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 

w
it
h
 d
a
ta
 

N
I 
1
7
9
 

%
 c
a
s
h
 r
e
le
a
s
in
g
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 (
c
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
 t
o
ta
l 
o
v
e
r 
3
 y
rs
) 

N
/A
 

3
%
  

£
2
4
.3
m
  

(p
re
d
ic
te
d
 y
e
a
r 
e
n
d
 

s
a
v
in
g
s
) 

S
e
e
 d
e
ta
ile
d
 c
o
m
m
e
n
ta
ry
 a
b
o
v
e
. 

 
N
o
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 

w
it
h
 d
a
ta
 

 Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P
ri
o
ri
ty

 K
e
y
 A

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 

to
 D

a
te

 
R

is
k
s
/C

h
a
ll
e
n
g
e
s
 

K
e
y
 A

c
ti
o
n
s
 

(f
o
r 
n
e
x
t 
6
 m

o
n
th

s
) 

C
O

 
T
im

e
s
c
a
le

 
O

th
e
r 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry

 o
f 
e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

 T
h
e
 P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
U
n
it
 i
s
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 w
o
rk
 t
o
 m

a
x
im
is
e
 

p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il.
  
T
h
e
 t
o
o
ls
 u
s
e
d
 t
o
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 t
h
is
 w
o
rk
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
: 

s
p
e
n
d
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
; 
c
o
lla
b
o
ra
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 s
h
a
re
d
 s
u
p
p
lie
rs
; 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 

c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s
; 
d
e
m
a
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t;
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
is
a
ti
o
n
s
; 
e
n
e
rg
y
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
; 
p
u
rc
h
a
s
in
g
 c
a
rd
s
; 
e
A
u
c
ti
o
n
s
; 
p
ro
d
u
c
in
g
 i
n
c
o
m
e
; 

th
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 r
e
g
is
te
r;
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
; 
th
e
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 l
is
t;
 

s
e
le
c
ti
o
n
s
; 
m
a
rk
e
t 
a
n
a
ly
s
is
’ 
h
ig
h
 v
a
lu
e
 s
p
e
n
d
; 
o
ff
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 

s
p
e
n
d
; 
n
o
n
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
s
p
e
n
d
; 
g
ra
n
ts
 t
o
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 a
n
d
 t
ra
in
in
g
. 
 

 E
x
a
m
p
le
s
 o
f 
im
p
ro
v
e
d
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 a
re
: 

 Ø
 
T
e
m
p
o
ra
ry
 s
ta
ff
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
e
x
te
n
d
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 p
ro
v
is
o
 t
h
a
t 

A
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 t
o
o
k
 P
u
rc
h
a
s
in
g
 C
a
rd
s
 o
n
 b
o
a
rd
 (
A
p
ri
l 
0
8
) 

(p
ro
c
e
s
s
 s
a
v
in
g
) 

Ø
 
T
ra
d
e
 W

a
s
te
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
d
iv
id
e
d
 i
n
to
 f
iv
e
 l
o
ts
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
in
g
 

re
c
y
c
lin
g
 o
f 
p
a
p
e
r/
c
a
rd
 a
n
d
 P
la
s
ti
c
/c
a
n
s
 a
n
d
 s
k
ip
s
 w
a
s
te
 

s
tr
e
a
m
s
. 
 R
e
s
u
lt
in
g
 i
n
 a
n
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 s
a
v
in
g
. 
 C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 

o
ff
e
rs
 2
0
%
 c
o
s
t 
s
a
v
in
g
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ti
n
g
 a
 s
a
v
in
g
 o
f 
a
p
p
ro
x
 

£
2
9
k
 p
a
. 
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
8
 

Ø
 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
o
ff
-c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
re
p
o
rt
s
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
h
o
 i
s
 n
o
t 

u
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t.
 

Ø
 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 f
o
r 
h
ig
h
 v
a
lu
e
 a
re
a
s
 

o
f 
s
p
e
n
d
. 

Ø
 
C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 
L
a
u
n
d
ry
 e
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
le
t 
o
n
 a
 w
h
o
le
 

lif
e
 c
o
s
ti
n
g
 b
a
s
is
. 
J
u
n
e
 0
8
 

Ø
 
S
ta
ti
o
n
e
ry
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
le
t 
J
u
ly
 0
8
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ts
 c
a
s
h
a
b
le
 

s
a
v
in
g
 o
f 
£
7
6
k
. 

 

M
a
n
y
 o
f 
th
e
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
ie
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
re
 o
n
ly
 a
c
h
ie
v
a
b
le
 

if
 o
th
e
rs
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
e
n
g
a
g
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
is
 w
o
rk
 

 M
a
n
y
 o
f 
th
e
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
ie
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
re
 a
t 
th
is
 s
ta
g
e
 

p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fi
g
u
re
s
 a
n
d
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
n
d
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

B
o
a
rd
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
o
n
 h
o
w
 t
h
e
s
e
 

s
a
v
in
g
s
 a
re
 r
e
a
lis
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
ils
 b
u
d
g
e
ts
 

W
h
ils
t 
th
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 h
a
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
h
e
s
e
 k
e
y
 i
n
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 

m
u
c
h
 w
o
rk
 i
s
 s
ti
ll 
to
 b
e
 d
o
n
e
 t
o
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 d
ri
v
e
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 c
h
a
n
g
e
. 

 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
n
d
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 B
o
a
rd
 h
a
s
 a
g
re
e
d
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ty
 f
o
r 
re
g
u
la
rl
y
 r
e
v
ie
w
in
g
 a
n
d
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
in
g
 

p
ro
g
re
s
s
. 
 A
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
 s
e
ri
e
s
 p
a
p
e
rs
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 b
y
 

th
e
 b
o
a
rd
 l
o
o
k
in
g
 a
t 
th
e
s
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 i
n
 m

o
re
 d
e
p
th
. 
  

C
P
O
 

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

A
c
ti
o
n
s
 r
e
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
s
e
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 a
re
 e
m
b
e
d
d
e
d
 i
n
to
 

th
e
 P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
U
n
it
’s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

p
la
n
 

Page 21



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 a

n
d
 C

e
n
tr

a
l 
F
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n
 A

c
ti
o
n
 T

ra
c
k
e
rs

 Q
u
a
rt

e
r 

2
 2

0
0
8
-0

9
 

 

L
a
s
t 
s
a
v
e
d
 b
y
 L
e
e
d
s
 U
s
e
r 
o
n
 2
2
/1
2
/2
0
0
8
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P
ri
o
ri
ty

 K
e
y
 A

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 

to
 D

a
te

 
R

is
k
s
/C

h
a
ll
e
n
g
e
s
 

K
e
y
 A

c
ti
o
n
s
 

(f
o
r 
n
e
x
t 
6
 m

o
n
th

s
) 

C
O

 
T
im

e
s
c
a
le

 
O

th
e
r 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
’s

 E
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

 W
o
rk
 i
s
 u
n
d
e
rw
a
y
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
n
d
 a
lig
n
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 /
V
F
M
 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 a
im
 o
f 
p
ro
v
id
in
g
 a
 

s
tr
u
c
tu
re
d
 w
a
y
 t
o
 c
a
p
tu
re
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
ie
s
 a
n
d
 e
n
a
b
le
 t
h
e
 

ta
rg
e
ti
n
g
 o
f 
im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il.
 

 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
n
d
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 B
o
a
rd
 r
e
c
e
n
tl
y
 a
g
re
e
d
 

te
m
p
la
te
s
 w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 b
e
in
g
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
n
d
 

p
o
p
u
la
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 C
O
R
S
. 
 T
h
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 a
im
s
 t
o
 

b
ri
n
g
 t
o
g
e
th
e
r 
im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 w
it
h
 v
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 

m
o
n
e
y
 r
e
v
ie
w
s
 a
n
d
 b
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
in
g
 i
n
to
 a
 m

o
re
 s
y
s
te
m
a
ti
c
 

a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 

F
a
ilu
re
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
p
la
n
n
e
d
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
ie
s
 m

a
y
 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 

d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie
s
 i
n
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
th
e
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 m

e
d
iu
m
 

te
rm

 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
p
la
n
. 
 I
t 
w
o
u
ld
 a
ls
o
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 U
s
e
 o
f 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

c
it
y
’s
 C
A
A
 j
u
d
g
e
m
e
n
t 

C
o
m
p
le
te
 t
h
e
 p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 o
f 
V
F
M
 p
ro
fi
le
s
 a
n
d
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 n
e
x
t 
th
re
e
 y
e
a
rs
. 

 E
n
s
u
re
 c
o
h
e
re
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 o
th
e
r 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ta
b
ili
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 

q
u
a
lit
a
ti
v
e
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 r
e
a
lis
a
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
s
 

 A
lig
n
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 a
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 a
re
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 o
n
 t
im
e
 

 P
ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
 c
o
n
fl
ic
ts
 

C
O
R
T
 &
 

C
O
R
S
 i
n
 

d
ir
e
c
to
ra
te

s
 

Q
3
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 

T
h
is
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 t
o
 R
&
P
 B
o
a
rd
 

A
s
s
e
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
 

Ø
 
T
o
 o
p
ti
m
is
e
 t
h
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
c
o
u
n
c
il 
la
n
d
 a
n
d
 p
ro
p
e
rt
y
 

re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 f
o
r 
d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
, 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 a
n
d
 i
n
te
n
d
e
d
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
. 

Ø
 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 a
n
d
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 a
s
s
e
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 m

e
d
iu
m
 t
o
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm

 
s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

Ø
 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 c
ri
te
ri
a
 b
a
s
e
d
 e
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 t
o
 

m
e
a
s
u
re
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 t
o
w
a
rd
s
 t
h
e
ir
 d
e
liv
e
ry
, 
u
p
o
n
 w
h
ic
h
 

m
o
re
 d
e
ta
ile
d
 s
tr
a
te
g
ie
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 b
a
s
e
d
 a
n
d
 f
o
r 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
n
e
w
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

Ø
 
T
o
 o
p
ti
m
is
e
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
la
n
d
 a
n
d
 p
ro
p
e
rt
y
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 f
o
r 

d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
, 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 

n
e
e
d
s
 a
n
d
 i
n
te
n
d
e
d
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

 

 
T
h
e
 d
ra
ft
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 A
s
s
e
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
 a
n
d
 

e
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 c
ri
te
ri
a
 f
o
r 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 L
e
e
d
s
 a
s
 a
 

s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 w
ill
 b
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 a
t 
th
e
 A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
G
ro
u
p
 o
n
 5

th
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r.
 

T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
s
s
e
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
s
p
ir
a
ti
o
n
s
/ 
p
re
s
s
u
re
s
 

w
ill
 t
h
e
n
 b
e
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 A
s
s
e
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

P
la
n
. 

T
h
e
 A
s
s
e
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
P
la
n
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 w
ill
 b
e
 c
o
m
b
in
e
d
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 r
e
v
is
e
d
 C
a
p
it
a
l 
In
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
, 
w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 

s
e
t 
o
u
t 
th
e
 c
a
p
it
a
l 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
. 
 

 T
h
e
 A
s
s
e
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 w
ill
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 t
h
e
 C
it
y
 

C
e
n
tr
e
 o
ff
ic
e
 r
a
ti
o
n
a
lis
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
  
T
h
is
 w
ill
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

th
e
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 t
ra
n
s
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a
g
e
n
d
a
 a
n
d
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 P
la
n
 

e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 u
ti
lis
a
ti
o
n
 

le
v
e
ls
 a
n
d
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 o
ff
ic
e
 f
lo
o
r 
s
p
a
c
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
. 
  

 
 

 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
 o
f 
e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 u
s
e
 o
f 
IC
T
/n
e
w
 

te
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
  

 E
x
a
m

p
le

s
 (
n
o
t 
e
x
c
lu

s
iv

e
) 
o
f 
re

c
e
n
t 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
/p

ro
g
re

s
s
 

IC
T
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
it
ia
te
d
 a
 d
e
ta
ile
d
 r
e
v
ie
w
 a
n
d
 r
a
ti
o
n
a
lis
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 

th
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
p
ri
n
te
rs
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
w
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 a
 t
h
o
ro
u
g
h
 p
ilo
t 
e
x
e
rc
is
e
 i
n
 o
n
e
 o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 

la
rg
e
s
t,
 m

u
lt
i 
o
c
c
u
p
a
n
c
y
, 
a
d
m
in
is
tr
a
ti
v
e
 c
e
n
tr
e
s
. 
 T
h
is
 h
a
s
 

s
a
v
e
d
 £
9
6
,0
0
0
 i
n
 0
7
/0
8
 a
n
d
 i
s
 n
o
w
 m

o
v
in
g
 t
o
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
w
id
e
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 p
ro
v
e
n
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ilo
t 

w
it
h
 e
s
ti
m
a
te
d
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
ie
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 r
e
g
io
n
 o
f 
£
5
9
5
,0
0
0
 p
.a
. 

T
h
e
 p
ilo
t 
a
ls
o
 t
a
c
k
le
d
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 o
n
 s
e
c
u
ri
ty
, 
p
ri
v
a
c
y
 a
n
d
 g
re
e
n
 

is
s
u
e
s
 (
b
e
s
t 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 p
ri
n
ti
n
g
, 
w
a
s
te
 a
n
d
 c
o
s
ts
).
 

 A
n
a
ly
s
is
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
s
ts
 a
n
d
 r
is
k
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 

p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
to
 p
a
y
m
e
n
t 
lif
e
c
y
c
le
 (
P
2
P
) 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 

o
f 
a
re
a
s
 w
h
ic
h
, 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 a
s
s
is
ta
n
c
e
 o
f 
b
e
tt
e
r 
IC
T
 s
y
s
te
m
s
 

a
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 h
a
v
e
 d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
d
 

c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
b
le
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
ie
s
. 

Ø
 
S
tr
e
a
m
lin
e
d
 t
h
e
 p
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 b
y
 e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
a
t 

in
v
o
ic
e
s
 w
e
re
 p
a
id
 o
n
 t
h
e
 o
p
ti
m
u
m
 d
a
te
 (
b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 t
o
o
 

m
a
n
y
 i
n
v
o
ic
e
s
 w
e
re
 b
e
in
g
 p
a
id
 i
n
 a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
th
e
 d
u
e
 

d
a
te
).
 T
h
is
 a
lo
n
e
 s
a
v
e
d
 £
5
0
0
,0
0
0
 p
.a
. 

Ø
 
Im

p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 a
 P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
C
a
rd
 (
P
-C
a
rd
) 
s
y
s
te
m
 t
o
 

re
p
la
c
e
 p
a
p
e
r 
b
a
s
e
d
 o
rd
e
rs
, 
lo
w
 v
a
lu
e
 p
u
rc
h
a
s
e
s
 a
n
d
 

p
e
tt
y
 c
a
s
h
. 
P
ro
c
e
s
s
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 o
f 
o
v
e
r 
£
4
3
5
,0
0
0
 C
o
u
n
c
il 

w
id
e
 h
a
s
 a
llo
w
e
d
 s
ta
ff
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 c
e
n
tr
a
l 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
in
g
 

u
n
it
s
 (
£
1
9
5
,0
0
0
 c
a
s
h
a
b
le
) 
a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 r
e
le
a
s
in
g
 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 

in
 d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
. 

 E
le
c
tr
o
n
ic
 i
n
te
rf
a
c
e
s
 w
it
h
 s
u
p
p
lie
rs
 t
o
 p
la
c
e
 o
rd
e
rs
 a
n
d
 

re
c
e
iv
e
 i
n
v
o
ic
e
s
 h
a
s
 s
a
v
e
d
 a
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
£
2
6
,0
0
0
 p
.a
. 
 

 

T
h
e
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
p
re
s
s
u
re
s
 o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
a
re
 s
u
c
h
 t
h
a
t 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 t
h
e
 I
C
T
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
to
 m

a
in
ta
in
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
t 
th
e
 

c
u
rr
e
n
t 
le
v
e
ls
 m

a
y
 n
o
t 
b
e
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
. 
T
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
is
 

w
ill
 m

e
a
n
 a
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 t
o
 m

in
im
is
e
 

th
e
 o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 

s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t.
 T
h
is
 c
o
u
ld
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
w
o
rk
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 a
n
d
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
s
a
v
in
g
s
. 
 

 L
a
c
k
 o
f 
a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
, 
w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 a
b
ili
ty
 t
o
 

b
e
s
t 
e
x
p
lo
it
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 I
C
T
 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
to
 d
e
liv
e
r 

b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
. 

 S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
ri
s
k
 i
s
 s
u
p
p
lie
rs
 a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 

in
c
re
a
s
in
g
 c
o
s
ts
 o
f 
s
u
p
p
lie
s
 a
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

 R
is
k
 o
f 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 n
o
t 
h
a
v
in
g
 t
h
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 c
a
p
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 

to
 m

e
e
t 
o
u
r 
e
x
p
e
c
ta
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
o
u
r 

o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 t
o
 t
im
e
s
c
a
le
s
. 

               

M
o
b
ile
 a
n
d
 F
ix
e
d
 L
in
e
 t
e
n
d
e
r 

T
h
e
 r
e
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
is
 b
e
in
g
 t
e
n
d
e
re
d
 b
y
 E
U
 

p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
ro
u
te
 a
n
d
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
th
a
t 

e
n
a
b
le
s
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
to
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 m

o
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 

n
e
g
o
ti
a
te
 c
h
a
rg
e
s
 o
f 
e
a
c
h
. 
T
h
e
re
 a
re
 f
o
u
r 
p
ri
m
a
ry
 

ta
rg

e
t 
o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 w
e
 w
a
n
t 
to
 d
e
liv
e
r.
 T
h
e
s
e
 a
re
: 

 

•
 

A
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 s
p
e
n
d
: 
a
 t
a
rg
e
t 
o
f 

2
5
%
 p
e
r 
y
e
a
r,
 o
r 
a
p
p
ro
x
im
a
te
ly
 £
2
5
0
k
. 

•
 

A
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
a
n
d
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
 

o
f 
"M

o
b
ile
 P
h
o
n
e
 A
d
m
in
is
tr
a
to
rs
" 
w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
in
 

th
e
 D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
s
. 
 

•
 

T
h
e
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
fi
e
ld
 f
o
rc
e
 e
n
a
b
le
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

fi
e
ld
 f
o
rc
e
 a
u
to
m
a
ti
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 (
m
e
d
iu
m
 t
o
 l
o
n
g
 

te
rm

).
 T
h
e
s
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
ill
 f
a
c
ili
ta
te
 a
n
d
 e
n
a
b
le
 

th
e
 i
n
te
g
ra
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 

a
n
d
 I
C
T
 s
y
s
te
m
s
. 
A
s
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 

n
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
m
o
b
ile
 s
ta
ff
 t
h
e
s
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
ill
 

re
d
u
c
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 t
im
e
, 
re
d
u
c
e
 c
o
s
ts
 a
n
d
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
w
it
h
 c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il.
 E
.g
. 

S
tr
e
e
t 
W
a
rd
e
n
s
, 
S
o
c
ia
l 
W
o
rk
e
rs
, 
S
in
g
le
 

in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

•
 

T
h
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
th
e
 w
o
rk
in
g
 f
ro
m
 a
n
y
w
h
e
re
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 o
ff
e
ri
n
g
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
d
ri
v
e
 t
o
 

e
m
b
ra
c
e
 m

o
re
 f
le
x
ib
le
 w
a
y
s
 o
f 
w
o
rk
, 
W
o
rk
 L
if
e
 

B
a
la
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 C
it
y
 C
e
n
tr
e
 A
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 

P
ro
je
c
t.
 

 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
a
lly
 w
e
 w
ill
 b
e
 l
o
o
k
in
g
 t
o
 e
x
p
a
n
d
 o
n
 m

o
b
ile
 a
n
d
 

re
d
u
c
e
 o
n
 f
ix
e
d
 l
in
e
. 
A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 a
re
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 

fo
r 
s
c
h
o
o
ls
 t
o
 l
e
v
e
ra
g
e
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
a
n
d
 f
o
r 
s
m
a
ll 

o
ff
ic
e
s
 t
o
 u
s
e
 m

o
b
ile
 p
h
o
n
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re
 i
n
te
g
ra
te
d
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il'
s
 c
o
re
 t
e
le
p
h
o
n
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
T
h
is
 w
ill
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 

C
O
IC
T
 

O
n
g
o
in
g
 

 

Page 22



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 a

n
d
 C

e
n
tr

a
l 
F
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n
 A

c
ti
o
n
 T

ra
c
k
e
rs

 Q
u
a
rt

e
r 

2
 2

0
0
8
-0

9
 

 

L
a
s
t 
s
a
v
e
d
 b
y
 L
e
e
d
s
 U
s
e
r 
o
n
 2
2
/1
2
/2
0
0
8
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P
ri
o
ri
ty

 K
e
y
 A

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 

to
 D

a
te

 
R

is
k
s
/C

h
a
ll
e
n
g
e
s
 

K
e
y
 A

c
ti
o
n
s
 

(f
o
r 
n
e
x
t 
6
 m

o
n
th

s
) 

C
O

 
T
im

e
s
c
a
le

 
O

th
e
r 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

T
h
e
 r
e
-n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
o
u
r 
c
u
rr
e
n
t 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
w
it
h
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
u
p
p
lie
rs
 f
o
r 
th
e
 d
e
s
k
to
p
  
P
C
 h
a
rd
w
a
re
 e
s
ta
te
 y
ie
ld
e
d
 a
 

c
a
s
h
a
b
le
 s
a
v
in
g
 (
c
o
s
t 
a
v
o
id
a
n
c
e
 i
n
 t
h
a
t 
th
is
 w
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 s
p
e
n
t 
b
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
) 
o
f 
o
v
e
r 
£
4
8
3
,0
0
0
 p
e
r 
a
n
n
u
m
. 

In
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
a
re
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
‘g
re
e
n
’ 
e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
ie
s
 

(i
n
c
l.
 a
s
s
e
t 
lif
e
c
y
c
le
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t)
 w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 a
ls
o
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
 

to
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
e
n
e
rg
y
 c
o
n
s
u
m
p
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 w
a
s
te
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
ta
rg
e
ts
. 

   

      If
 t
h
e
 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 r
e
v
e
n
u
e
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
, 
a
s
 d
e
ta
ile
d
 

in
 t
h
e
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 t
ra
n
s
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 c
a
s
e
, 
is
 n
o
t 

a
llo
c
a
te
d
 t
o
 I
C
T
, 
d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
tr
a
in
ts
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il,
 t
h
e
n
 w
e
 w
ill
 b
e
 u
n
a
b
le
 t
o
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
is
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 
w
o
rk
. 

   

fi
x
e
d
 l
in
e
 t
e
le
p
h
o
n
y
 s
p
e
n
d
 a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
 s
ta
ff
 w
it
h
 m

o
re
 

fl
e
x
ib
le
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

 T
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
is
 t
h
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
c
o
s
t 
a
v
o
id

a
n
c
e
 i
n
 

fu
tu
re
 a
s
 n
e
w
 s
it
e
s
 a
re
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
. 

 Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
e
-c
o
lla
b
o
ra
ti
o
n
 p
ro
je
c
t 
w
ill
 p
ro
v
id
e
 

th
e
 M

ic
ro
s
o
ft
 p
la
tf
o
rm

 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 b
e
tt
e
r 
c
ro
s
s
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
te
a
m
 w
o
rk
in
g
, 
th
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 i
n
te
g
ra
te
 e
le
c
tr
o
n
ic
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 

a
n
d
 i
d
e
n
ti
ty
 w
it
h
 v
o
ic
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

 

•
 

A
s
s
u
m
in
g
 a
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
o
f 
th
e
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

T
ra
n
s
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 '
 p
a
p
e
r 
th
e
 

fo
llo
w
in
g
 w
ill
 b
e
 i
n
it
ia
te
d
 w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 l
e
a
d
 t
o
 

g
re
a
te
r 
R
e
tu
rn
 o
n
 I
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il.
 

  

 Page 23



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 a

n
d
 C

e
n
tr

a
l 
F
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n
 A

c
ti
o
n
 T

ra
c
k
e
rs

 Q
u
a
rt

e
r 

2
 2

0
0
8
-0

9
 

 

L
a
s
t 
s
a
v
e
d
 b
y
 L
e
e
d
s
 U
s
e
r 
o
n
 2
2
/1
2
/2
0
0
8
 

  L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r:

 C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 T

ra
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 (
C

O
R

T
) 

O
v
e
ra

ll
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

a
ti
n
g
 

 

C
o
d
e
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P

ri
o
ri

ty
 

C
o
n
tr

ib
u
to

ry
 O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 
(C

O
) 

V
fm

-6
a
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
 q
u
a
lit
y
 a
n
d
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 o
f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

C
O
 H
u
m
a
n
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

C
h
ie
f 
P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r 

C
h
ie
f 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
ro
p
e
rt
y
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

C
h
ie
f 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

C
h
ie
f 
O
ff
ic
e
r(
s
) 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
n
d
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

O
v
e
ra

ll
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
P

ro
g
re

s
s
 o

n
 t
h
e
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P

ri
o
ri

ty
 

T
h
e
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 R
e
v
ie
w
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 t
ra
c
k
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 /
 w
o
rk
s
tr
e
a
m
s
 w
it
h
 r
e
a
lis
e
d
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p
ro
je
c
t 
b
o
a
rd
. 
  

Q
2
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 i
s
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
a
lly
 s
e
t 
a
t 
‘A
m
b
e
r’
 d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 r
e
a
lis
a
ti
o
n
 c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
, 
w
h
ic
h
 n
e
e
d
 c
lo
s
e
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 i
n
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 n
e
x
t 
p
h
a
s
e
 

 

R
e
f 

T
it
le

 
B

a
s
e
 

li
n
e
 

T
a
rg

e
t 

Y
e
a
r 

to
 D

a
te

 
R

e
s
u
lt
 

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

 
D

a
ta

 Q
u
a
li
ty

 

B
P
-0
4
 

U
s
e
 o
f 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 s
c
o
re
 

3
 

3
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
In
d
ic
a
to
r 
 

R
e
s
u
lt
 n
o
t 
a
v
a
ila
b
le
 u
n
ti
l 
Q
3
 

N
o
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 

w
it
h
 d
a
ta
 

B
P
-3
2
  

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
T
ra
v
e
l 
S
c
o
re
 

Im
p
 W

e
ll 

Im
p
 W

e
ll 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
in
d
ic
a
to
r 
 

R
e
s
u
lt
 d
u
e
 Q
4
 

N
o
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 

w
it
h
 d
a
ta
 

 Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P
ri
o
ri
ty

 K
e
y
 A

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 

to
 D

a
te

 
R

is
k
s
/C

h
a
ll
e
n
g
e
s
 

K
e
y
 A

c
ti
o
n
s
 

(f
o
r 
n
e
x
t 
6
 m

o
n
th

s
) 

C
O

 
T
im

e
s
c
a
le

 
O

th
e
r 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

D
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
c
u
rr
e
n
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 i
s
 

c
lo
s
e
ly
 m

o
n
it
o
re
d
 a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 i
ts
 B
e
n
e
fi
ts
 

R
e
a
lis
a
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 

 N
e
w
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 s
tr
u
c
tu
re
s
 a
g
re
e
d
 a
n
d
 a
lig
n
e
d
 (
H
R
, 

F
in
a
n
c
e
, 
C
O
R
s
),
 w
it
h
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 p
o
s
ts
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 

s
c
a
le
 e
c
o
n
o
m
ie
s
. 
  

 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 C
e
n
tr
e
 e
n
a
c
te
d
 a
n
d
 r
e
a
lis
in
g
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
ie
s
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 s
c
a
le
 e
c
o
n
o
m
ie
s
 a
n
d
 m

o
re
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 –
 

e
g
 e
-r
e
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 a
d
v
e
rt
is
in
g
 

 M
o
re
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 c
re
d
it
o
rs
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 a
s
s
is
ti
n
g
 i
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
in
g
 

a
n
d
 r
e
a
lis
in
g
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
ie
s
 i
n
 o
rd
e
ri
n
g
 g
o
o
d
s
 a
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

 S
tr
e
a
m
lin
e
d
 p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 p
ro
c
u
re
 t
o
 

p
a
y
 a
n
d
 r
o
llo
u
t 
o
f 
P
-c
a
rd
s
 r
e
a
lis
in
g
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

im
p
ro
v
e
d
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 
o
f 
p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 

In
te
rf
a
c
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 P
la
n
 

‘t
ra
n
s
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
’ 
w
o
rk
s
tr
e
a
m
, 
is
 

im
p
a
c
ti
n
g
 o
n
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 /
 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

 In
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
in
 o
th
e
r 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
m
a
y
 

im
p
e
d
e
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
, 

 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 T
ra
n
s
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
 

w
o
rk
s
tr
e
a
m
s
 m

a
y
 d
o
u
b
le
 c
o
u
n
t 
e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
ie
s
  

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
 o
f 
tr
a
n
s
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
o
rk
s
tr
e
a
m
 a
n
d
 i
ts
 i
m
p
a
c
t.
 

 In
te
rf
a
c
e
 w
it
h
 o
th
e
r 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 a
n
d
 w
o
rk
s
tr
e
a
m
s
 t
o
 b
e
 

fu
lly
 u
n
d
e
rs
to
o
d
 t
o
 a
v
o
id
 d
u
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 b
e
in
g
 

d
o
u
b
le
 c
o
u
n
te
d
 

C
O
R
T
 

  A
ll 
R
O
s
 

Q
3
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 

 

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 S
S
R
 b
e
in
g
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 a
n
d
 r
e
-

a
lig
n
e
d
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 c
o
h
e
re
n
c
e
 

D
e
c
is
io
n
s
 b
e
in
g
 t
a
k
e
n
 o
u
ts
id
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 o
f 
th
e
 S
S
R
 m

a
y
 a
ff
e
c
t 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 

re
a
lis
a
ti
o
n
 

A
u
d
it
 a
n
d
 R
is
k
 c
o
n
d
u
c
ti
n
g
 r
e
v
ie
w
 t
o
 b
ri
n
g
 b
a
c
k
 t
o
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 R
e
v
ie
w
 B
o
a
rd
 f
o
r 
d
e
c
is
io
n
 

 H
e
a
lt
h
 c
h
e
c
k
 r
e
v
ie
w
 t
o
 b
e
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 b
y
 A
u
d
it
o
rs
, 

(K
P
M
G
) 
to
 a
s
s
e
s
s
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 a
n
d
 n
e
x
t 
s
te
p
s
 

C
O
 

A
u
d
it
 &
 

R
is
k
 

 C
O
R
T
 

T
o
 b
e
 c
o
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 

Q
3
 

 

C
re

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

ro
p
e
rt

y
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
S
e
rv

ic
e
 

a
n
d
 d

e
li
v
e
ry

 o
f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
ie

s
 

 T
h
e
 n
e
w
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 f
o
r 
C
P
M
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
lly
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
. 
G
o
o
d
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 m

a
d
e
 o
n
 

in
tr
o
d
u
c
in
g
 t
h
e
 n
e
w
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 l
a
n
d
lo
rd
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 

w
o
rk
in
g
 c
lo
s
e
ly
 w
it
h
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 A
s
s
e
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
U
n
it
. 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 m

a
d
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
o
rd
in
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 o
f 

b
u
ild
in
g
 m

a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 p
ro
je
c
ts
. 

In
s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
im
p
ro
v
e
d
 p
ro
p
e
rt
y
 

m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 d
e
a
l 
w
it
h
 b
a
c
k
lo
g
. 
C
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 t
o
 

im
p
ro
v
e
 F
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 a
n
d
 

d
e
liv
e
r 
e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
ie
s
. 
C
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 s
tr
u
c
tu
re
s
 i
n
 A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
re
 b
e
in
g
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 t
o
 m

a
tc
h
 n
e
w
 

c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 l
a
n
d
lo
rd
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
. 
A
 m

o
re
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 

a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 c
h
a
n
g
in
g
 t
h
e
 w
o
rk
p
la
c
e
 i
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 a
n
d
 

is
 s
ta
rt
in
g
 t
o
 e
m
e
rg
e
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 o
ff
ic
e
 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
je
c
t.
 

R
a
ti
o
n
a
lis
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 a
n
d
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 f
ro
m
 o
ld
 

d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
o
lid
a
ti
n
g
 o
n
 b
e
s
t 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 u
s
in
g
 I
S
O
 

Q
u
a
lit
y
 A
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 r
e
g
im
e
. 
 

S
e
tt
in
g
 n
e
w
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
c
u
lt
u
re
 i
n
 C
P
M
. 
 

 D
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 a
n
d
 d
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 n
e
w
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 f
o
r 

p
ro
p
e
rt
y
 a
n
d
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
w
it
h
 S
A
M
. 
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
n
e
w
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 a
s
s
e
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
 

w
it
h
 S
A
M
. 
 

 P
ro
g
re
s
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 o
ff
ic
e
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 r
e
v
ie
w
. 

C
h
ie
f 

O
ff
ic
e
r 

C
P
M
 

Q
3
/4
 

 

Page 24



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 a

n
d
 C

e
n
tr

a
l 
F
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n
 A

c
ti
o
n
 T

ra
c
k
e
rs

 Q
u
a
rt

e
r 

2
 2

0
0
8
-0

9
 

 

L
a
s
t 
s
a
v
e
d
 b
y
 L
e
e
d
s
 U
s
e
r 
o
n
 2
2
/1
2
/2
0
0
8
 

 Page 25



Page 26

This page is intentionally left blank



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 a

n
d
 C

e
n
tr

a
l 
F
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n
 A

c
ti
o
n
 T

ra
c
k
e
rs

 Q
u
a
rt

e
r 

2
 2

0
0
8
-0

9
  

 

1
 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r:

 C
h
ie

f 
C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

(C
C

S
O

) 
O

v
e
ra

ll
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

a
ti
n
g
 

 

C
o
d
e
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P

ri
o
ri

ty
 

C
o
n
tr

ib
u
to

ry
 O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 
(C

O
) 

IO
-2
a
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
 o
u
r 
u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
o
u
r 
c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 -
 B
IG

 I
D
E
A
 

IO
-2
b
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
 c
h
o
ic
e
 s
o
 c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 c
a
n
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
 m

o
re
 c
o
n
v
e
n
ie
n
t 
w
a
y
s
 

IO
-2
c
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
 o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 

IO
-2
d
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
e
x
p
e
c
ta
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 d
e
liv
e
r 
o
n
 o
u
r 
p
ro
m
is
e
s
 

IO
-2
e
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 j
o
in
e
d
 u
p
 a
n
d
 p
e
rs
o
n
 c
e
n
tr
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 d
e
s
ig
n
e
d
 a
ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
o
u
r 
c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 

IO
-2
f 

E
n
h
a
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 l
in
k
s
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 f
ro
n
t 
a
n
d
 b
a
c
k
 o
ff
ic
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
e
x
c
e
lle
n
t 
e
n
d
-t
o
-e
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
, 
K
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
(H

IK
M
) 

A
c
ti
n
g
 C
h
ie
f 
IC
T
 O

ff
ic
e
r 
(I
C
T
) 

C
h
ie
f 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 T
ra
n
s
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 B
o
a
rd
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
 (
C
S
B
) 

C
h
ie
f 
O
ff
ic
e
rs
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 &
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 

O
v
e
ra

ll
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
P

ro
g
re

s
s
 o

n
 t
h
e
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P

ri
o
ri

ty
 

L
e
e
d
s
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 m

a
d
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
b
le
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
a
g
e
n
d
a
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 p
a
s
t 
s
ix
 y
e
a
rs
, 
d
ra
w
in
g
 o
n
 t
h
e
 A
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 B
e
s
t 
V
a
lu
e
 R

e
v
ie
w
 (
2
0
0
2
-3
) 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 C

u
s
to
m
e
r 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 (
2
0
0
5
-8
).
  
W
e
 h
a
v
e
 r
e
a
lis
e
d
 t
a
n
g
ib
le
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 

th
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
ili
ty
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 c
h
a
n
n
e
ls
, 
a
n
d
 i
t 
is
 e
v
id
e
n
t 
th
a
t 
o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
re
 i
n
c
re
a
s
in
g
ly
 a
w
a
re
 o
f 
a
n
d
 f
o
c
u
s
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
. 
 I
n
 a
d
d
it
io
n
, 
m
a
jo
r 
in
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 t
h
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 c
o
n
ta
c
t 
c
e
n
tr
e
 i
n
 2
0
0
6
, 
h
a
v
e
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 a
 s
te
p
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 t
e
rm

s
 o
f 
im

p
ro
v
e
d
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 f
o
r 
c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
. 
 P
u
tt
in
g
 c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 f
ir
s
t 
re
m
a
in
s
 a
 k
e
y
 v
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il,
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 P
la
n
 2
0
0
8
-1
1
 r
e
in
fo
rc
e
s
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
t 
to
 t
h
is
 

a
g
e
n
d
a
. 

 D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
s
 a
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
re
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 f
o
r 
h
e
lp
in
g
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
e
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
re
la
te
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
, 
d
ri
v
e
n
 b
y
 C

u
s
to
m
e
r 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 B
o
a
rd
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 m

u
c
h
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 o
f 
g
o
o
d
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il.
  
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
ly
, 
th
e
 I
n
te
lli
g
e
n
t 

O
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 h
a
s
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
tr
a
n
s
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
, 
th
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 U

C
M
I 
(U

n
iv
e
rs
a
l 
C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
M
a
s
te
r 
In
d
e
x
) 
a
n
d
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 I
n
te
lli
g
e
n
c
e
 p
ro
je
c
ts
. 
 I
n
 a
d
d
it
io
n
, 
a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
re
 a
ls
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
, 
w
h
ic
h
 h
a
v
e
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
to
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 f
o
r 
c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
; 
e
x
a
m
p
le
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 t
h
e
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 S
o
lu
ti
o
n
s
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 p
e
rs
o
n
a
lis
a
ti
o
n
 a
g
e
n
d
a
 (
m
o
re
 d
e
ta
il 
o
n
 o
th
e
r 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
).
  
H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 w

h
ile

 t
h
e
re
 a
re
 m

a
n
y
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
, 
th
e
re
 r
e
m
a
in
s
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
in
c
o
n
s
is
te
n
c
y
 a
n
d
 l
a
c
k
 o
f 
c
o
-o
rd
in
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 j
o
in
e
d
-u
p
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il.
  
T
h
e
 Q

2
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 s
h
o
w
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 i
m
p
ro
v
in
g
 o
n
 t
e
le
p
h
o
n
e
 a
n
s
w
e
r 

ra
te
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
e
lf
-s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 a
ro
u
n
d
 1
0
%
 u
p
 o
n
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r.
  
T
h
e
re
 a
re
 s
ti
ll 
im

p
o
rt
a
n
t 
g
a
p
s
 i
n
 a
c
c
e
s
s
, 
c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
re
la
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 w
h
e
re
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
, 
n
o
t 
ju
s
t 
to
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 n
e
w
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

n
e
x
t 
th
re
e
-y
e
a
r 
p
e
ri
o
d
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 r
e
d
u
c
in
g
 a
v
o
id
a
b
le
 c
o
n
ta
c
t,
 b
u
t 
a
ls
o
 t
o
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 s
o
m
e
 f
u
n
d
a
m
e
n
ta
l 
s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 o
f 
h
a
n
d
lin
g
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
c
o
n
ta
c
t 
a
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
in
g
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
e
x
p
e
c
ta
ti
o
n
s
. 
 

 T
h
is
 a
c
ti
o
n
 t
ra
c
k
e
r 
b
a
s
e
lin
e
s
 t
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
s
it
u
a
ti
o
n
, 
d
ra
w
in
g
 o
n
 n
a
m
e
d
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 v
ie
w
s
 a
s
 t
o
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
, 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
. 
T
h
e
 C

h
ie
f 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
o
f 
R
e
v
e
n
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 B
e
n
e
fi
ts
 h
a
s
 a
ls
o
 b
e
e
n
 a
s
k
e
d
 t
o
 l
e
a
d
 a
 s
u
b
-g
ro
u
p
 f
ro
m
 C

u
s
to
m
e
r 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 B
o
a
rd
 

to
 b
u
ild
 o
n
 t
h
is
 b
y
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 a
 s
e
t 
o
f 
p
ri
n
c
ip
le
s
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
re
la
ti
o
n
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il.
  
T
h
e
 f
o
c
u
s
 o
f 
th
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 a
 c
o
o
rd
in
a
te
d
 ‘
O
n
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 i
s
 a
g
re
e
d
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
, 
a
llo

w
in
g
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
to
 d
e
liv
e
r 
a
 m

o
re
 c
o
h
e
re
n
t 
a
n
d
 

c
o
lle
c
ti
v
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 o
u
r 
c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
re
la
te
d
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
a
lis
e
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 f
o
r 
c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
. 
 

R
e
f 

T
it
le

 
B

a
s
e
 

li
n
e
 

T
a
rg

e
t 

Y
e
a
r 

to
 D

a
te

 R
e
s
u
lt
 

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

 
D

a
ta

 Q
u
a
li
ty

 

N
I 
1
4
 

A
v
o
id
a
b
le
 c
o
n
ta
c
t 

N
/A
 

B
a
s
e
lin

e
 t
o
 

b
e
 s
e
t 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
In
d
ic
a
to
r 

R
e
s
u
lt
s
 d
u
e
 Q

4
 

U
n
d
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

B
P
-0
7
 

O
v
e
ra
ll 
R
e
s
id
e
n
t 
S
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 

6
1
%
 

N
/A
 

N
o
 S
u
rv
e
y
 

N
e
x
t 
R
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 S
u
rv
e
y
 2
0
0
9
/1
0
 

N
o
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 

w
it
h
 d
a
ta
 

B
P
-0
8
 

V
o
lu
m
e
 t
ra
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 s
e
lf
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

4
6
7
0
5
4
 

5
1
3
0
0
0
 

2
8
8
,3
2
5
 

T
h
e
 s
e
c
o
n
d
 q
u
a
rt
e
r 
fi
g
u
re
 o
f 
1
5
6
,9
6
5
 i
s
 s
lig
h
tl
y
 h
ig
h
e
r 
th
a
n
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
q
u
a
rt
e
r,
 a
n
d
 s
u
g
g
e
s
ts
 

th
a
t 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
is
 b
ro
a
d
ly
 o
n
 t
a
rg
e
t 
to
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
ts
 v
o
lu
m
e
 o
f 
s
e
lf
-s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
ra
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 b
y
 

1
0
%
. 
 

 T
h
e
 m

a
in
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
to
rs
 t
o
 t
h
e
 t
o
ta
l 
w
e
re
 L
ib
ra
ri
e
s
 (
6
0
.3
6
3
) 
a
n
d
 P
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 (
6
1
,2
2
1
),
 w

it
h
 

V
a
c
a
n
c
ie
s
 (
1
5
,9
3
8
) 
a
n
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 (
1
5
,6
0
4
) 
a
ls
o
 p
ro
v
id
in
g
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
v
o
lu
m
e
s
. 
S
o
m
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
h
ic
h
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
t 
m
a
d
e
 a
 r
e
tu
rn
 f
o
r 
th
is
 q
u
a
rt
e
r,
 f
o
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
 E
le
c
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
a
re
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 s
e
a
s
o
n
a
l 
v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
s
 a
n
d
 w

o
u
ld
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 b
e
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 r
e
p
o
rt
 a
 

s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
le
v
e
l 
o
f 
s
e
lf
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
ra
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 q
u
a
rt
e
rs
 3
 &
 4
. 
 I
n
 a
d
d
it
io
n
, 
n
e
w
 s
e
lf
-s
e
rv
ic
e
 

s
tr
e
a
m
s
 i
n
 H
o
u
s
in
g
, 
S
tr
e
e
ts
c
e
n
e
 a
n
d
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 a
re
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 

o
v
e
ra
ll 
c
o
u
n
c
il 
fi
g
u
re
 b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 y
e
a
r 
e
n
d
. 

N
o
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 

w
it
h
 d
a
ta
 

B
P
-0
9
 

%
 c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
 1
5
 d
a
y
s
  

6
9
%
 

7
6
%
 

6
5
.8
%
 

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 a
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 f
ig
u
re
 o
f 
6
1
.6
2
%
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 w

it
h
in
 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
. 
 T
h
is
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 s
h
o
w
s
 a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1
 

N
o
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 

w
it
h
 d
a
ta
 

Page 27



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 a

n
d
 C

e
n
tr

a
l 
F
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n
 A

c
ti
o
n
 T

ra
c
k
e
rs

 Q
u
a
rt

e
r 

2
 2

0
0
8
-0

9
  

 

2
 

(N
B
 A
d
u
lt
 a
n
d
 C

h
ild
re
n
's
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
re
 m

e
a
s
u
re
d
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
e
ir
 o
w
n
 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
 o
f 
1
0
 w

o
rk
in
g
 d
a
y
s
. 
 F
o
r 
th
is
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r,
 t
h
e
 

o
v
e
ra
ll 
re
s
u
lt
 i
s
 b
ro
k
e
n
 d
o
w
n
 b
y
 D

e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t,
 r
a
th
e
r 
th
a
n
 D

ir
e
c
to
ra
te
, 

d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 w
it
h
in
 C

R
M
-L
e
e
d
s
.)
 

(p
re
d
ic
te
d
 y
e
a
r 
e
n
d
 

p
o
s
it
io
n
) 

(7
1
%
),
 a
n
d
 s
u
g
g
e
s
ts
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
is
 n
o
t 
lik
e
ly
 t
o
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 o
u
r 
ta
rg
e
t 
o
f 
7
6
%
 b
y
 t
h
e
 y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
. 

 C
o
n
c
e
rn
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 l
o
w
 p
e
rf
o
rm

in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 f
o
c
u
s
 r
e
m
a
in
in
g
 o
n
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
&
 N

e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 (
Q
2
 8
%
),
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 (
Q
2
 1
2
%
),
 E
N
E
H
L
 (
Q
2
 4
1
%
),
 

L
e
a
rn
in
g
 &
 L
e
is
u
re
 (
Q
2
 4
9
%
).
 A
ir
e
 V
a
lle

y
 a
n
d
 W

N
W
 H
o
m
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
tl
y
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 

th
e
ir
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t
h
is
 y
e
a
r,
 w
h
ile
 n
o
t 
y
e
t 
re
a
c
h
in
g
 o
u
r 
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 t
a
rg
e
t.
 W

o
rk
 w
it
h
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 w
ill
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 v
ia
 C

u
s
to
m
e
r 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 B
o
a
rd
. 

 

B
P
-1
0
 

%
 l
e
tt
e
rs
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
 1
0
 d
a
y
s
 

N
/A
 

7
5
%
 

8
2
.3
%
 

T
h
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 f
ig
u
re
 f
o
r 
th
is
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
is
 a
b
o
v
e
 t
a
rg
e
t,
 h
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 t
h
is
 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
s
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 

in
c
o
m
p
le
te
 d
a
ta
 a
n
d
 a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 i
n
 Q

2
 

c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 t
o
 Q

1
 w

e
 a
re
 s
ti
ll 
n
o
t 
a
b
le
 t
o
 a
c
c
u
ra
te
ly
 p
re
d
ic
t 
a
 y
e
a
r 
e
n
d
 p
o
s
it
io
n
 a
t 
th
is
 p
o
in
t.
. 

 T
h
is
 i
s
s
u
e
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 c
lo
s
e
ly
 m

o
n
it
o
re
d
 b
y
 C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 B
o
a
rd
 a
n
d
 a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 
o
n
-

g
o
in
g
 w

o
rk
 s
e
v
e
ra
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
re
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 a
n
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 a
n
d
 s
h
o
u
ld
 r
e
p
o
rt
 i
n
 q
u
a
rt
e
rs
 3
 &
 

4
 e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 a
 f
u
lle
r 
p
ic
tu
re
. 
 

 

C
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 -
 

in
c
o
m
p
le
te
 

d
a
ta
 

 

B
P
-1
1
 

%
 e
m
a
ils
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
 1
0
 d
a
y
s
 

N
/A
 

7
5
%
 

9
8
.2
%
 

T
h
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 f
ig
u
re
 f
o
r 
th
is
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
is
 a
b
o
v
e
 t
a
rg
e
t,
 h
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 t
h
is
 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
s
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 

in
c
o
m
p
le
te
 d
a
ta
 a
n
d
 a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 i
n
 Q

2
 

c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 t
o
 Q

1
 w

e
 a
re
 s
ti
ll 
n
o
t 
a
b
le
 t
o
 a
c
c
u
ra
te
ly
 p
re
d
ic
t 
a
 y
e
a
r 
e
n
d
 p
o
s
it
io
n
 a
t 
th
is
 p
o
in
t.
 

 T
h
is
 i
s
s
u
e
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 c
lo
s
e
ly
 m

o
n
it
o
re
d
 b
y
 C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 B
o
a
rd
 a
n
d
 a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 
o
n
-

g
o
in
g
 w

o
rk
 s
e
v
e
ra
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
re
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 a
n
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 a
n
d
 s
h
o
u
ld
 r
e
p
o
rt
 i
n
 q
u
a
rt
e
rs
 3
 &
 

4
 e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 a
 f
u
lle
r 
p
ic
tu
re
. 
 

 

C
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 -
 

in
c
o
m
p
le
te
 

d
a
ta
 

 

B
P
-1
2
 

%
 c
a
lls
 a
n
s
w
e
re
d
 a
s
 a
 p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 o
f 
c
a
lls
 o
ff
e
re
d
 

7
8
%
 

8
0
%
 

8
4
.5
%
 

T
h
e
re
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 a
n
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 t
h
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 p
ro
v
id
in
g
 a
 r
e
tu
rn
 

fo
r 
th
is
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
fr
o
m
 8
2
%
 f
o
r 
q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1
 t
o
 8
4
.5
%
 f
o
r 
q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2
, 
a
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 o
n
 7
8
%
 i
n
 

q
u
a
rt
e
r 
4
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r.
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
v
e
ry
 g
o
o
d
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
a
n
d
 o
n
 t
ra
c
k
 t
o
 e
x
c
e
e
d
 

s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
tl
y
 o
u
r 
y
e
a
r 
e
n
d
 t
a
rg
e
t 
a
t 
y
e
a
r 
e
n
d
. 

 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h
a
s
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
tl
y
 i
n
 R

e
g
is
tr
a
rs
 f
ro
m
 7
%
 i
n
 Q

1
 t
o
 8
5
%
 i
n
 Q

2
 

fo
llo
w
in
g
 m

ig
ra
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
ta
c
t 
c
e
n
tr
e
. 
P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 r
e
m
a
in
s
 h
ig
h
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 m

a
jo
ri
ty
 o
f 

p
ro
m
o
te
d
 t
e
le
p
h
o
n
e
 l
in
e
s
, 
h
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo

w
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
t 
y
e
t 
re
a
c
h
e
d
 t
a
rg
e
t 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
T
a
x
i 
L
ic
e
n
s
in
g
 (
Q
1
 &
 Q

2
 -
 2
4
%
) 
a
n
d
 S
c
h
o
o
l 
A
d
m
is
s
io
n
s
 (
Q
2
 -
 7
1
%
).
 

 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 d
ili
g
e
n
t 
in
 p
ro
v
id
in
g
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 r
e
tu
rn
s
 a
n
d
 o
n
ly
 t
h
re
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
t 

p
ro
v
id
e
d
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 t
h
is
 q
u
a
rt
e
r:
 C
h
ild
re
n
's
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 (
p
la
n
s
 a
re
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 t
o
 r
e
p
o
rt
 i
n
 f
u
tu
re
 

q
u
a
rt
e
rs
);
 C
it
y
 D

e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
- 
L
e
e
d
s
 C
a
rd
; 
a
n
d
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ts
 &
 N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 -
 

P
a
rk
in
g
. 
 

 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
4
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 w
ill
 f
o
rm

 t
h
e
 b
a
s
is
 f
o
r 
o
u
r 
y
e
a
r 
e
n
d
 f
ig
u
re
, 
s
o
 i
t 
is
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
th
a
t 

th
is
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
is
 s
u
s
ta
in
e
d
. 

 

S
o
m
e
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 w

it
h
 

d
a
ta
 

B
P
-1
3
 

%
 s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 w

it
h
 c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 h
a
n
d
lin
g
 

6
2
%
 

N
/A
 

N
o
 S
u
rv
e
y
 

N
e
x
t 
R
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 S
u
rv
e
y
 2
0
0
9
/1
0
 

N
o
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 

w
it
h
 d
a
ta
 

 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P
ri
o
ri
ty

 K
e
y
 A

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 

to
 D

a
te

 
R

is
k
s
/C

h
a
ll
e
n
g
e
s
 

K
e
y
 A

c
ti
o
n
s
 

(f
o
r 
n
e
x
t 
6
 m

o
n
th

s
) 

C
O

 
T
im

e
s
c
a
le

 
O

th
e
r 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
 o
u
r 
u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
o
u
r 
c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 -
 B
IG

 I
D
E
A
 

 M
o
s
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 s
o
m
e
 m

e
th
o
d
 o
f 
o
b
ta
in
in
g
 a
n
d
 s
to
ri
n
g
 

d
a
ta
 a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
ir
 c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
, 
th
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
C
R
M
 o
r 
o
th
e
r 

IC
T
 s
y
s
te
m
s
. 
In
 a
d
d
it
io
n
, 
c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 g
a
th
e
re
d
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 e
x
e
rc
is
e
s
. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 t
h
is
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 

o
ft
e
n
 n
o
t 
u
ti
lis
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 f
u
lle

s
t 
e
x
te
n
t;
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
, 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 

to
 m

a
rk
e
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 o
r 
ta
rg
e
t 
im

p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
re
 o
ft
e
n
 m

is
s
e
d
. 
 

 S
o
m
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 r
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
 t
h
is
 a
s
 a
 k
e
y
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 g
o
in
g
 f
o
rw

a
rd
, 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
re
 a
re
 e
x
a
m
p
le
s
 o
f 
s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
g
o
o
d
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
, 
w
h
ic
h
 

a
re
 d
e
ta
ile

d
 i
n
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 I
. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 t
h
is
 w

o
rk
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 p
ri
m
a
ri
ly
 a
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 l
e
v
e
l,
 a
n
d
 w

ill
 n
o
t 
d
e
liv
e
r 
a
 

o
n
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
. 
 

 

T
h
e
 c
o
n
c
e
p
t 
o
f 
a
 ‘
s
in
g
le
 v
ie
w
 o
f 
th
e
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r’
 i
s
 y
e
t 

to
 b
e
 f
u
lly
 d
e
fi
n
e
d
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
te
d
 w

id
e
ly
, 
a
n
d
 

th
e
re
 i
s
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 o
f 
a
 l
a
c
k
 o
f 
a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 

u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
th
is
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
. 
 

 M
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 h
a
v
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 a
 l
a
c
k
 o
f 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 t
o
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 t
h
is
 w

o
rk
, 
in
 t
e
rm

s
 o
f 
a
n
a
ly
s
in
g
 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 h
e
ld
, 
o
r 
in
 i
n
s
ti
tu
ti
n
g
 n
e
w
 d
a
ta
 

c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 s
e
g
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
. 
 

 F
a
ilu
re
 t
o
 i
n
te
g
ra
te
 I
C
T
 s
y
s
te
m
s
 t
o
 a
llo
w
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

a
b
o
u
t 
c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 t
o
 b
e
 s
h
a
re
d
 a
n
d
 a
n
a
ly
s
e
d
, 

  F
a
ilu
re
 t
o
 a
d
d
re
s
s
 d
a
ta
 p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 f
u
lly
, 

le
a
d
in
g
 t
o
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
le
g
a
l 
is
s
u
e
s
. 
  

 K
e
y
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 g
o
in
g
 f
o
rw

a
rd
 w

ill
 b
e
 t
o
: 

•
 

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 a
 c
o
m
m
o
n
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
th
is
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
, 
a
n
d
 

w
h
a
t 
p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 c
a
n
 b
e
 r
e
a
lis
e
d
 f
ro
m
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 

.c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
in
s
ig
h
t.
 

•
 

E
n
s
u
re
 a
 ‘
O
n
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 i
s
 a
g
re
e
d
 a
n
d
 

a
d
o
p
te
d
. 

•
 

A
g
re
e
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 m

e
a
s
u
re
s
, 
a
n
d
 h
o
w
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
in
s
ig
h
t 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 u
s
e
d
. 

•
 

C
h
a
lle

n
g
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
ir
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 

c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
, 
th
e
ir
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 h
o
w
 t
h
e
y
 

c
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
 t
o
 t
h
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
. 
 

 

C
C
S
O
 

H
IK
M
 

C
S
B
 

              

     

Page 28



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 a

n
d
 C

e
n
tr

a
l 
F
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n
 A

c
ti
o
n
 T

ra
c
k
e
rs

 Q
u
a
rt

e
r 

2
 2

0
0
8
-0

9
  

 

3
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P
ri
o
ri
ty

 K
e
y
 A

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 

to
 D

a
te

 
R

is
k
s
/C

h
a
ll
e
n
g
e
s
 

K
e
y
 A

c
ti
o
n
s
 

(f
o
r 
n
e
x
t 
6
 m

o
n
th

s
) 

C
O

 
T
im

e
s
c
a
le

 
O

th
e
r 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

 If
 t
h
e
s
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a
re
 n
o
t 
re
s
o
lv
e
d
, 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
w
ill
 n
o
t 

b
e
 a
b
le
 t
o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 a
 w

a
y
 

th
a
t 
e
n
a
b
le
s
 a
 o
n
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
o
u
r 

c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
. 
 

 

In
c
re
a
s
e
 c
h
o
ic
e
 s
o
 c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 c
a
n
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
 m

o
re
 

c
o
n
v
e
n
ie
n
t 
w
a
y
s
 

 T
h
e
 m

a
jo
ri
ty
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
s
 h
a
v
e
 r
e
a
lis
e
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 

re
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 t
h
is
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 l
a
s
t 
fi
v
e
 y
e
a
rs
, 
m
a
in
ly
 a
s
 a
 

re
s
u
lt
 o
f 
th
e
 e
-g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
a
g
e
n
d
a
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 t
ra
n
s
it
io
n
in
g
 o
f 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 c
o
n
ta
c
t 
c
e
n
tr
e
. 
M
o
s
t 
a
re
a
s
 h
a
v
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 e
m
a
il 
a
n
d
 o
n
lin
e
 a
c
c
e
s
s
, 
fo
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
 i
n
 t
e
rm

s
 o
f 

o
n
lin
e
 f
o
rm

s
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 t
h
e
 w

e
b
s
it
e
; 
in
 

a
d
d
it
io
n
, 
te
le
p
h
o
n
e
 a
n
s
w
e
r 
ra
te
s
 h
a
v
e
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
tl
y
 

a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 a
s
 a
 w

h
o
le
. 
 

 H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 t
h
e
re
 r
e
m
a
in
s
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
to
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
 i
n
 t
h
is
 

a
re
a
, 
in
 t
e
rm

s
 o
f 
e
x
te
n
d
in
g
 o
n
lin
e
 p
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 b
o
o
k
in
g
 

fa
c
ili
ti
e
s
, 
im

p
le
m
e
n
ti
n
g
 f
u
lly
 t
ra
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
a
l 
w
e
b
 f
o
rm

s
 a
n
d
 

p
ro
v
id
in
g
 m

o
re
 i
n
te
ra
c
ti
v
e
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
a
lit
y
 o
n
 t
h
e
 w
e
b
s
it
e
. 

 

T
h
e
re
 i
s
 i
n
 m

a
n
y
 a
re
a
s
 a
 t
ra
d
e
 o
ff
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 

im
p
ro
v
in
g
 a
n
d
 w

id
e
n
in
g
 c
h
o
ic
e
 a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
in
g
 v
a
lu
e
 

fo
r 
m
o
n
e
y
. 
 T
h
is
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 o
n
 t
h
e
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 c
a
s
e
 f
o
r 

in
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
p
ro
je
c
ts
. 

 M
a
jo
r 
IC

T
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
w
o
rk
 c
a
n
 h
a
v
e
 l
o
n
g
 l
e
a
d
 i
n
 

ti
m
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 l
a
c
k
 o
f 
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 i
n
p
u
t 
in
to
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 r
e
q
u
e
s
ts
. 
 

  

K
e
y
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 g
o
in
g
 f
o
rw

a
rd
 w

ill
 b
e
 t
o
: 

•
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
n
d
 a
g
re
e
 a
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
ro
u
n
d
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
in
g
 

c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 t
o
 m

o
v
e
 t
o
 m

o
re
 c
o
n
v
e
n
ie
n
t 
a
n
d
 c
h
e
a
p
e
r 

c
h
a
n
n
e
ls
 w
h
e
re
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
. 
 T
h
is
 w

ill
 b
e
 k
e
y
 t
o
 

re
a
lis
in
g
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
ie
s
. 

•
 

E
le
c
tr
o
n
ic
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 D

e
liv
e
ry
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 

o
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
e
lf
-s
e
rv
ic
e
. 

•
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
n
 e
x
c
e
lle

n
t 
w
e
b
s
it
e
. 

 

C
C
S
O
 

IC
T
, 
C
S
B
 

        

 

Im
p
ro
v
e
 o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
  

 T
h
e
 m

a
jo
ri
ty
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 p
e
ri
o
d
ic
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

e
x
e
rc
is
e
s
, 
m
a
in
ly
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
o
rm

 o
f 
p
a
p
e
r-
b
a
s
e
d
 s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 

s
u
rv
e
y
s
. 
In
 a
d
d
it
io
n
, 
th
e
re
 i
s
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
s
o
m
e
 a
re
a
s
 

s
u
p
p
le
m
e
n
t 
th
is
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
e
le
p
h
o
n
e
 s
u
rv
e
y
s
, 
fo
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 a
n
d
 

o
n
lin
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
, 
p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 i
n
 t
e
rm

s
 o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 a
ro
u
n
d
 

m
a
jo
r 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
 o
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
. 
 

 H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 t
h
e
re
 r
e
m
a
in
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
to
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
is
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
, 
p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 i
n
 e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
a
t 
c
u
s
to
m
e
r 

fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 i
s
 u
ti
lis
e
d
 t
o
 i
ts
 f
u
lle
s
t 
e
x
te
n
t,
 a
n
d
 i
n
fo
rm

s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

p
la
n
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
w
o
rk
. 
 

 

T
h
e
re
 a
re
 c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
s
 i
n
 t
e
rm

s
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 a
b
ili
ty
 

to
 t
ra
n
s
la
te
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 t
o
 c
o
u
n
c
il-

w
id
e
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
a
g
e
n
d
a
, 
u
s
in
g
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 

fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
. 
 T
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p
o
rt
a
l 
T
a
lk
in
g
 P
o
in
t 

m
a
y
 b
e
 a
 l
e
v
e
r 
fo
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t.
 

 W
e
 a
ls
o
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 o
u
r 

p
e
rc
e
p
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 r
e
p
u
ta
ti
o
n
 a
m
o
n
g
 t
h
e
 p
u
b
lic
 a
n
d
 

w
it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
 b
y
 v
a
lu
in
g
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 a
n
d
 

a
c
ti
n
g
 o
n
 i
t 
p
ro
m
p
tl
y
. 

  T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 r
is
k
 o
f 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 f
a
ti
g
u
e
 –
 a
s
 a
 c
o
u
n
c
il 

w
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 m

o
re
 j
o
in
e
d
 u
p
, 
b
e
tt
e
r 
a
t 
s
h
a
ri
n
g
 

a
n
a
ly
s
is
, 
fe
e
d
in
g
 b
a
c
k
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 t
u
rn
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

in
to
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
, 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t.
 

 T
h
e
re
 a
re
 c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
s
 i
n
 e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 

re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
 a
n
d
 m

e
a
n
in
g
fu
l.
 

 

K
e
y
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 g
o
in
g
 f
o
rw

a
rd
 w

ill
 b
e
 t
o
: 

•
 

U
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 a
n
 i
n
te
rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 o
f 
c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 a
u
th
o
ri
ty
, 
le
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r.
 

•
 

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 a
 c
o
m
p
re
h
e
n
s
iv
e
 b
a
s
e
lin
e
 p
o
s
it
io
n
 a
n
d
 

id
e
n
ti
fy
 f
u
tu
re
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
. 

•
 

E
n
s
u
re
 T
a
lk
in
g
 P
o
in
t 
is
 u
s
e
d
 m

o
re
 w
id
e
ly
 a
n
d
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
. 

C
C
S
O
 

C
C
M
 

C
S
B
 

           

 

M
a
n
a
g
e
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
e
x
p
e
c
ta
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 d
e
liv
e
r 
o
n
 o
u
r 
p
ro
m
is
e
s
 

 In
 t
h
e
 m

a
in
, 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 u
s
e
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 a
s
 t
h
e
 

c
e
n
tr
a
l 
m
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
 t
o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 
d
e
liv
e
ry
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
c
u
s
to
m
e
r 

s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 i
n
 s
o
m
e
 k
e
y
 a
re
a
s
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 s
y
s
te
m
s
 

a
re
 n
o
t 
in
 p
la
c
e
 t
o
 a
llo
w
 r
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
a
ll 
m
e
a
s
u
re
s
, 

re
s
u
lt
in
g
 i
n
 n
il 
re
tu
rn
s
. 

 In
 a
d
d
it
io
n
, 
w
h
ils
t 
o
v
e
ra
ll 
im

p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 r
e
a
lis
e
d
 

d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
th
re
e
 y
e
a
rs
, 
th
e
re
 r
e
m
a
in
 s
o
m
e
 a
re
a
s
 o
f 
p
o
o
r 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
, 
e
it
h
e
r 
d
u
e
 t
o
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 o
r 
a
 l
a
c
k
 o
f 

o
w
n
e
rs
h
ip
. 
T
h
e
re
 a
re
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 a
ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 P
Is
 o
n
 

le
tt
e
r 
a
n
d
 e
m
a
il 
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
. 

 T
h
e
re
 a
re
 f
e
w
 e
x
a
m
p
le
s
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
c
ti
v
e
ly
 m

a
n
a
g
in
g
 

c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
e
x
p
e
c
ta
ti
o
n
s
, 
a
n
d
 w
o
rk
 w
ill
 b
e
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 

c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 C

o
n
tr
ib
u
to
ry
 O

ff
ic
e
rs
 o
n
 t
h
is
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
. 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 c
a
s
e
 f
o
r 
m
a
n
a
g
in
g
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
e
x
p
e
c
ta
ti
o
n
 

m
ig
h
t 
in
it
ia
lly
 n
e
e
d
 m

o
re
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
. 
It
 w

ill
 b
e
 

im
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
to
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 r
o
le
s
 a
re
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 a
n
d
 

c
a
n
 b
e
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
. 

 T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 f
o
c
u
s
 i
s
 n
o
t 
s
o
le
ly
 

o
n
 t
e
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
. 

   

 K
e
y
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 g
o
in
g
 f
o
rw

a
rd
 w

ill
 b
e
 t
o
: 

•
 

F
u
rt
h
e
r 
tr
a
n
s
it
io
n
in
g
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 

c
o
n
ta
c
t 
c
e
n
tr
e
. 

•
 

R
e
d
u
c
in
g
 a
v
o
id
a
b
le
 c
o
n
ta
c
t 
(m

e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
 N
I1
4
).
 

•
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
te
 l
o
c
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
. 

 

C
C
S
O
 

C
S
B
 

                

 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 j
o
in
e
d
 u
p
 a
n
d
 p
e
rs
o
n
 c
e
n
tr
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 d
e
s
ig
n
e
d
 

a
ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
o
u
r 
c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 

It
 c
a
n
 b
e
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
in
g
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
 j
o
in
 u
p
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
; 

th
is
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 b
e
 l
in
k
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 

K
e
y
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 g
o
in
g
 f
o
rw

a
rd
 w

ill
 b
e
 t
o
: 

•
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 r
e
-e
n
g
in
e
e
ri
n
g
 o
f 
k
e
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

C
C
S
O
 

C
S
B
 

  
 

Page 29



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 a

n
d
 C

e
n
tr

a
l 
F
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n
 A

c
ti
o
n
 T

ra
c
k
e
rs

 Q
u
a
rt

e
r 

2
 2

0
0
8
-0

9
  

 

4
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P
ri
o
ri
ty

 K
e
y
 A

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 

to
 D

a
te

 
R

is
k
s
/C

h
a
ll
e
n
g
e
s
 

K
e
y
 A

c
ti
o
n
s
 

(f
o
r 
n
e
x
t 
6
 m

o
n
th

s
) 

C
O

 
T
im

e
s
c
a
le

 
O

th
e
r 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

 S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
w
o
rk
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 a
n
d
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 s
im

p
lif
y
 

a
n
d
 d
e
s
ig
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
, 
fo
r 

e
x
a
m
p
le
 i
n
 t
e
rm

s
 o
f 
th
e
 p
e
rs
o
n
a
lis
a
ti
o
n
 a
g
e
n
d
a
 i
n
 A
d
u
lt
 

S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 (
s
e
e
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 f
o
r 
fu
rt
h
e
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
s
).
  

 H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 j
o
in
e
d
 u
p
 w
o
rk
in
g
 r
e
m
a
in
s
 a
n
 a
re
a
 o
f 
s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 

w
e
a
k
n
e
s
s
. 
T
h
e
re
 a
re
 e
x
a
m
p
le
s
 o
f 
g
o
o
d
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 i
n
 t
h
is
 a
re
a
, 

b
u
t 
th
e
s
e
 a
re
 m

o
s
t 
e
v
id
e
n
t 
w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 l
e
g
is
la
ti
v
e
 o
r 

o
th
e
r 
re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 t
h
is
 r
e
g
a
rd
. 
A
 ‘
O
n
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 

h
a
s
 y
e
t 
to
 b
e
 r
e
a
lis
e
d
, 
a
n
d
 w

h
ile
 c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 m

a
y
 v
ie
w
 t
h
e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 
a
s
 a
 s
in
g
le
 e
n
ti
ty
, 
th
e
 ‘
s
ilo
 m

e
n
ta
lit
y
’ 
is
 s
ti
ll 
v
e
ry
 m

u
c
h
 

in
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 s
o
m
e
 a
re
a
s
. 

 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 b
u
y
 i
n
. 
 

 B
e
n
e
fi
ts
 f
ro
m
 j
o
in
in
g
 u
p
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
re
 n
o
t 
a
lw
a
y
s
 

a
p
p
a
re
n
t 
a
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 m

a
y
 h
a
v
e
 u
n
re
a
lis
ti
c
 

e
x
p
e
c
ta
ti
o
n
s
 a
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s
iz
e
 a
n
d
 s
c
o
p
e
 o
f 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 a
t 

th
e
 s
ta
rt
 o
f 
p
ro
je
c
ts
/p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
. 

 

•
 

G
o
ld
e
n
 n
u
m
b
e
r.
 

•
 

L
in
k
in
g
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
in
s
ig
h
t 
a
n
d
 U
C
M
I,
 s
h
a
ri
n
g
 d
a
ta
 

le
a
d
in
g
 t
o
 b
e
tt
e
r 
u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
, 
a
n
d
 s
o
 

b
e
tt
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
. 

 

       

E
n
h
a
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 l
in
k
s
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 f
ro
n
t 
a
n
d
 b
a
c
k
 o
ff
ic
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 

d
e
liv
e
r 
e
x
c
e
lle
n
t 
e
n
d
-t
o
-e
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
  

 T
h
e
re
 a
re
 g
e
n
e
ra
ll
y
 g
o
o
d
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
s
 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t
h
e
 f
ro
n
t 
a
n
d
 

b
a
c
k
 o
ff
ic
e
 w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
n
 o
b
v
io
u
s
 d
is
ti
n
c
ti
o
n
, 
fo
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
 

w
h
e
n
 f
ro
n
t 
e
n
d
 e
n
q
u
ir
ie
s
 a
re
 h
a
n
d
le
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 C

o
n
ta
c
t 
L
e
e
d
s
. 
 

 In
 t
h
e
s
e
 c
a
s
e
s
, 
S
L
A
s
 a
re
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 m

a
jo
ri
ty
 o
f 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 a
re
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
, 
a
n
d
 r
e
g
u
la
r 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 h
e
ld
 t
o
 d
is
c
u
s
s
 a
n
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 i
n
 s
o
m
e
 

c
a
s
e
s
 t
h
is
 d
iv
is
io
n
 c
a
n
 c
re
a
te
 a
 l
a
c
k
 o
f 
c
le
a
r 
o
w
n
e
rs
h
ip
, 
a
n
d
 

th
e
re
 i
s
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
to
 e
n
s
u
re
 a
 g
re
a
te
r 
n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
re
 r
e
a
lis
e
d
. 
W
h
e
re
 b
o
th
 ‘
fr
o
n
t’
 a
n
d
 ‘
b
a
c
k
’ 
a
re
 

h
a
n
d
le
d
 w

it
h
in
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
, 
ro
le
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
 

c
a
n
 b
e
 l
e
s
s
 c
le
a
r,
 a
n
d
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a
re
 o
ft
e
n
 h
a
n
d
le
d
 o
n
 a
n
 a
d
 h
o
c
 

b
a
s
is
. 
 

 

T
h
e
re
 a
re
 r
is
k
s
 o
f 
a
 t
w
o
 s
p
e
e
d
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il,
 w

it
h
 c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
in
g
 a
 s
u
b
s
ta
n
ti
a
lly
 

b
e
tt
e
r 
le
v
e
l 
o
f 
e
n
d
 t
o
 e
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
n
 s
o
m
e
 a
re
a
s
 

th
a
n
 o
th
e
rs
. 

 T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
a
ll 
a
re
a
s
 

in
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 e
n
d
-t
o
-e
n
d
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 a
re
 f
o
c
u
s
e
d
 o
n
 

w
o
rk
in
g
 b
e
tt
e
r 
to
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 m

o
re
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 

c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
. 

K
e
y
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 g
o
in
g
 f
o
rw

a
rd
 w

ill
 b
e
 t
o
: 

•
 

R
e
d
u
c
in
g
 a
v
o
id
a
b
le
 c
o
n
ta
c
t 
(m

e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
 N
I1
4
).
  
T
h
e
re
 

is
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
to
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 a
n
d
 r
e
a
lis
e
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
. 

 

C
C
S
O
 

C
S
B
 

           

               

 Page 30



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 a

n
d
 C

e
n
tr

a
l 
F
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n
 A

c
ti
o
n
 T

ra
c
k
e
rs

 Q
u
a
rt

e
r 

2
 2

0
0
8
-0

9
  

 

5
 

 Im
p
ro

v
e
 o

u
r 
u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
c
u
s
to

m
e
rs

 
 •
 
A
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
re
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 I
n
it
ia
te
 p
ro
je
c
t,
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
s
ta
g
e
 o
f 
w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 t
h
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 U

n
iv
e
rs
a
l 
C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
M
a
s
te
r 
In
d
e
x
 (
U
C
M
I)
. 
W
h
e
n
 c
o
m
p
le
te
, 
th
is
 i
n
d
e
x
 w

ill
 h
o
ld
 a
 u
n
iq
u
e
 r
e
c
o
rd
 f
o
r 
e
a
c
h
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
a
n
d
 

e
n
a
b
le
 a
 3
6
0
 d
e
g
re
e
 v
ie
w
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 i
n
te
ra
c
ti
o
n
s
 w
it
h
 L
C
C
, 
u
s
in
g
 d
a
ta
 e
x
tr
a
c
te
d
 f
ro
m
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
s
y
s
te
m
s
 l
in
k
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 I
n
d
e
x
. 
W
o
rk
 w
ill
 t
h
e
n
 b
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 b
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 a
n
d
 r
e
a
lis
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 i
n
 t
e
rm

s
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 

p
la
n
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t.
 T
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
p
h
a
s
e
 o
f 
U
C
M
I 
is
 a
lm

o
s
t 
c
o
m
p
le
te
 (
lin
k
in
g
 r
e
c
o
rd
s
 i
n
 C

o
n
ta
c
t 
L
e
e
d
s
 a
n
d
 O

rc
h
a
rd
) 
a
n
d
 d
u
e
 t
o
 g
o
 l
iv
e
 b
e
fo
re
 e
n
d
 o
f 
D
e
c
 0
8
. 
C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
p
ro
fi
lin
g
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 h
a
v
e
 a
ls
o
 b
e
e
n
 p
ro
d
u
c
e
d
 f
o
r 
A
L
M
O
s
 

w
h
o
 h
a
v
e
 u
s
e
d
 t
h
e
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 m

o
re
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
 t
a
rg
e
t 
c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 w
it
h
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
E
s
ti
m
a
te
d
 a
 1
5
-2
0
%
 s
a
v
in
g
 i
n
 t
im

e
 a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 
e
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 U
C
M
I.
 F
o
u
r 
L
e
is
u
re
 b
a
s
e
d
 

s
y
s
te
m
s
 (
L
ib
ra
ri
e
s
, 
B
re
e
z
e
 C

a
rd
 a
n
d
 L
e
is
u
re
 F
le
x
, 
L
e
e
d
s
 C

a
rd
) 
a
d
d
e
d
 t
o
 U
C
M
I.
 K
e
y
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
: 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
U
C
M
I 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 a
d
d
it
io
n
 o
f 
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
s
y
s
te
m
s
 i
n
 l
in
e
 w
it
h
 U
C
M
I 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 P
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
. 

•
 
C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 a
n
d
 Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
’s
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 i
s
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 t
o
 c
o
n
d
u
c
t 
s
e
g
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 a
re
a
s
 w
it
h
 a
 h
ig
h
 p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 o
f 
v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
, 
a
n
d
 t
re
n
d
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
, 

e
th
n
ic
it
y
 a
n
d
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
. 
T
h
is
 w
ill
 a
s
s
is
t 
in
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 t
a
rg
e
te
d
 a
n
d
 p
re
v
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

•
 
T
h
e
 H

o
u
s
in
g
 S
o
lu
ti
o
n
s
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 s
e
t 
u
p
 t
o
 l
o
o
k
 a
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 h
o
lis
ti
c
a
lly
, 
a
n
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 n
e
w
 m

o
d
e
l 
fo
r 
d
e
liv
e
ry
. 
In
it
ia
lly
, 
th
is
 w
ill
 f
o
c
u
s
 o
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
in
g
 w
h
o
 c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 a
re
, 
th
e
 p
ro
fi
le
 o
f 
re
p
e
a
t 
c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
, 
a
n
d
 c
re
a
ti
n
g
 

jo
u
rn
e
y
 m

a
p
s
, 
fo
r 
b
o
th
 t
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
s
it
u
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 w
h
a
t 
c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 i
n
 f
u
tu
re
. 
T
h
e
 w
o
rk
 w
ill
 a
ls
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 p
a
rt
n
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 a
re
 a
w
a
re
 o
f 
c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
c
ir
c
u
m
s
ta
n
c
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
b
le
 t
o
 

re
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
ir
 n
e
e
d
s
. 
 

•
 
R
e
v
e
n
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 B
e
n
e
fi
ts
 a
re
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 E
x
p
e
ri
a
n
 t
o
 p
ilo
t 
a
 s
y
s
te
m
 f
o
r 
d
e
a
lin
g
 w
it
h
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
a
rr
e
a
rs
. 
T
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
is
, 
w
h
e
n
 a
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
is
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
a
te
r 
s
ta
g
e
s
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
, 
E
x
p
e
ri
a
n
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
ir
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
re
c
o
rd
s
 t
o
 h
e
lp
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs
 d
e
c
id
e
 w
h
a
t 
ro
u
te
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
. 
T
h
e
 p
ilo
t 
s
ta
rt
e
d
 i
n
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
0
8
 a
n
d
 a
 f
u
ll 
ro
ll 
o
u
t 
w
ill
 b
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
, 
la
rg
e
ly
 d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
o
n
 c
o
s
ts
. 
 

•
 
S
tr
e
e
ts
c
e
n
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 p
u
rc
h
a
s
e
d
 A
c
o
rn
 a
n
d
 a
re
 u
s
in
g
 t
h
is
 t
o
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 s
o
m
e
 m

a
rk
e
t 
s
e
g
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 a
im

 o
f 
in
fl
u
e
n
c
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
. 
O
n
e
 e
x
a
m
p
le
 o
f 
th
is
 i
s
 t
h
e
 g
a
rd
e
n
 w
a
s
te
 p
ilo
t,
 w
h
e
re
 d
a
ta
 w
a
s
 u
s
e
d
 t
o
 

id
e
n
ti
fy
 w
h
ic
h
 a
re
a
s
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 b
e
s
t 
ta
rg
e
te
d
. 

•
 
M
u
s
e
u
m
s
 a
n
d
 G

a
lle
ri
e
s
 a
re
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
in
g
 w
o
rk
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
n
 A
u
d
ie
n
c
e
 D

e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
P
la
n
, 
w
h
ic
h
 w

ill
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 a
n
d
 n
o
n
-c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
, 
a
n
d
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 a
n
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 o
f 
im

p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
a
rg
e
te
d
 a
t 
s
p
e
c
if
ic
 g
ro
u
p
s
 a
n
d
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
. 
S
it
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
s
 a
re
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 b
e
in
g
 d
ra
ft
e
d
. 
 T
h
e
s
e
 w
ill
 b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 b
y
 e
a
rl
y
 2
0
0
9
, 
w
h
e
n
 a
 s
e
rv
ic
e
-w

id
e
 a
u
d
ie
n
c
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
 w
ill
 b
e
 p
ro
d
u
c
e
d
. 
 F
u
rt
h
e
r 
d
e
ta
ils
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 o
n
c
e
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 

w
it
h
in
 s
it
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
s
 a
re
 c
le
a
r.
 

•
 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 I
n
te
lli
g
e
n
c
e
 P
ro
je
c
ts
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 i
n
it
ia
te
d
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
in
s
ig
h
t.
 T
h
e
 B
I 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 c
a
s
e
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
n
d
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
. 
T
h
is
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
s
 t
h
re
e
 f
ir
s
t 
p
h
a
s
e
 B
I 
p
ro
je
c
ts
; 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 I
n
te
lli
g
e
n
c
e
, 
C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
In
s
ig
h
t 
a
n
d
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t.
 I
n
it
ia
l 
h
ig
h
 l
e
v
e
l 
s
c
o
p
in
g
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 f
o
r 
a
ll 
th
re
e
 p
ro
je
c
ts
 a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 d
ra
ft
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 a
t 
re
le
v
a
n
t 
B
o
a
rd
s
 (
N
o
v
/D

e
c
) 
w
it
h
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
fu
tu
re
 

g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
ro
u
n
d
 p
ro
je
c
ts
. 
F
u
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 
p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 B
I 
s
o
lu
ti
o
n
 t
o
 f
o
rm

 p
a
rt
 o
f 
IK
M
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 b
id
 t
o
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
 i
n
 Q

u
a
rt
e
r 
3
. 
A
 r
e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 e
a
c
h
 o
f 
th
re
e
 B
I 
p
ro
je
c
ts
 t
o
 b
e
 p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 a
t 
v
a
ri
o
u
s
 

b
o
a
rd
s
 (
N
o
v
/D

e
c
) 
w
it
h
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
fu
tu
re
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
p
ro
je
c
ts
. 
K
e
y
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 f
u
ll 
s
c
o
p
in
g
 o
f 
p
ro
je
c
ts
; 
s
ta
rt
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
c
a
p
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 2
0
0
9
-1
0
. 

 In
c
re

a
s
e
 c

h
o
ic

e
 s

o
 c

u
s
to

m
e
rs

 c
a
n
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n
 m

o
re

 c
o
n
v
e
n
ie

n
t 
w

a
y
s
 

 •
 
A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 a
re
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ti
n
g
 a
 m

a
jo
r 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 a
ro
u
n
d
 s
e
lf
-d
ir
e
c
te
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
, 
w
h
ic
h
 a
im

s
 t
o
 m

o
v
e
 a
w
a
y
 f
ro
m
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 t
o
w
a
rd
s
 o
n
e
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
d
ir
e
c
t 
p
a
y
m
e
n
ts
, 
in
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
ts
 a
n
d
 

in
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 f
u
n
d
s
, 
w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 o
ff
e
r 
c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
tl
y
 m

o
re
 c
h
o
ic
e
, 
in
 t
e
rm

s
 o
f 
h
o
w
 t
h
e
y
 g
e
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
, 
w
h
o
 i
t 
is
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 a
n
d
 w
h
a
t 
it
 l
o
o
k
s
 l
ik
e
. 
 

•
 
C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 a
n
d
 Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
’s
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 h
a
s
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
o
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
d
ir
e
c
t 
p
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 i
s
 t
ri
a
lli
n
g
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
lis
e
d
 b
u
d
g
e
ts
 f
o
r 
c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
. 

•
 
IC

T
, 
A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 a
n
d
 C

u
s
to
m
e
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
re
 w
o
rk
in
g
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 c
it
iz
e
n
 s
e
lf
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 f
o
r 
b
lu
e
 b
a
d
g
e
 c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
, 
w
h
ic
h
 a
im

s
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 f
u
lly
 t
ra
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 B
lu
e
 B
a
d
g
e
 a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 r
e
n
e
w
a
l 
fo
rm

s
 v
ia
 t
h
e
 L
C
C
 

w
e
b
s
it
e
; 
th
is
 w
ill
 t
h
e
n
 b
e
 a
s
 a
 m

o
d
e
l 
fo
r 
fu
tu
re
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
. 

•
 
T
h
e
 C

o
n
ta
c
t 
C
e
n
tr
e
 i
s
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ti
n
g
 e
x
te
n
d
e
d
 h
o
u
rs
 f
ro
m
 A
u
tu
m
n
 2
0
0
8
, 
in
it
ia
lly
 f
ro
m
 8
 t
o
 8
 M

o
n
d
a
y
 t
o
 F
ri
d
a
y
, 
s
o
 c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
b
le
 t
o
 c
o
n
ta
c
t 
L
C
C
 a
t 
a
 t
im

e
 t
h
a
t 
s
u
it
s
 t
h
e
m
. 
 

•
 
C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
ls
o
 p
la
n
 t
o
 s
o
ft
 l
a
u
n
c
h
 t
h
e
 ‘
g
o
ld
e
n
 n
u
m
b
e
r’
 i
n
 A
u
tu
m
n
 2
0
0
8
, 
w
it
h
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
p
u
b
lic
it
y
 p
la
n
n
e
d
 f
o
r 
S
p
ri
n
g
 2
0
0
9
. 
T
h
is
 w
ill
 a
llo
w
 c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 t
o
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 u
s
in
g
 a
 s
in
g
le
 m

e
m
o
ra
b
le
 n
u
m
b
e
r,
 r
a
th
e
r 
th
a
n
 

s
e
a
rc
h
in
g
 f
o
r 
th
e
 c
o
rr
e
c
t 
c
o
n
ta
c
t.
 

•
 
E
le
c
tr
o
n
ic
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 D

e
liv
e
ry
 (
E
S
D
) 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 i
n
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
8
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 s
e
lf
-s
e
rv
ic
e
 (
w
e
b
, 
S
M
S
 T
e
x
ti
n
g
 &
 I
V
R
) 
a
n
d
 s
tr
e
a
m
lin
e
d
 m

e
d
ia
te
d
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 v
ia
 t
h
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
in
te
g
ra
te
d
 t
e
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
. 
  

 Im
p
ro

v
e
 o

u
r 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 c

u
s
to

m
e
r 
fe

e
d
b
a
c
k
 

 

•
 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L
e
e
d
s
 h
a
v
e
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 a
 w
id
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 e
x
e
rc
is
e
 o
n
 t
h
e
ir
 n
e
w
 t
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 p
o
lic
y
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 c
it
y
 w
id
e
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 t
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 

•
 
S
p
o
rt
s
 a
n
d
 A
c
ti
v
e
 R

e
c
re
a
ti
o
n
 h
a
v
e
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 i
n
te
n
s
iv
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
e
x
e
rc
is
e
s
 w
it
h
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
, 
lo
c
a
l 
m
e
d
ia
 e
tc
. 
a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 P
F
I 
p
ro
je
c
t 
to
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 t
w
o
 n
e
w
 l
e
is
u
re
 c
e
n
tr
e
s
, 
a
s
 t
h
is
 h
a
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
h
e
 

c
lo
s
u
re
 o
f 
tw
o
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 s
it
e
s
 f
o
r 
a
 p
e
ri
o
d
 o
f 
1
8
 m

o
n
th
s
. 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 t
h
e
 t
w
o
 n
e
w
 l
e
is
u
re
 c
e
n
tr
e
s
 (
A
rm

le
y
 a
n
d
 M

o
rl
e
y
) 
fi
n
is
h
e
d
 i
n
 e
a
rl
y
 2
0
0
8
. 
 C
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 w
e
re
 s
ig
n
e
d
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
 h
a
s
 s
ta
rt
e
d
. 
 B
o
th
 c
e
n
tr
e
s
 a
re
 d
u
e
 t
o
 

o
p
e
n
 i
n
 2
0
1
0
. 
 T
h
e
 l
e
s
s
o
n
s
 l
e
a
rn
t 
fr
o
m
 t
h
is
 e
x
e
rc
is
e
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
p
p
lie
d
 t
o
 a
n
y
 f
u
tu
re
 l
e
is
u
re
 c
e
n
tr
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 e
x
e
rc
is
e
s
 (
fo
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
, 
H
o
lt
 P
a
rk
).
 

•
 
M
u
s
e
u
m
s
 a
n
d
 G

a
lle
ri
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 c
re
a
te
d
 n
e
w
 p
o
s
ts
 o
f 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 H

is
to
ry
 C

u
ra
to
rs
, 
to
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 e
x
c
lu
d
e
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 t
h
e
ir
 s
to
ry
 t
o
 b
e
 t
o
ld
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C
it
y
 M

u
s
e
u
m
; 
in
 a
d
d
it
io
n
, 
th
e
y
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
 O

u
tr
e
a
c
h
 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 O

ff
ic
e
r,
 

w
h
o
 g
o
e
s
 o
u
t 
to
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 c
e
n
tr
e
s
 a
n
d
 v
a
ri
o
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 t
o
 d
is
c
u
s
s
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
T
h
e
 n
e
w
 p
o
s
ts
 w
e
re
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
G
y
p
s
y
, 
T
ra
v
e
lle
r 
a
n
d
 R
o
m
a
 h
is
to
ry
 m

o
n
th
 (
J
u
ly
 2
0
0
8
).
  
N
e
x
t 
y
e
a
r’
s
 e
v
e
n
t 
w
ill
 h
a
v
e
 a
 

m
o
re
 v
is
ib
le
 p
re
s
e
n
c
e
 b
y
 u
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 s
p
a
c
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C

it
y
 M

u
s
e
u
m
, 
a
n
d
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
lia
is
o
n
 w
o
rk
 t
o
o
k
 p
la
c
e
 t
h
is
 y
e
a
r,
 w
h
ic
h
 h
a
s
 l
e
d
 t
o
 g
re
a
te
r 
c
o
n
ta
c
ts
 f
o
r 
fu
tu
re
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t.
 

•
 
R
e
c
y
c
lin
g
 a
n
d
 w
a
s
te
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 m

a
jo
r 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 w
a
s
te
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
, 
u
s
in
g
 t
e
le
p
h
o
n
e
 s
u
rv
e
y
s
, 
fo
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
, 
th
e
 A
b
o
u
t 
L
e
e
d
s
 n
e
w
s
p
a
p
e
r,
 t
h
e
 w
e
b
s
it
e
, 
le
a
fl
e
ts
, 
v
is
it
s
 t
o
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 g
ro
u
p
s
 a
n
d
 a
re
a
 

c
o
m
m
it
te
e
s
. 
T
h
is
 h
a
s
 i
n
fo
rm

e
d
 t
h
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
, 
a
n
d
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 s
h
a
re
d
 w
it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
e
o
p
le
 a
n
d
 p
la
c
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 w
e
b
s
it
e
 f
o
r 
th
e
 p
u
b
lic
 t
o
 a
c
c
e
s
s
. 
 

•
 
E
S
D
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 h
a
s
 s
e
t 
u
p
 a
 w
o
rk
s
tr
e
a
m
 e
n
ti
tl
e
d
 M

a
rk
e
ti
n
g
 &
 C

o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
. 
 S
c
o
p
e
 o
f 
th
is
 w
o
rk
s
tr
e
a
m
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 o
b
ta
in
in
g
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 o
n
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 e
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
. 

 M
a
n
a
g
e
 c

u
s
to

m
e
r 

e
x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 d

e
li
v
e
r 

o
n
 o

u
r 

p
ro

m
is

e
s
 

 •
 
A
 m

a
jo
r 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 
w
o
rk
 i
s
 t
a
k
in
g
 p
la
c
e
 i
n
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 n
e
w
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
in
d
ic
a
to
r 
1
4
, 
a
ro
u
n
d
 a
v
o
id
a
b
le
 c
o
n
ta
c
t.
 T
h
is
 h
a
s
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 i
m
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
, 
a
n
d
 w
o
rk
s
h
o
p
s
 a
re
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 b
e
in
g
 h
e
ld
 t
o
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
 c
o
m
m
o
n
 d
e
fi
n
it
io
n
s
 a
n
d
 

a
g
re
e
 a
 w
a
y
 f
o
rw

a
rd
. 
R
e
v
e
n
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 B
e
n
e
fi
ts
 h
a
v
e
 v
o
lu
n
te
e
re
d
 t
o
 b
e
 a
 p
ilo
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
is
, 
a
n
d
 i
t 
is
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 c
a
n
 b
e
 r
e
a
lis
e
d
, 
g
iv
e
n
 s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
b
u
y
 i
n
 a
n
d
 o
w
n
e
rs
h
ip
 a
c
ro
s
s
 k
e
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
 j
o
in

e
d
 u

p
 a

n
d
 p

e
rs

o
n
 c

e
n
tr

e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 a

ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 
o
u
r 

c
u
s
to

m
e
rs

 
 Page 31



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 a

n
d
 C

e
n
tr

a
l 
F
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n
 A

c
ti
o
n
 T

ra
c
k
e
rs

 Q
u
a
rt

e
r 

2
 2

0
0
8
-0

9
  

 

6
 

•
 T
h
e
 D

ig
n
it
y
 C

a
m
p
a
ig
n
 i
n
 A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ts
 a
 m

a
jo
r 
in
it
ia
ti
v
e
 t
o
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
n
e
e
d
s
 a
n
d
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
. 
A
n
 i
n
-d
e
p
th
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
h
o
w
 o
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 a
re
 t
re
a
te
d
 w
h
e
n
 u
s
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
, 
a
n
d
 a
 

n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 r
e
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
‘D
ig
n
it
y
 W

a
tc
h
d
o
g
s
’,
 o
ld
e
r 
v
o
lu
n
te
e
rs
 w
h
o
 v
is
it
 c
a
re
 h
o
m
e
s
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
’ 
d
ig
n
it
y
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 r
e
s
p
e
c
te
d
. 
 

•
 E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L
e
e
d
s
 h
a
s
 a
 d
e
d
ic
a
te
d
 o
ff
ic
e
r 
to
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 r
e
fu
g
e
e
 a
n
d
 a
s
y
lu
m
 s
e
e
k
e
r 
fa
m
ili
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 n
e
w
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
tr
y
. 
T
h
e
 o
ff
ic
e
r 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
s
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 s
ig
n
p
o
s
ts
 t
h
e
m
 t
o
 o
th
e
r 
re
le
v
a
n
t 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 o
r 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts
. 
H
e
 a
ls
o
 o
ff
e
rs
 t
o
 a
c
c
o
m
p
a
n
y
 c
h
ild
re
n
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
ir
 p
a
re
n
ts
 o
n
 t
h
e
ir
 f
ir
s
t 
fe
w
 d
a
y
s
 a
t 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
to
 f
a
c
ili
ta
te
 t
h
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
. 
T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 p
e
rs
o
n
a
lis
e
d
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
a
n
y
 n
e
e
d
s
 w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 b
y
 

fa
m
ili
e
s
. 
 

•
 E

n
te
rt
a
in
m
e
n
t 
lic
e
n
s
in
g
 i
s
 t
ri
a
lli
n
g
 a
n
 a
re
a
 b
a
s
e
d
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 w
h
e
re
b
y
 o
n
e
 e
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 
o
ff
ic
e
r 
is
 a
llo
c
a
te
d
 t
o
 e
a
c
h
 a
re
a
 a
lo
n
g
s
id
e
 o
n
e
 l
ic
e
n
s
in
g
 o
ff
ic
e
r;
 c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 w
ill
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 f
in
d
 i
t 
e
a
s
ie
r 
to
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
o
s
e
 

o
ff
ic
e
rs
 w
ill
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 b
e
tt
e
r 
k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 o
f 
th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 

•
 S

p
o
rt
s
 a
n
d
 A
c
ti
v
e
 R

e
c
re
a
ti
o
n
 a
re
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 l
in
k
s
 w
it
h
 a
re
a
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t,
 a
s
 C

o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
p
o
rt
s
 O

ff
ic
e
rs
 w
o
rk
 i
n
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 a
re
a
s
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 m

a
rk
e
ti
n
g
, 
c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 i
n
 c
o
n
ju
n
c
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
, 
th
e
 v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 

s
e
c
to
r 
e
tc
. 

•
 M

u
s
e
u
m
s
 a
n
d
 G

a
lle
ri
e
s
 w
o
rk
s
 i
n
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
it
h
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
lo
c
a
l,
 r
e
g
io
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
g
e
n
ts
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L
e
e
d
s
, 
th
e
 H
e
a
lt
h
 S
e
rv
ic
e
, 
th
e
 Y
o
u
th
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 a
n
d
 p
re
-s
c
h
o
o
l 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
. 
It
 a
ls
o
 b
u
ild
s
 l
in
k
s
 w
it
h
 d
if
fe
re
n
t 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
it
y
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 a
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
in
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
, 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
’s
 f
o
ru
m
s
, 
Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
’s
 P
a
rl
ia
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 e
x
h
ib
it
io
n
s
. 
 

 E
n
h
a
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 l
in

k
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 f
ro

n
t 
a
n
d
 b

a
c
k
 o

ff
ic

e
s
 t
o
 d

e
li
v
e
r 

e
x
c
e
ll
e
n
t 
e
n
d
 t
o
 e

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

 •
 
A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 i
s
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
in
g
 a
 m

a
jo
r 
p
ro
je
c
t 
a
ro
u
n
d
 e
n
d
 t
o
 e
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
w
h
ic
h
 a
im

s
 t
o
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 o
n
e
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 d
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
, 
in
 t
e
rm

s
 o
f 
fi
rs
t 
c
o
n
ta
c
t,
 s
c
re
e
n
in
g
, 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t,
 c
a
re
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 r
e
v
ie
w
. 

T
h
e
 p
ro
je
c
t 
w
ill
 e
lim

in
a
te
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
d
if
fe
re
n
c
e
s
 i
n
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 a
re
a
s
 a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 e
lim

in
a
ti
n
g
 i
n
e
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
a
n
d
 i
n
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 p
a
p
e
r-
b
a
s
e
d
/f
a
x
 b
a
s
e
d
 s
y
s
te
m
s
. 
T
h
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 t
e
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
 (
E
S
C
R
) 
w
ill
 a
llo
w
 a
ll 
s
ta
ff
 t
o
 r
e
c
o
rd
 t
h
e
ir
 

s
o
c
ia
l 
w
o
rk
 t
a
s
k
s
 i
n
 ‘
o
n
e
 r
ig
h
t 
w
a
y
’ 
th
a
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
s
 t
h
e
 s
o
c
ia
l 
w
o
rk
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
. 
T
h
is
 s
h
o
u
ld
 l
e
a
d
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 f
o
r 
c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 i
n
 t
e
rm

s
 o
f 
m
o
re
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
t,
 s
tr
a
ig
h
tf
o
rw

a
rd
 a
n
d
 f
a
s
te
r 
a
c
c
e
s
s
. 

•
 
R
e
v
e
n
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 B
e
n
e
fi
ts
 h
a
v
e
 i
n
it
ia
te
d
 t
h
e
 ‘
T
o
u
c
h
 O

n
c
e
’ 
p
ro
je
c
t 
to
 r
e
v
ie
w
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 b
a
c
k
 o
ff
ic
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
. 
A
t 
p
re
s
e
n
t,
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 f
ro
m
 c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 o
ft
e
n
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
s
 a
c
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 b
o
th
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 i
s
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 p
a
s
s
e
d
 

b
e
tw
e
e
n
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
s
. 
T
h
is
 p
ro
je
c
t 
a
im

s
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 p
e
rs
o
n
 r
e
c
e
iv
in
g
 t
h
e
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 c
a
n
 m

a
k
e
 a
ll 
th
e
 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 s
y
s
te
m
s
 a
t 
fi
rs
t 
p
o
in
t 
o
f 
c
o
n
ta
c
t,
 t
h
u
s
 i
n
c
re
a
s
in
g
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
. 
L
in
k
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
is
, 
th
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
fu
n
c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 

b
e
in
g
 r
e
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
d
 t
o
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 a
 m

o
re
 j
o
in
e
d
 u
p
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
, 
w
it
h
 a
 s
in
g
le
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
 

•
 
E
S
D
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 i
s
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 i
n
te
g
ra
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 a
u
to
m
a
ti
o
n
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 f
ro
n
t 
a
n
d
 b
a
c
k
 o
ff
ic
e
 s
y
s
te
m
s
 f
o
r 
b
o
th
 m

e
d
ia
te
d
 a
n
d
 s
e
lf
-s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
c
c
e
s
s
. 
 T
h
is
 w
ill
 a
v
o
id
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 
C
S
O
s
 t
o
 d
o
u
b
le
 k
e
y
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 s
y
s
te
m
s
 a
n
d
 

p
ro
v
id
e
 t
h
e
m
, 
a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 c
it
iz
e
n
s
, 
g
re
a
te
r 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s
ta
tu
s
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 r
e
q
u
e
s
ts
 o
n
c
e
 a
n
 i
n
it
ia
l 
re
q
u
e
s
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
. 

   Page 32



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 a

n
d
 C

e
n
tr

a
l 
F
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n
 A

c
ti
o
n
 T

ra
c
k
e
rs

 Q
u
a
rt

e
r 

2
 2

0
0
8
-0

9
 

 

 
1
 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r:

  
A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 
C
h
ie
f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

 
 

 
(C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
) 

O
v
e
ra
ll
 P
ro
g
re
s
s
 R
a
ti
n
g
 

 

C
o
d
e
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
P
ri
o
ri
ty
 

C
o
n
tr
ib
u
to
ry
 O
ff
ic
e
r(
s
) 
(C
O
) 

V
P
-1
c
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 a
n
d
 t
ra
n
s
p
a
re
n
c
y
 o
f 
o
u
r 
d
e
c
is
io
n
-m
a
k
in
g
 a
n
d
 a
c
c
o
u
n
ta
b
ili
ty
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 

C
h
ie
f 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
H
u
m
a
n
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
  

C
h
ie
f 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
P
P
P
U
  

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 K
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 a
n
d
 M
e
m
b
e
r 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

O
v
e
ra
ll
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
P
ro
g
re
s
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
P
ri
o
ri
ty
 

O
v
e
ra
ll 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
 i
s
 h
ig
h
lig
h
te
d
 a
s
 a
m
b
e
r 
m
a
in
ly
 d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s
lo
w
n
e
s
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 a
g
re
e
d
 o
ff
ic
e
r 
g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 w
h
ic
h
 m
e
a
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
m
a
n
y
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 a
re
 s
ti
ll 
g
o
in
g
 t
o
 C
L
T
 r
a
th
e
r 
th
a
n
 t
h
e
 

c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 b
o
a
rd
s
. 

 

R
e
f 

T
it
le
 

B
a
s
e
 

li
n
e
 

T
a
rg
e
t 

Y
e
a
r 
to
 D
a
te
 R
e
s
u
lt
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

D
a
ta
 Q
u
a
li
ty
 

B
P
-1
9
 

%
 s
ta
ff
 f
e
e
lin
g
 v
a
lu
e
d
 

6
1
%
 

N
/A
 

N
o
 s
u
rv
e
y
 

N
e
x
t 
s
ta
ff
 s
u
rv
e
y
 d
u
e
 i
n
 2
0
0
9
/1
0
 

N
o
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 

w
it
h
 d
a
ta
 

B
P
-2
1
 

%
 s
ta
ff
 f
e
e
l 
c
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
 t
o
 d
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 

7
0
%
 

N
/A
 

N
o
 s
u
rv
e
y
 

N
e
x
t 
s
ta
ff
 s
u
rv
e
y
 d
u
e
 i
n
 2
0
0
9
/1
0
 

N
o
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 

w
it
h
 d
a
ta
 

 Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
P
ri
o
ri
ty
 K
e
y
 A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 P
ro
g
re
s
s
 t
o
 

D
a
te
 

R
is
k
s
/C
h
a
ll
e
n
g
e
s
 

K
e
y
 A
c
ti
o
n
s
 

(f
o
r 
n
e
x
t 
6
 m
o
n
th
s
) 

C
O
 

T
im
e
s
c
a
le
 

O
th
e
r 
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

E
m
b
e
d
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 

A
 n
e
w
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 f
o
r 
o
ff
ic
e
r 
g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 w
a
s
 

a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 b
y
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 L
e
a
d
e
rs
h
ip
 t
e
a
m
 i
n
 M
a
y
 2
0
0
8
. 
 

H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 s
o
m
e
 b
o
a
rd
 a
n
d
 p
a
n
e
ls
 h
a
v
e
 e
it
h
e
r 
y
e
t 
to
 b
e
 

e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 o
r 
a
re
 n
o
t 
y
e
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 D
e
m
o
c
ra
ti
c
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 I
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 S
y
s
te
m
 (
D
S
IS
) 
in
 t
e
rm
s
 o
f 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

o
f 
p
a
p
e
rs
 a
n
d
 m
in
u
te
s
. 

F
a
ilu
re
 t
o
 e
m
b
e
d
 w
ill
 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 i
n
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 a
n
d
 i
n
e
ff
ic
ie
n
t 

c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 b
o
a
rd
s
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
a
 c
le
a
r 
re
m
it
. 

 R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ty
 f
o
r 
im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 r
e
lie
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
 b
o
a
rd
 

c
h
a
ir
s
. 

 In
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 m
a
k
in
g
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
s
e
 b
o
a
rd
s
 

re
s
u
lt
 i
n
 m
o
re
 C
L
T
 t
im
e
 b
e
in
g
 t
a
k
e
n
 u
p
 w
it
h
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 

th
a
t 
s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 m
a
d
e
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 o
th
e
r 
b
o
a
rd
s
 

A
ll 
b
o
a
rd
s
 a
n
d
 p
a
n
e
ls
 t
o
 m
e
e
t 
a
n
d
 a
g
re
e
 t
e
rm
s
 o
f 
re
fe
re
n
c
e
. 

 C
la
ri
fy
 r
o
le
 o
f 
O
n
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
S
te
e
ri
n
g
 G
ro
u
p
 a
n
d
 i
ts
 

re
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
 t
o
 t
h
e
 o
th
e
r 
b
o
a
rd
s
. 

 A
ll 
b
o
a
rd
s
 t
o
 s
ta
rt
 u
s
in
g
 D
e
m
o
c
ra
ti
c
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 I
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

S
y
s
te
m
 f
o
r 
p
a
p
e
rs
 a
n
d
 m
in
u
te
s
. 

B
o
a
rd
 

C
h
a
ir
s
 

 A
C
E
 (
C
G
) 

  B
o
a
rd
 

C
h
a
ir
s
 

&
 H
G
S
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 

R
e
v
ie
w
 t
h
e
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 
th
e
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 o
f 

p
u
b
lic
 f
in
a
n
c
e
 i
n
it
ia
ti
v
e
 p
ro
je
c
ts
. 

 
P
ro
g
re
s
s
 t
o
 b
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 B
o
a
rd
 b
y
 

n
o
 l
a
te
r 
th
a
t 
F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
 

C
O
 P
P
P
U
 

F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
 

 

E
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 o
u
r 
g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
re
 a
d
h
e
re
d
 t
o
 b
y
 

a
u
d
it
in
g
 a
 s
a
m
p
le
 o
f 
re
c
e
n
t 
d
e
c
is
io
n
s
. 

  

R
is
k
 o
f 
d
e
c
is
io
n
 b
e
in
g
 t
a
k
e
n
 u
lt
ra
 v
ir
e
s
 i
e
 w
h
e
re
 a
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 r
e
a
c
h
e
d
 o
u
ts
id
e
 t
h
e
 p
o
w
e
rs
 

c
o
n
fe
rr
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 t
a
k
e
r 
o
r 
w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
 

p
re
s
c
ri
b
e
d
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
t 
b
e
e
n
 p
ro
p
e
rl
y
 

c
o
m
p
lie
d
 w
it
h
. 

 

In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
 t
o
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
a
 

s
a
m
p
le
 o
f 
d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 b
y
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
 a
n
d
 O
ff
ic
e
rs
 

u
n
d
e
r 
d
e
le
g
a
te
d
 p
o
w
e
rs
. 
 A
u
d
it
 d
is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 w
it
h
 a
n
d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y
 C
G
A
C
. 

H
G
S
 

 
 

E
n
s
u
re
 a
c
c
o
u
n
ta
b
ili
ty
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 
L
e
e
d
s
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 a
n
d
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 P
la
n
s
 a
re
 a
lig
n
e
d
 w
it
h
 d
e
le
g
a
te
d
 p
o
w
e
rs
 

a
n
d
 R
A
C
I 
fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
s
 

If
 t
h
e
s
e
 d
o
 n
o
t 
a
lig
n
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 r
is
k
 o
f 
fa
ilu
re
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
o
u
r 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
. 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
d
 t
o
 d
is
c
u
s
s
 l
in
k
a
g
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
lig
n
m
e
n
t 
in
 N
o
v
. 
 

F
u
rt
h
e
r 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 b
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
ft
e
r 
th
is
 

H
G
S
 

F
u
rt
h
e
r 
re
p
o
rt
 Q
4
 

L
in
k
s
 t
o
 I
O
 1
b
/c
  

Im
p
ro
v
e
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
o
u
r 
g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ti
n
g
 E
th
ic
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 

 A
 c
o
m
b
in
e
d
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 f
o
r 
2
0
0
6
 a
n
d
 2
0
0
7
 E
th
ic
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 

a
g
re
e
d
 a
t 
S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 1
6
th
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 w
h
ic
h
 

d
e
ta
ils
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
a
rg
e
te
d
 a
t 
e
m
b
e
d
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il'
s
 e
th
ic
a
l 
fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
. 
 P
ro
g
re
s
s
 i
s
 m
o
n
it
o
re
d
 r
e
g
u
la
rl
y
 

b
y
 O
ff
ic
e
rs
 a
n
d
 M
e
m
b
e
rs
. 

  A
 k
e
y
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 i
s
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 t
h
e
 r
ig
h
t 
le
v
e
l 
o
f 

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 t
a
ilo
re
d
 t
o
 a
n
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l’s
 r
o
le
. 
  

  E
th
ic
a
l 
G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 t
ra
in
in
g
 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
s
 t
o
 b
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 f
o
r 

in
c
lu
s
io
n
 w
it
h
in
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
T
ra
in
in
g
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 –
 s
e
e
 b
e
lo
w
. 
 

 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 H
u
m
a
n
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 2
0
0
9
 

s
ta
ff
 s
u
rv
e
y
, 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 o
n
 e
th
ic
a
l 
fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
 a
re
 

in
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
d
. 

  H
G
S
 

   C
O
 (
H
R
) 

 
  E
th
ic
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 

 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

S
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 

2
0
0
8
/0
9
 

Page 33



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 a

n
d
 C

e
n
tr

a
l 
F
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n
 A

c
ti
o
n
 T

ra
c
k
e
rs

 Q
u
a
rt

e
r 

2
 2

0
0
8
-0

9
 

 

 
2
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
P
ri
o
ri
ty
 K
e
y
 A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 P
ro
g
re
s
s
 t
o
 

D
a
te
 

R
is
k
s
/C
h
a
ll
e
n
g
e
s
 

K
e
y
 A
c
ti
o
n
s
 

(f
o
r 
n
e
x
t 
6
 m
o
n
th
s
) 

C
O
 

T
im
e
s
c
a
le
 

O
th
e
r 
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

T
ra
in
in
g
 f
o
r 
M
e
m
b
e
rs
 

 M
e
m
b
e
r 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
w
o
rk
in
g
 g
ro
u
p
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 c
h
a
ir
e
d
 b
y
 

th
e
 A
C
E
 (
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
) 

 M
e
m
b
e
r 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 b
y
 M
e
m
b
e
r 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 i
n
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
8
. 
  

 T
ra
in
in
g
 o
f 
M
e
m
b
e
rs
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 M
e
m
b
e
r 
C
o
d
e
 o
f 
C
o
n
d
u
c
t 

(a
n
d
 r
e
la
te
d
 c
o
d
e
s
 a
n
d
 p
ro
to
c
o
ls
) 
c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 f
o
r 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 

M
e
m
b
e
rs
 

  R
o
le
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 u
p
d
a
te
 t
ra
in
in
g
 f
o
r 
M
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
p
la
n
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 

lic
e
n
s
in
g
 p
a
n
e
ls
 t
o
 b
e
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
tr
a
in
in
g
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
. 

 W
o
rk
in
g
 t
o
w
a
rd
 C
h
a
rt
e
rm
a
rk
 P
lu
s
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 
a
c
c
re
d
it
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

m
e
m
b
e
r 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 

  H
S
M
D
 

    H
S
M
D
 

  O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

    O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

 

T
ra
in
in
g
 f
o
r 
O
ff
ic
e
rs
 

 P
ro
v
id
in
g
 a
ll 
o
ff
ic
e
rs
 w
it
h
 a
 g
o
o
d
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
th
e
 r
o
le
 o
f 

m
e
m
b
e
rs
 a
s
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 t
o
 t
h
e
ir
 r
o
le
. 

 In
tr
o
d
u
c
e
 a
 ‘
O
n
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
 I
n
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 t
h
a
t 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
 

a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
is
te
n
tl
y
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
e
s
 n
e
w
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

w
o
rk
in
g
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

  S
p
e
c
if
ic
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 c
o
m
p
e
te
n
c
ie
s
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
te
d
 

fo
r 
v
a
ry
in
g
 l
e
v
e
ls
 o
f 
s
ta
ff
 (
a
lo
n
g
 w
it
h
 t
a
ilo
re
d
 c
o
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ry
 

tr
a
in
in
g
) 
in
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 a
re
a
s
; 

•
 
F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

•
 
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 C
o
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
  

•
 
D
e
le
g
a
ti
o
n
s
, 
d
e
c
is
io
n
 m
a
k
in
g
 a
n
d
 l
e
g
a
l 
c
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
 

•
 
C
o
d
e
s
 a
n
d
 P
ro
to
c
o
ls
 

•
 
R
is
k
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

•
 
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 K
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

•
 
P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
 

 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 H
u
m
a
n
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
re
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 o
f 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ti
n
g
 a
n
 i
n
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 
o
ff
ic
e
rs
 a
n
d
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
c
o
re
 c
o
m
p
e
te
n
c
ie
s
 f
o
r 
m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
. 

 

  C
O
 (
H
R
) 

  O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

 

 Page 34



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 a

n
d
 C

e
n
tr

a
l 
F
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n
 A

c
ti
o
n
 T

ra
c
k
e
rs

 Q
u
a
rt

e
r 

2
 2

0
0
8
-0

9
 

 

 
3
 

 L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r:

  
A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 
C
h
ie
f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

 
 

 
(C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
) 

O
v
e
ra
ll
 P
ro
g
re
s
s
 R
a
ti
n
g
 

 

C
o
d
e
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
P
ri
o
ri
ty
 

C
o
n
tr
ib
u
to
ry
 O
ff
ic
e
r(
s
) 
(C
O
) 

V
P
-3
a
 

S
tr
e
n
g
th
e
n
 o
u
r 
d
e
m
o
c
ra
ti
c
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 p
o
lic
y
 m
a
k
in
g
 

V
P
-3
b
 

M
a
x
im
is
e
 m
e
m
b
e
r 
in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 p
o
lic
y
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t,
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 m
a
k
in
g
 a
n
d
 a
c
c
o
u
n
ta
b
ili
ty
 

C
h
ie
f 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
L
e
g
a
l 
L
ic
e
n
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 R
e
g
is
tr
a
ti
o
n
 

C
h
ie
f 
D
e
m
o
c
ra
ti
c
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
  

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 a
n
d
 M
e
m
b
e
r 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
 

O
v
e
ra
ll
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
P
ro
g
re
s
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
P
ri
o
ri
ty
 

W
o
rk
 i
s
 w
e
ll 
u
n
d
e
rw
a
y
 t
o
 s
tr
e
n
g
th
e
n
 o
u
r 
d
e
m
o
c
ra
ti
c
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 a
n
d
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 m
o
re
 i
n
 p
o
lic
y
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t,
 t
h
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
 i
s
 r
a
te
d
 a
s
 a
m
b
e
r 
a
s
 t
h
e
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
 A
re
a
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
s
 w
o
rk
 i
s
 n
o
t 

a
s
 a
d
v
a
n
c
e
d
 a
s
 i
t 
s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
. 
 

 

R
e
f 

T
it
le
 

B
a
s
e
 

li
n
e
 

T
a
rg
e
t 

Y
e
a
r 
to
 D
a
te
 R
e
s
u
lt
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

D
a
ta
 Q
u
a
li
ty
 

B
P
-2
9
 

V
o
te
r 
tu
rn
 o
u
t 

3
5
.7
6
%
 

N
/A
 

3
5
.7
6
%
 

2
0
0
8
 e
le
c
ti
o
n
 r
e
s
u
lt
 u
s
e
d
 a
s
 b
a
s
e
lin
e
, 
n
e
x
t 
lo
c
a
l 
e
le
c
ti
o
n
s
 d
u
e
 i
n
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
0
 

N
o
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 

w
it
h
 d
a
ta
 

B
P
-3
7
 

%
 k
e
y
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 n
o
t 
in
 f
o
rw
a
rd
 p
la
n
 

3
3
%
 

1
5
%
 

1
2
%
 

3
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 d
id
 n
o
t 
a
p
p
e
a
r 
in
 t
h
e
 F
o
rw
a
rd
 P
la
n
 a
t 
th
e
 t
im
e
 o
f 
p
u
b
lic
a
ti
o
n
 d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 o
f 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
o
n
 2
2
n
d
 M
a
y
 t
o
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 t
h
e
 d
e
fi
n
it
io
n
 o
f 
k
e
y
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 -
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 i
t 

w
a
s
 n
o
t 
p
o
s
s
ib
le
 f
o
r 
th
e
s
e
 t
o
 b
e
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 f
o
rw
a
rd
 p
la
n
. 
 T
h
e
s
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 h
a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 r
e
m
o
v
e
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 c
a
lc
u
la
ti
o
n
. 
 

N
o
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 

w
it
h
 d
a
ta
 

 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
P
ri
o
ri
ty
 K
e
y
 A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

to
 D
a
te
 

R
is
k
s
/C
h
a
ll
e
n
g
e
s
 

K
e
y
 A
c
ti
o
n
s
 

(f
o
r 
n
e
x
t 
6
 m
o
n
th
s
) 

C
O
 

T
im
e
s
c
a
le
 

O
th
e
r 
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ti
n
g
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 o
u
r 
d
e
m
o
c
ra
ti
c
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 

R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
ro
le
 o
f 
fu
ll
 c
o
u
n
c
il
  

 E
x
te
n
d
in
g
 s
c
o
p
e
 o
f 
B
u
d
g
e
t 
a
n
d
 P
o
lic
y
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 -
 t
h
e
 

fo
llo
w
in
g
 p
la
n
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 a
d
d
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
n
d
 p
o
lic
y
 

fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
 

•
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 W
e
llb
e
in
g
 P
la
n
; 

•
 

E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
; 

•
 

C
lim
a
te
 C
h
a
n
g
e
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
1
; 
a
n
d
 

•
 

L
e
e
d
s
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
. 

 R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
th
re
s
h
o
ld
 f
o
r 
k
e
y
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 s
o
 t
h
a
t 
m
o
re
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 

a
re
 n
o
ti
fi
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 f
o
rw
a
rd
 P
la
n
 

 In
it
ia
l 
d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
 h
e
ld
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 L
e
a
d
e
rs
, 
h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
u
n
c
e
rt
a
in
 

a
p
p
e
ti
te
 f
o
r 
re
v
ie
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 r
o
le
 o
f 
F
u
ll 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
o
th
e
r 
th
a
n
 a
t 

th
e
 m
a
rg
in
s
 o
f 
th
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 t
e
rm
s
 o
f 
ti
m
in
g
s
 

o
f 
it
e
m
s
. 

   

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 -
 n
o
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 a
t 
th
is
 t
im
e
 

H
G
S
 

N
/A
 

 

In
c
re
a
s
in
g
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 P
o
li
c
y
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 T
e
rm
s
 o
f 
re
fe
re
n
c
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 a
t 
th
e
 A
n
n
u
a
l 
C
o
u
n
c
il 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
. 
 M
e
m
o
ra
n
d
u
m
 o
f 
U
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
 a
n
d
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
 C
h
a
ir
s
 a
g
re
e
d
 t
o
 c
la
ri
fy
 

ro
le
s
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 p
o
lic
y
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t.
 

 K
P
M
G
 e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 t
o
 a
u
d
it
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 

e
x
a
m
in
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 r
o
le
 i
n
 p
o
lic
y
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

   M
e
m
b
e
r 
in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 o
f 
p
o
lic
y
 a
t 
a
n
 

e
a
rl
y
 s
ta
g
e
 e
n
s
u
re
s
 a
 f
u
ll 
ra
n
g
e
 o
f 
v
ie
w
 a
re
 

re
p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 r
o
b
u
s
t 
a
n
d
 s
o
u
n
d
 p
o
lic
y
 

m
a
k
in
g
. 

   L
e
a
d
e
rs
 a
n
d
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 C
h
a
ir
s
 A
d
v
is
o
ry
 G
ro
u
p
 t
o
 m
e
e
t 
to
 

d
is
c
u
s
s
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
M
e
m
o
ra
n
d
u
m
 o
f 
U
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 

a
n
d
 w
a
y
s
 t
o
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
in
v
o
lv
e
 s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 i
n
 p
o
lic
y
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

 K
P
M
G
 r
e
p
o
rt
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 w
h
ic
h
 a
n
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 w
ill
 b
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

   H
S
M
D
 

     H
S
M
D
 

 

   D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 

     M
a
r 
2
0
0
9
 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
 T
h
e
 H
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 W
e
llb
e
in
g
 P
la
n
, 
E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 C
lim
a
te
 C
h
a
n
g
e
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
re
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 b
e
in
g
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
. 

Page 35



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 a

n
d
 C

e
n
tr

a
l 
F
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n
 A

c
ti
o
n
 T

ra
c
k
e
rs

 Q
u
a
rt

e
r 

2
 2

0
0
8
-0

9
 

 

 
4
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
P
ri
o
ri
ty
 K
e
y
 A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

to
 D
a
te
 

R
is
k
s
/C
h
a
ll
e
n
g
e
s
 

K
e
y
 A
c
ti
o
n
s
 

(f
o
r 
n
e
x
t 
6
 m
o
n
th
s
) 

C
O
 

T
im
e
s
c
a
le
 

O
th
e
r 
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

E
n
h
a
n
c
in
g
 r
o
le
 o
f 
A
re
a
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
s
 

 N
e
w
 a
re
a
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 d
e
le
g
a
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
 i
n
 J
u
ly
 

a
lo
n
g
 w
it
h
 a
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
b
ro
a
d
e
n
in
g
 o
f 
th
e
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
s
 a
d
v
is
o
ry
 

ro
le
. 
  

 A
re
a
 D
e
liv
e
ry
 P
la
n
s
 f
o
r 
2
0
0
8
/0
9
 w
h
ic
h
 c
le
a
rl
y
 l
in
k
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

L
e
e
d
s
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
la
n
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
n
d
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
. 

   

  K
e
y
 r
is
k
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 l
a
c
k
 o
f 
u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
m
e
m
b
e
rs
 

a
n
d
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 o
n
 t
h
e
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 r
o
le
 o
f 
a
re
a
 

c
o
m
m
it
te
e
s
. 

  W
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 A
re
a
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
to
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 t
o
 A
re
a
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
s
 t
o
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
lly
 h
ig
h
lig
h
t 
k
e
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

lo
c
a
lit
y
. 

 D
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 
ti
m
e
ly
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 t
o
 

a
re
a
 c
o
m
m
it
te
e
s
. 
 

 F
u
rt
h
e
r 
e
n
h
a
n
c
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 r
o
le
 o
f 
a
re
a
 c
o
m
m
it
te
e
s
 i
s
 

u
n
d
e
rw
a
y
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
e
ir
 c
o
-o
rd
in
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
lo
c
a
l 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 i
n
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 b
e
tt
e
r 
re
p
re
s
e
n
t 
th
e
 v
ie
w
s
 o
f 
lo
c
a
l 

p
e
o
p
le
 a
n
d
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ty
 f
o
r 
o
v
e
rs
e
e
in
g
 n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 

 
 

 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
E
m
p
o
w
e
rm
e
n
t 
A
g
e
n
d
a
  

 A
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 w
a
s
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 e
m
p
o
w
e
rm
e
n
t 
w
h
it
e
 p
a
p
e
r 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 

 
W
o
rk
 s
tr
e
a
m
s
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 f
o
r 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 

e
m
a
n
a
ti
n
g
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 w
h
it
e
 p
a
p
e
r.
 

•
 
Im
p
ro
v
in
g
 L
o
c
a
l 
A
c
c
o
u
n
ta
b
ili
ty
 

•
 
R
e
v
is
e
d
 c
o
d
e
s
 o
f 
c
o
n
d
u
c
t 
fo
r 
M
e
m
b
e
rs
 a
n
d
  

O
ff
ic
e
rs
 

•
 
M
a
k
in
g
 a
n
d
 E
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
b
y
la
w
s
 

•
 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 P
a
p
e
r 
o
n
 M
a
y
o
rs
  

•
 
T
im
e
 o
ff
 e
n
ti
tl
e
m
e
n
ts
 

•
 
C
o
d
e
 o
f 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 o
n
 l
o
c
a
l 

g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
p
u
b
lic
it
y
 

 A
w
a
it
in
g
 g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 f
ro
m
 D
C
L
G
 o
n
 e
m
p
o
w
e
rm
e
n
t 
w
h
it
e
 

p
a
p
e
r 
- 
in
 t
h
e
 i
n
te
ri
m
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 i
n
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 t
o
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
s
e
 n
e
w
 a
g
e
n
d
a
s
. 

   H
S
M
D
 

H
G
S
 

 C
O
L
L
R
 

 ?
 
C
D
S
O
 

C
D
S
O
 

   C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
0
8
 

 ?
 
 ?
 
?
 
?
 

 

  Page 36



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 2

C
e
n
tr
a
l 
a
n
d
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 F
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 A
c
ti
o
n
 T
ra
c
k
e
rs
 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2
 2
0
0
8
-0
9

P
I 
R
e
f

B
a
s
e
li
n
e

2
0
0
8
/0
9
 T
a
rg
e
t

Y
e
a
r 
to
 D
a
te
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e

R
A
G
 R
a
ti
n
g

D
a
ta
 Q
u
a
li
ty

N
I 
1
8
5

B
a
s
e
lin
e
 t
o
 b
e
 s
e
t 
fr
o
m
 2
0
0
8
 

c
a
le
n
d
a
r 
y
e
a
r

T
o
 b
e
 s
e
t 
w
h
e
n
 t
h
e
 

b
a
s
e
lin
e
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

c
a
lc
u
la
te
d

n
/a

n
/a

N
o
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
s

C
o
n
tr
ib
u
to
ry
 

O
ff
ic
e
r

T
im
e
s
c
a
le

T
o
m
 K
n
o
w
la
n
d

R
e
v
is
e
d
 p
o
lic
y
 

a
g
re
e
d
 b
y
 e
n
d
 o
f 

y
e
a
r

M
a
rk
 A
llm

a
n

O
n
g
o
in
g

T
o
m
 K
n
o
w
la
n
d

O
n
g
o
in
g

T
o
m
 K
n
o
w
la
n
d

C
o
m
p
le
te
 p
ro
je
c
t 

d
e
liv
e
ra
b
le
s
 b
y
 

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8

H
e
le
n
 F
ra
n
k
lin

O
n
g
o
in
g
 t
o
 2
0
1
1

E
N
V
-1
b

A
 'c
o
m
b
in
e
d
 h
e
a
t 
a
n
d
 p
o
w
e
r'
 p
la
n
t 
is
 o
n
e
 

th
a
t 
u
s
e
s
 t
h
e
 h
e
a
t 
fr
o
m
 p
o
w
e
r 
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

h
e
a
t 
b
u
ild
in
g
s
. 
 W

h
ils
t 
th
e
 i
n
it
ia
l 
s
e
t-
u
p
 c
o
s
ts
 

a
re
 h
ig
h
, 
th
e
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 o
f 
th
is
 s
y
s
te
m
 

p
ro
v
id
e
s
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm

. 
 I
t 
w
o
rk
s
 

b
e
s
t 
w
h
e
n
 s
u
p
p
ly
in
g
 m
ix
e
d
 u
s
e
 n
e
w
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
, 
s
o
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 i
s
 a
 c
o
n
s
ta
n
t 

d
e
m
a
n
d
 f
o
r 
h
e
a
t 
(e
.g
. 
o
ff
ic
e
s
/c
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 

v
e
n
u
e
s
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 d
a
y
, 
a
n
d
 h
o
te
ls
/r
e
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 

s
it
e
s
 a
t 
n
ig
h
t)
.

O
v
e
ra
ll 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 m
a
d
e
; 
h
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
w
o
rk
 i
s
 t
o
 b
e
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
to
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 
c
o
lle
c
ti
n
g
 d
a
ta
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
is
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
p
ri
o
ri
ty
 c
a
n
 b
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 m
o
re
 a
c
c
u
ra
te
ly
 n
e
x
t 
q
u
a
rt
e
r.
  
W
o
rk
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 d
e
fi
n
e
 n
e
w
 s
o
ft
w
a
re
 t
o
 g
iv
e
 d
e
ta
ile
d
 e
n
e
rg
y
 c
o
n
s
u
m
p
ti
o
n
, 

w
h
ic
h
 a
llo
w
s
 f
o
r 
ta
rg
e
t 
s
e
tt
in
g
 a
n
d
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 w
id
e
. 
 T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
is
 w
o
rk
in
g
 t
o
w
a
rd
s
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
s
c
h
e
m
e
s
 t
o
 h
e
lp
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 c
a
rb
o
n
 e
m
is
s
io
n
s
, 
fr
o
m
 u
s
in
g
 s
ta
ff
 a
s
 'e
n
e
rg
y
 g
u
a
rd
ia
n
s
', 
to
 b
e
in
g
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
c
o
m
b
in
e
d
 h
e
a
t 
a
n
d
 p
o
w
e
r 
s
c
h
e
m
e
s
 i
n
 L
e
e
d
s
; 
fr
o
m
 i
n
c
re
a
s
in
g
 

s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 t
ra
v
e
l 
o
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
s
ta
ff
, 
to
 l
a
u
n
c
h
in
g
 t
h
e
 L
e
e
d
s
 C
lim

a
te
 C
h
a
rt
e
r 
(f
o
c
u
s
e
d
 o
n
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
),
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 L
e
e
d
s
 C
lim

a
te
 P
le
d
g
e
 (
a
im
e
d
 a
t 
in
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
).

O
v
e
ra
ll
 P
ro
g
re
s
s
 R
a
ti
n
g

A
m
b
e
r

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
P
ri
o
ri
ty

R
e
d
u
c
e
 e
m
is
s
io
n
s
 f
ro
m
 p
u
b
li
c
 s
e
c
to
r 
b
u
il
d
in
g
s
, 
o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
 

a
n
d
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 o
th
e
rs
 t
o
 d
o
 s
o

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 r
a
is
e
 a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 o
f 
th
e
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 a
n
d
 t
o
 e
n
g
a
g
e
 

v
o
lu
n
te
e
rs
.

R
is
k
 /
 C
h
a
ll
e
n
g
e
s

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
p
ri
o
ri
ty
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 

C
O
2
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

2
0
0
8
-0
9
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 u
s
e
d
 a
s
 b
o
th
 t
h
e
 b
a
s
e
lin
in
g
 y
e
a
r,
 a
n
d
 t
o
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
 a
n
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 a
n
d
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

re
m
a
in
in
g
 t
w
o
 y
e
a
rs
. 
 D
a
ta
 a
re
 c
o
lla
te
d
 f
ro
m
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
d
if
fe
re
n
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il,
 a
n
d
 

e
m
is
s
io
n
s
 f
ro
m
 o
u
ts
o
u
rc
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 r
e
c
o
rd
e
d
 w
h
e
re
v
e
r 
p
o
s
s
ib
le
. 
 B
e
c
a
u
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
m
p
le
x
 

n
a
tu
re
 o
f 
th
e
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r,
 a
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
-m

a
p
p
in
g
 e
x
e
rc
is
e
 i
s
 u
n
d
e
rw
a
y
, 
to
 e
n
s
u
re
 d
a
ta
 q
u
a
lit
y
. 
 T
h
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 s
e
c
o
n
d
 h
a
lf
 o
f 
2
0
0
8
-0
9
. 
 B
a
s
e
lin
e
 f
ig
u
re
s
 f
o
r 
Q
2
 a
re
 c
o
m
p
le
te
; 
h
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 

th
e
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
c
o
m
p
a
re
s
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o
n
 a
n
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
b
a
s
is
, 
it
 i
s
 n
o
t 
p
o
s
s
ib
le
 t
o
 d
ra
w
 a
n
y
 c
o
n
c
lu
s
io
n
s
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
s
e
 f
ig
u
re
s
 (
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 w
ill
 l
ik
e
ly
 f
lu
c
tu
a
te
 f
ro
m
 s
e
a
s
o
n
 t
o
 s
e
a
s
o
n
).

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t

R
e
fe
re
n
c
e

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 p
ro
je
c
t 
im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 c
o
lle
a
g
u
e
s
 f
ro
m
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 

a
u
th
o
ri
ty
.

F
u
tu
re
 E
n
e
rg
y
 Y
o
rk
s
h
ir
e
 a
re
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
n
g
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

n
e
x
t 
th
re
e
 y
e
a
rs
.

O
v
e
ra
ll
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
p
ro
g
re
s
s

P
a
u
l 
B
ro
o
k

O
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n

O
th
e
r 
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n

D
e
fi
n
it
io
n

K
e
y
 A
c
ti
o
n
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 r
o
ll 
o
u
t 
o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
; 
th
e
 a
c
tu
a
l 
d
e
la
y
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
.

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 a
n
d
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 E
M
A
S
 g
ro
u
p
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
, 

a
n
d
 a
n
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
P
o
lic
y
 d
ra
ft
e
d
. 
 S
e
v
e
n
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
w
 

b
e
e
n
 a
c
c
re
d
it
e
d
 t
o
 E
M
A
S
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
.

F
a
ilu
re
 t
o
 r
e
ta
in
 E
M
A
S
 a
c
c
re
d
it
a
ti
o
n
.

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 g
ro
u
p
s

P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 o
n
 t
h
e
 l
e
g
a
l 
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 o
f 
th
e
 r
e
g
io
n
a
l 
E
n
e
rg
y
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

C
o
m
p
a
n
y
 s
te
e
ri
n
g
 g
ro
u
p
 a
re
 n
e
a
rl
y
 c
o
m
p
le
te
. 
 W

e
 a
im
 t
o
 

p
ro
g
re
s
s
 t
h
is
 a
t 
a
 p
ro
je
c
t 
le
v
e
l 
e
.g
. 
E
a
s
tg
a
te
. 
A
 c
o
m
b
in
e
d
 h
e
a
t 

a
n
d
 p
o
w
e
r 
p
ro
je
c
t 
c
a
n
 d
e
liv
e
r 
c
h
e
a
p
e
r,
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
h
e
a
t 
a
n
d
 p
o
w
e
r 

to
 n
e
w
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
, 
re
d
u
c
in
g
 c
o
s
ts
 f
o
r 
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 

re
d
u
c
in
g
 c
a
rb
o
n
 e
m
is
s
io
n
s
 d
u
e
 t
o
 i
ts
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
.

F
a
ilu
re
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 e
ff
e
c
ts
 o
f 
c
lim

a
te
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 o
n
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 

a
n
d
 f
u
tu
re
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
 (
a
n
d
 v
ic
e
 v
e
rs
a
).

In
c
re
a
s
in
g
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
d
e
s
ig
n
 p
re
s
s
u
re
s
 a
n
d
 e
x
p
e
c
ta
ti
o
n
s
 h
a
v
e
 

Im
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 r
e
v
e
n
u
e
 b
u
d
g
e
t.

R
e
p
la
c
in
g
 8
0
,0
0
0
 s
tr
e
e
t 
lig
h
ts
 a
c
ro
s
s
 L
e
e
d
s
: 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 J
u
ly
 

m
ile
s
to
n
e
 r
e
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
a
n
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
a
n
d
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

s
tr
e
e
t 
lig
h
ti
n
g
 a
s
s
e
t 
w
h
ic
h
 m
in
im
is
e
d
 e
n
e
rg
y
 u
s
e
 w
a
s
 m
e
t,
 

in
d
u
s
tr
ia
l 
a
c
ti
o
n
 b
y
 e
le
c
tr
ic
a
l 
jo
in
te
rs
 h
a
s
 l
e
d
 t
o
 a
 c
o
n
c
e
s
s
io
n
 

re
q
u
e
s
t 
to
 d
e
la
y
 t
h
e
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
 m
ile
s
to
n
e
. 
 A
 n
e
w
 e
n
e
rg
y
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
t,
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 t
o
 3
1
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
1
0
, 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 s
ig
n
e
d
. 

L
e
e
d
s
 C
 C

T
h
e
 i
n
d
u
s
tr
ia
l 
a
c
ti
o
n
 (
n
o
w
 e
n
d
e
d
) 
h
a
s
 r
e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 a
n
 a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 d
e
la
y
 

o
f 
tw
o
 m
o
n
th
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C
o
re
 I
n
v
e
s
tm
e
n
t 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
.

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
 e
n
e
rg
y
 u
s
a
g
e
 a
n
d
 t
o
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

a
c
ti
o
n
 a
s
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
.

T
h
e
 C
a
rb
o
n
 T
ru
s
t 
h
a
s
 c
o
m
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 p
a
y
in
g
 5
0
%
 t
o
w
a
rd
s
 t
h
e
 c
o
s
t 

o
f 
a
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 E
n
e
rg
y
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 f
o
r 
th
e
 l
e
is
u
re
 c
e
n
tr
e
 e
s
ta
te
. 
 

A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
fu
n
d
in
g
 s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 L
C
C
's
 E
n
e
rg
y
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
U
n
it
. 
 

C
o
s
t 
in
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 u
ti
lit
ie
s
 r
e
m
a
in
 a
 m
a
jo
r 
c
o
s
t 
p
re
s
s
u
re
. 
 T
h
e
 a
g
e
 o
f 

s
o
m
e
 l
e
is
u
re
 c
e
n
tr
e
s
 m
e
a
n
 t
h
e
 b
u
ild
in
g
s
 d
o
 n
o
t 
ra
n
k
 f
a
v
o
u
ra
b
ly
 i
n
 

te
rm

s
 o
f 
e
n
e
rg
y
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
. 
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
's
te
p
 c
h
a
n
g
e
' i
n
 t
h
is
 

a
re
a
 a
re
 n
o
t 
e
x
te
n
s
iv
e
. 

T
h
e
 e
n
e
rg
y
 g
u
a
rd
ia
n
 n
e
tw
o
rk
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 s
e
t 
u
p
 t
o
 a
c
ti
v
e
ly
 r
a
is
e
 

a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 o
f 
e
n
e
rg
y
 u
s
a
g
e
 a
n
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 t
h
e
 b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 
o
f 
a
ll 
s
ta
ff
 

a
c
ro
s
s
 L
e
e
d
s
 C
it
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il.
 T
h
e
 a
im
 i
s
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 e
n
e
rg
y
 u
s
a
g
e
 

a
n
d
 a
s
 a
 c
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
 m
a
k
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 i
n
 o
u
r 
g
re
e
n
h
o
u
s
e
 g
a
s
 

e
m
is
s
io
n
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 a
m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
m
o
n
e
y
 s
p
e
n
t 
o
n
 f
u
e
l 
b
ill
s
. 
 T
h
e
 

e
n
e
rg
y
 g
u
a
rd
ia
n
s
 h
a
v
e
 j
u
s
t 
b
e
e
n
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 

s
u
g
g
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 s
c
h
e
m
e
. 
 'E

n
e
rg
y
 A
n
g
e
ls
' 

h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 f
o
r 
e
a
c
h
 l
ib
ra
ry
 s
it
e
. 
 T
h
e
 n
e
w
 G
a
rf
o
rt
h
 

L
ib
ra
ry
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 d
e
s
ig
n
e
d
 w
it
h
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
k
e
y
 g
re
e
n
 e
le
m
e
n
ts
.

A
s
 w
it
h
 a
n
y
 v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 g
ro
u
p
, 
it
 i
s
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
to
 k
e
e
p
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 

n
e
tw
o
rk
 e
n
g
a
g
e
d
; 
if
 t
h
is
 d
o
e
s
n
't 
h
a
p
p
e
n
, 
th
e
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 o
f 
th
e
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 

w
ill
 b
e
 l
im
it
e
d
.

Page 37



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 2

C
e
n
tr
a
l 
a
n
d
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 F
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 A
c
ti
o
n
 T
ra
c
k
e
rs
 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2
 2
0
0
8
-0
9

C
o
n
tr
ib
u
to
ry
 

O
ff
ic
e
r

T
im
e
s
c
a
le

T
o
m
 K
n
o
w
la
n
d

O
n
g
o
in
g

J
o
n
 A
n
d
re
w
s

A
n
n
u
a
l 
e
v
e
n
t

L
e
e
d
s
 C
C
 D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te

C
it
y
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t

C
it
y
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t

C
it
y
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t

L
e
e
d
s
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 T
ru
s
t

C
it
y
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t

C
it
y
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t

C
it
y
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t

J
o
h
n
 K
e
a
rs
le
y

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s

J
u
li
e
 M
e
a
k
in

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s

D
y
la
n
 R
o
b
e
rt
s

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s

L
e
g
a
l 
&
 D
e
m
o
c
ra
ti
c
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s

  
  

N
/A

T
h
e
 L
e
e
d
s
 C
lim

a
te
 C
h
a
n
g
e
 P
le
d
g
e
 i
s
 a
n
 i
n
it
ia
ti
v
e
 a
im
e
d
 a
t 

in
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
, 
e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
in
g
 t
h
e
m
 t
o
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 t
h
e
ir
 b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 
to
 

re
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
ir
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
lim

a
te
 c
h
a
n
g
e
. 
 T
h
e
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 r
e
c
e
n
tl
y
 

la
u
n
c
h
e
d
 v
ia
 t
h
e
 L
e
e
d
s
 I
n
it
ia
ti
v
e
 w
e
b
s
it
e
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
o
s
e
 w
h
o
 h
a
v
e
 

s
ig
n
e
d
 t
h
e
 p
le
d
g
e
 w
ill
 b
e
 c
o
n
ta
c
te
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
u
tu
re
 w
it
h
 p
ra
c
ti
c
a
l 
ti
p
s
 

o
n
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
re
d
u
c
in
g
 t
h
e
ir
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
(f
o
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
, 

ti
p
s
 o
n
 c
o
m
p
o
s
ti
n
g
, 
a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 m
o
d
e
s
 o
f 
tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt
 e
tc
).

 T
h
e
 L
e
e
d
s
 C
lim

a
te
 C
h
a
rt
e
r 
is
 a
 s
im
ila
r 
in
it
ia
ti
v
e
, 
b
u
t 
is
 a
im
e
d
 a
t 

c
o
m
p
a
n
ie
s
/o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 w
h
o
 w
a
n
t 
to
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
ir
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
b
y
 e
x
a
m
in
in
g
 t
h
e
ir
 b
u
ild
in
g
/f
le
e
t 
e
m
is
s
io
n
s
 e
tc
.

C
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 E
U
 f
o
r 
s
o
m
e
 c
lim

a
te
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 e
v
e
n
ts

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 p
ro
m
o
te
 b
o
th
 s
c
h
e
m
e
s
 b
y
 l
in
k
in
g
 v
ia
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
' 

w
e
b
s
it
e
s
.

F
o
llo
w
-u
p
 c
o
n
ta
c
t 
w
it
h
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 h
a
v
e
 p
le
d
g
e
d
 t
o
 d
o
 s
o
m
e
th
in
g
, 

to
 o
ff
e
r 
p
ra
c
ti
c
a
l 
ti
p
s
 o
n
 h
o
w
 t
o
 m
e
e
t 
th
e
ir
 p
le
d
g
e
(s
).

In
 l
in
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 'O

n
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il'
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
, 
th
e
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 

T
ra
v
e
l 
P
la
n
 a
g
e
n
d
a
 h
a
s
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
e
d
 b
y
 m
o
v
in
g
 a
w
a
y
 f
ro
m
 

d
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
-b
a
s
e
d
 t
ra
v
e
l 
p
la
n
s
 t
o
 a
n
 u
p
d
a
te
d
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 T
ra
v
e
l 

P
la
n
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
, 
w
it
h
 s
it
e
 t
ra
v
e
l 
p
la
n
s
 b
e
in
g
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 f
ro
m
 

J
u
n
e
 2
0
0
8
. 
 T
h
e
 p
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
 o
f 
s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 t
ra
v
e
l 
o
p
ti
o
n
s
 i
s
 

o
n
g
o
in
g
, 
w
it
h
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 t
o
 r
a
ti
o
n
a
lis
e
 a
n
d
 r
e
a
llo
c
a
te
 c
a
r 

p
a
rk
in
g
 p
e
rm

it
s
, 
a
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
c
a
s
u
a
l/
e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
c
a
r 
u
s
e
r 
s
ta
tu
s
 

b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 n
e
e
d
, 
p
re
p
a
ra
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 r
o
ll 
o
u
t 
th
e
 W

h
iz
z
G
o
 

c
a
r 
c
lu
b
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
ly
, 
a
n
d
 a
n
 a
s
s
is
te
d
 b
ik
e
 p
u
rc
h
a
s
e
 s
c
h
e
m
e
.

C
o
m
p
le
te
 p
o
s
t 
re
le
a
s
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 o
ff
ic
e
r 
p
o
s
t.

C
a
th
e
ri
n
e
 B
la
n
s
h
a
rd

W
a
y
n
e
 B
a
x
te
r

L
e
e
d
s
 C
C
 C
o
n
tr
ib
u
to
ry
 O
ff
ic
e
rs

P
h
il
 C
ra
b
tr
e
e

S
te
v
e
 S
p
e
a
k

P
a
u
l 
S
te
p
h
e
n
s

M
a
rt
in
 F
a
rr
in
g
to
n

G
a
ry
 B
a
rt
le
tt

C
o
n
tr
ib
u
to
ry
 O
ff
ic
e
r

W
e
s
t 
Y
o
rk
s
h
ir
e
 F
ir
e
 &
 R
e
s
c
u
e

V
C
F
S

J
o
h
n
 P
re
s
to
n
/J
o
h
n
 H
o
ll
a
n
d

M
ic
k
 S
m
it
h

L
e
e
d
s
 C
o
ll
e
g
e
s

C
a
ro
ly
n
 W
ri
g
h
t

C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
n
g
 O
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s

C
h
ri
s
 B
u
tl
e
r/
M
ik
e
 D
o
y
le

O
th
e
r 
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
p
ri
o
ri
ty
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 

R
is
k
 /
 C
h
a
ll
e
n
g
e
s

K
e
y
 A
c
ti
o
n
s

Page 38



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 3

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 a
n
d
 C

e
n
tr
a
l 
F
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 R

e
p
o
rt
 Q

u
a
rt
e
r 
2
 2
0
0
8
-0
9

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

In
d
ic
a
to
r 
T
y
p
e

R
e
fe
re
n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e
rv
ic
e

F
re
q
u
e
n
c
y
 &
 

M
e
a
s
u
re

R
is
e
 o
r 

F
a
ll

B
a
s
e
lin
e

L
a
s
t 
Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

T
a
rg
e
t

Q
tr
1

Q
tr
2

P
re
d
ic
te
d
 

F
u
ll 
Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

D
a
ta
 Q

u
a
lit
y

B
P
-3
1

N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
m
a
jo
r 
p
ro
je
c
ts
, 
in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
tl
y
 

a
s
s
u
re
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 P
ro
je
c
t 
A
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 U
n
it
, 

w
it
h
 a
 r
e
d
 r
a
ti
n
g
 f
o
r 
th
e
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o
f 

o
v
e
ra
ll 
p
ro
je
c
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts

A
u
d
it
 &
 R
is
k

Q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y

N
u
m
e
ri
c
a
l

F
a
ll

N
.A
.

N
.A
.

0
N
.A
.

1
U
n
a
b
le
 t
o
 

p
re
d
ic
t 
y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
 p
o
s
it
io
n

N
o
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 

w
it
h
 d
a
ta

B
P
-3
0

N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
m
a
jo
r 
p
ro
je
c
ts
 n
o
t 
re
c
e
iv
in
g
 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
p
ro
je
c
t 
a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
.

A
u
d
it
 &
 R
is
k

Q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y

N
u
m
e
ri
c
a
l

F
a
ll

N
.A
.

N
.A
.

0
N
.A
.

3
6

U
n
a
b
le
 t
o
 

p
re
d
ic
t 
y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
 p
o
s
it
io
n

N
o
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 

w
it
h
 d
a
ta

B
P
-0
3

%
 v
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
c
o
u
n
c
il 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
in
 y
e
a
r

F
in
a
n
c
e

Q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y

%

F
a
ll

N
e
w
 

In
d
ic
a
to
r

N
e
w
 

In
d
ic
a
to
r

0
.0
%

+
0
.6
%

+
0
.5
%

+
0
.1
%

N
o
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 

w
it
h
 d
a
ta

B
P
-2
5
c

%
 o
f 
to
p
 e
a
rn
e
rs
 w
h
o
 a
re
 d
is
a
b
le
d
 

(e
x
c
lu
d
in
g
 m

a
in
ta
in
e
d
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
)

H
R

Q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y

%

R
is
e

4
.0
5
%

4
.0
5
%

4
.2
0
%

3
.3
6
%

3
.3
1
%

4
.2
0
%

N
o
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 

w
it
h
 d
a
ta

B
P
-2
5
b

%
 o
f 
to
p
 e
a
rn
e
rs
 w
h
o
 a
re
 f
ro
m
 B
M
E
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s

H
R

Q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y

%

R
is
e

5
.9
6
%

5
.9
6
%

6
.2
5
%

6
.1
3
%

6
.2
1
%

6
.2
5
%

N
o
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 

w
it
h
 d
a
ta

B
P
-2
5
a

%
 o
f 
to
p
 e
a
rn
e
rs
 w
h
o
 a
re
 w
o
m
e
n

H
R

Q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y

%

R
is
e

3
6
.8
3
%

3
6
.8
3
%

3
9
%

3
8
.8
3
%

3
9
.2
%

3
9
%

N
o
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 

w
it
h
 d
a
ta

B
P
-2
4

%
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 s
ta
ff
 w
it
h
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 

c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 t
o
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y

H
R

Q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y

%

R
is
e

3
.1
9
%

3
.1
9
%

3
.6
%

3
.0
9
%

3
.0
8
%

3
.6
%

N
o
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 

w
it
h
 d
a
ta

4 5 6 71 2 3
C
o
u
n
c
il 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 P
la
n

C
o
u
n
c
il 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 P
la
n

C
o
u
n
c
il 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 P
la
n

C
o
u
n
c
il 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 P
la
n

C
o
u
n
c
il 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 P
la
n

T
h
is
 d
e
c
lin

e
 i
n
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ts
 a
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 m

a
k
e
 u
p
 o
f 
th
e
 t
o
p
 e
a
rn
e
rs
 p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 v
a
ri
a
b
le
. 
O
v
e
ra
ll,
 t
h
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 i
s
 e
q
u
iv
a
le
n
t 
to
 l
e
s
s
 t
h
a
n
 0
.5
 o
f 
a
 p
o
s
t.
 T
h
e
 l
in
k
s
 i
n
to
 

w
id
e
r 
s
tr
a
te
g
ie
s
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
d
is
a
b
le
d
 p
e
o
p
le
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 a
n
d
 D
iv
e
rs
it
y
 B
o
a
rd
 d
u
ri
n
g
 q
u
a
rt
e
r 
3
. 
W
o
rk
 w
ill
 a
ls
o
 l
in
k
 t
o
 i
n
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 o
u
r 
p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
re
c
o
rd
s
 o
n
 

s
ta
ff
 w

it
h
 d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
.

T
h
is
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ts
 a
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 m

a
k
e
 u
p
 o
f 
th
e
 t
o
p
 e
a
rn
e
rs
 p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 w

h
ic
h
 i
s
 v
a
ri
a
b
le
. 
O
v
e
ra
ll,
 t
h
e
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
s
 e
q
u
iv
a
le
n
t 
to
 0
.5
 m

o
re
 a
p
p
o
in
tm

e
n
ts
. 
T
h
e
 

im
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
th
is
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 w
ill
 b
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 a
n
d
 D
iv
e
rs
it
y
 B
o
a
rd
 d
u
ri
n
g
 q
u
a
rt
e
r 
3
. 
W
o
rk
 w
ill
 a
ls
o
 l
in
k
 w
it
h
 i
n
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 o
u
r 
re
c
o
rd
s
 o
n
 B
M
E
 s
ta
ff
.

T
h
is
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ts
 a
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 m

a
k
e
 u
p
 o
f 
th
e
 t
o
p
 e
a
rn
e
rs
 p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 w

h
ic
h
 i
s
 v
a
ri
a
b
le
. 
O
v
e
ra
ll,
 t
h
e
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
s
 e
q
u
iv
a
le
n
t 
to
 2
.5
 m

o
re
 a
p
p
o
in
tm

e
n
ts
. 
O
p
ti
o
n
s
 

fo
r 
fu
rt
h
e
r 
im

p
ro
v
in
g
 t
h
is
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 w
ill
 b
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 a
n
d
 D

iv
e
rs
it
y
 B
o
a
rd
 d
u
ri
n
g
 q
u
a
rt
e
r 
3
.

A
G

A
G

A
G

A
G

B
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 h
a
lf
 y
e
a
r 
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 f
o
re
c
a
s
t 
is
 a
n
 o
v
e
rs
p
e
n
d
 o
f 
£
2
.7
m
 (
0
.5
%
).
 T
h
e
 E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 s
lo
w
d
o
w
n
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
e
x
te
rn
a
l 
in
c
o
m
e
 s
o
u
rc
e
s
. 

T
h
e
 C

it
y
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
d
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
 i
s
 f
a
c
in
g
 a
 p
ro
je
c
te
d
 s
h
o
rt
fa
ll 
o
f 
£
2
.5
m
 f
ro
m
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
e
x
te
rn
a
l 
in
c
o
m
e
 s
o
u
rc
e
s
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 b
u
ild
in
g
 f
e
e
s
, 
re
n
ta
l 
in
c
o
m
e
, 
m
a
rk
e
ts
 i
n
c
o
m
e
, 

s
u
rv
e
y
o
rs
 a
n
d
 l
e
g
a
l 
fe
e
s
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 a
n
d
 S
p
o
rt
 I
n
c
o
m
e
. 
T
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
L
a
n
d
 S
e
a
rc
h
e
s
 a
re
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
in
g
 t
o
 d
e
c
lin
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 n
e
t 
e
ff
e
c
t 
is
 a
n
 o
v
e
rs
p
e
n
d
 o
f 
£
0
.5
m
. 
A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
is
 f
a
c
in
g
 

s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
in
c
re
a
s
e
s
 i
n
 i
ts
 e
n
e
rg
y
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 a
n
d
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
s
ta
ff
in
g
 c
o
s
ts
 r
e
s
u
lt
in
g
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 p
a
y
 a
w
a
rd
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 2
%
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 f
o
r 
in
 t
h
e
 b
u
d
g
e
t,
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 s
o
u
rc
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
o
 o
ff
s
e
t 

th
e
s
e
. 
D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
s
 a
re
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
in
g
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 
a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
s
 t
o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 t
h
e
 p
re
s
s
u
re
s
 w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 t
h
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
s
p
e
c
if
ic
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 w
h
e
re
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 c
a
n
 b
e
 m

a
d
e
 o
r 

a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
in
c
o
m
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
te
d
. 
T
h
e
 e
x
te
n
t 
to
 w

h
ic
h
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
s
 a
re
 n
o
t 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 i
n
 c
o
n
ta
in
in
g
 s
p
e
n
d
in
g
 p
re
s
s
u
re
s
 w
it
h
in
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 e
s
ti
m
a
te
s
 w
ill
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il'
s
 r
e
s
e
rv
e
s
.

A
G

T
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
m
a
jo
r 
p
ro
je
c
ts
 w
it
h
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
H
e
a
lt
h
C
h
e
c
k
 r
a
ti
n
g
 o
f 
A
m
b
e
r 
=
 1
2
. 
T
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
m
a
jo
r 
p
ro
je
c
ts
 w
it
h
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
H
e
a
lt
h
C
h
e
c
k
 r
a
ti
n
g
 o
f 
G
re
e
n
 =
 6
. 
T
h
e
 p
ro
je
c
ts
 w
it
h
 a
n
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
ra
ti
n
g
 

o
f 
A
m
b
e
r 
h
a
v
e
 h
a
d
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 m

a
d
e
 w
h
ic
h
 i
f 
im

p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 w
ill
 h
e
lp
 t
o
 r
a
is
e
 t
h
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
H
e
a
lt
h
C
h
e
c
k
 r
a
ti
n
g
 t
o
 G

re
e
n
 i
m
p
ro
v
in
g
 t
h
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o
f 
p
ro
je
c
t 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
.

A
G

1
9
 m

a
jo
r 
p
ro
je
c
ts
 (
3
5
%
) 
h
a
v
e
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
p
ro
je
c
t 
a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 -
 o
f 
th
e
 r
e
m
a
in
in
g
 3
6
 (
6
5
%
),
 p
ro
je
c
t 
o
w
n
e
rs
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 c
o
n
ta
c
te
d
 w
it
h
 a
 v
ie
w
 t
o
 a
rr
a
n
g
in
g
 p
ro
je
c
t 
H
e
a
lt
h
C
h
e
c
k
s
 a
s
 

s
o
o
n
 a
s
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
. 
P
F
I 
p
ro
je
c
ts
 a
re
 n
o
t 
in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
tl
y
 a
s
s
u
re
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 
th
e
ir
 l
if
e
c
y
c
le
 a
n
d
 h
a
v
e
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 n
o
t 
b
e
in
g
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
a
lc
u
la
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
B
P
-3
0
. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 P
F
I 
p
ro
je
c
ts
 a
re
 s
u
b
je
c
t 

to
 4
P
's
 G

a
te
w
a
y
 R

e
v
ie
w
s
 (
L
G
A
 p
ro
je
c
t 
d
e
liv
e
ry
 s
p
e
c
ia
lis
ts
) 
a
t 
a
 l
im

it
e
d
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
g
a
te
w
a
y
s
.

C
o
u
n
c
il 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 P
la
n

C
o
u
n
c
il 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 P
la
n

A
G

Page 39



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 3

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 a
n
d
 C

e
n
tr
a
l 
F
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 R

e
p
o
rt
 Q

u
a
rt
e
r 
2
 2
0
0
8
-0
9

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

In
d
ic
a
to
r 
T
y
p
e

R
e
fe
re
n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e
rv
ic
e

F
re
q
u
e
n
c
y
 &
 

M
e
a
s
u
re

R
is
e
 o
r 

F
a
ll

B
a
s
e
lin
e

L
a
s
t 
Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

T
a
rg
e
t

Q
tr
1

Q
tr
2

P
re
d
ic
te
d
 

F
u
ll 
Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

D
a
ta
 Q

u
a
lit
y

B
P
-2
3

%
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 s
ta
ff
 f
ro
m
 B
M
E
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 t
o
 l
o
c
a
l 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y

H
R

Q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y

%

R
is
e

7
.7
%

7
.7
%

8
%

7
.6
%

7
.7
%

8
%

N
o
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 

w
it
h
 d
a
ta

B
P
-1
8

V
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 l
e
a
v
e
rs
 a
s
 a
 p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 

s
ta
ff
 i
n
 p
o
s
t

H
R

Q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y

%

F
a
ll

8
.9
%

8
.9
%

9
%

2
%

4
.7
%

9
%

N
o
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 

w
it
h
 d
a
ta

B
P
-1
7

N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
w
o
rk
in
g
 d
a
y
s
 l
o
s
t 
to
 t
h
e
 

a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 d
u
e
 t
o
 s
ic
k
n
e
s
s
 a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 

(a
v
e
ra
g
e
 p
e
r 
F
T
E
)

H
R

M
o
n
th
ly

D
a
y
s

F
a
ll

1
2
.1
8
 d
a
y
s

1
2
.1
8
 d
a
y
s

1
1
.5
 d
a
y
s

2
.8
5
 d
a
y
s

5
.4
3
 d
a
y
s

1
1
.5
 d
a
y
s

N
o
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 

w
it
h
 d
a
ta

B
P
-0
5
d

%
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 c
o
lle

c
te
d
 b
y
 a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 

s
u
n
d
ry
 d
e
b
to
rs
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 c
o
lle
c
te
d
 w
it
h
in
 

3
0
 d
a
y
s
 o
f 
in
v
o
ic
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 

B
e
n
e
fi
ts

M
o
n
th
ly

%

R
is
e

9
7
%

9
7
%

9
7
%

8
1
.3
%

9
2
.7
%

9
7
%

N
o
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 

w
it
h
 d
a
ta

B
P
-0
5
b

%
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 c
o
lle

c
te
d
 b
y
 a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 

n
o
n
-d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 r
a
te
s
 c
o
lle
c
te
d
 i
n
 y
e
a
r

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 

B
e
n
e
fi
ts

M
o
n
th
ly

%

R
is
e

9
8
.7
2
%

9
8
.7
2
%

9
8
.6
%

3
3
.8
2
%

6
1
.4
8
%

9
8
.6
%

N
o
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 

w
it
h
 d
a
ta

B
P
-0
5
a

%
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 c
o
lle

c
te
d
 b
y
 a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
T
a
x
 c
o
lle

c
te
d
 i
n
 y
e
a
r

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 

B
e
n
e
fi
ts

M
o
n
th
ly

%

R
is
e

9
6
.4
1
%

9
6
.4
1
%

9
6
.6
5
%

2
8
.2
9
%

5
5
.7
8
%

9
6
.5
%

N
o
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 

w
it
h
 d
a
ta

1
2

1
3

8 9 1
0

1
1

C
o
u
n
c
il 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 P
la
n

C
o
u
n
c
il 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 P
la
n

C
o
u
n
c
il 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 P
la
n

T
h
is
 r
e
fl
e
c
ts
 a
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
n
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
s
ta
ff
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
d
, 
w
h
ils
t 
th
e
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
d
is
a
b
le
d
 s
ta
ff
 r
e
m
a
in
e
d
 s
ta
ti
c
 o
v
e
ra
ll.
 S
in
c
e
 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
re
p
o
rt
, 
w
o
rk
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 l
in
k
 

re
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t 
to
 m

o
re
 s
c
h
e
m
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 d
is
a
b
le
d
 p
e
o
p
le
's
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t,
 a
n
d
 w

ill
 b
e
 r
o
lle
d
 o
u
t 
m
o
re
 i
n
 q
u
a
rt
e
r 
3
, 
e
s
p
e
c
ia
lly
 l
o
o
k
in
g
 t
o
 s
e
e
 h
o
w
 m

o
re
 d
is
a
b
le
d
 p
e
o
p
le
 c
a
n
 b
e
 h
ir
e
d
. 

D
u
ri
n
g
 A
u
tu
m
n
 2
0
0
8
, 
a
ll 
s
ta
ff
 w
e
re
 a
s
k
e
d
 t
o
 u
p
d
a
te
 t
h
e
ir
 p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
d
a
ta
 h
e
ld
 o
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il'
s
 S
A
P
 s
y
s
te
m
, 
th
is
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 d
a
ta
 a
b
o
u
t 
e
q
u
a
lit
y
 a
n
d
 d
iv
e
rs
it
y
 a
n
d
 s
k
ill
s
 l
e
v
e
ls
. 
 I
t 
is
 a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
is
 e
x
e
rc
is
e
 w
ill
, 
in
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r,
 h
a
v
e
 a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 d
e
c
la
ri
n
g
 a
s
 d
is
a
b
le
d
.

A
G

W
h
ils
t 
p
o
s
it
io
n
 a
t 
e
n
d
 o
f 
S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
is
 0
.1
2
%
 b
e
h
in
d
 0
7
/0
8
, 
c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 r
a
te
 d
u
ri
n
g
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
s
h
o
w
e
d
 a
n
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 m

o
n
th
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r.
 E
n
d
 o
f 
y
e
a
r 
in
d
ic
a
to
r 
fl
a
g
g
e
d
 A
m
b
e
r 
to
 

th
e
 r
e
fl
e
c
t 
 b
o
th
 t
h
e
 u
n
c
e
rt
a
in
ty
 o
f 
th
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
c
u
rr
e
n
t 
e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 s
it
u
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 f
a
c
t 
w
e
 h
a
v
e
 i
n
it
ia
te
d
 m

o
re
 r
e
c
o
v
e
ry
 a
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
h
a
lf
 o
f 
th
is
 y
e
a
r 
c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 t
o
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r 
b
y
 b
ri
n
g
in
g
 

fo
rw

a
rd
 t
h
e
 t
im

in
g
 o
f 
th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
.

C
o
u
n
c
il 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 P
la
n

C
o
u
n
c
il 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 P
la
n

A
G

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a
t 
e
n
d
 o
f 
S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
is
 a
h
e
a
d
 o
f 
th
is
 t
im

e
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r 
a
n
d
 o
n
 t
a
rg
e
t 
to
 m

e
e
t 
y
e
a
r 
e
n
d
 t
a
rg
e
t.

C
o
u
n
c
il 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 P
la
n

T
h
e
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
le
a
v
e
rs
 r
e
fl
e
c
ts
 a
 b
u
s
ie
r 
p
e
ri
o
d
 o
f 
tu
rn
o
v
e
r 
a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 f
ill
in
g
 o
f 
p
o
s
ts
 a
ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 s
ta
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 n
e
w
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
y
e
a
r.
  
T
h
e
 f
ig
u
re
 i
s
 s
ti
ll 
w
it
h
in
 t
o
le
ra
n
c
e
 l
e
v
e
ls
 

a
n
d
 d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
c
a
u
s
e
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
.

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h
a
s
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 i
n
 q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2
, 
h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
th
is
 i
s
 s
ti
ll 
s
h
o
rt
 o
f 
o
u
r 
ta
rg
e
t.
 D
a
ta
 s
h
o
w
s
 4
8
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
B
M
E
 s
ta
ff
 w
e
re
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
e
ri
o
d
. 
T
o
 a
c
c
e
le
ra
te
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
, 
th
e
 n
e
w
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 

a
n
d
 D

iv
e
rs
it
y
 B
o
a
rd
 w
ill
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
is
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 s
u
g
g
e
s
t 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 q
u
a
rt
e
r 
3
 a
n
d
 q
u
a
rt
e
r 
4
.

W
h
ils
t 
a
h
e
a
d
 o
f 
la
s
t 
y
e
a
rs
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a
t 
th
e
 e
n
d
 o
f 
S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r,
 s
ti
ll 
c
a
u
ti
o
u
s
 a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
 l
ik
e
ly
 y
e
a
r 
e
n
d
 r
e
s
u
lt
 d
u
e
 t
o
 e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 r
e
c
e
s
s
io
n
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
e
m
p
ty
 r
a
te
s
.

T
h
e
 y
e
a
r-
e
n
d
 p
re
d
ic
ti
o
n
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
0
8
/0
9
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 1
0
.8
5
 d
a
y
s
 (
n
o
t 
a
d
ju
s
te
d
 f
o
r 
s
e
a
s
o
n
a
l 
v
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
).
 H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 w
e
 a
re
 s
ti
ll 
p
re
d
ic
ti
n
g
 t
o
 c
o
m
e
 i
n
 o
n
 t
a
rg
e
t.
  
P
re
v
io
u
s
ly
 a
 r
a
n
g
e
 

o
f 
in
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 w
e
re
 l
is
te
d
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
. 
T
h
is
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 a
 s
e
ri
e
s
 o
f 
o
n
g
o
in
g
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 f
o
r 
D
ir
e
c
to
rs
. 
A
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 
th
e
s
e
, 
a
c
ti
o
n
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
d
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm

 

s
ic
k
n
e
s
s
 c
a
s
e
s
. 
Im

p
ro
v
e
d
 f
ig
u
re
s
 u
n
d
e
rl
in
e
 t
h
is
. 
 F
u
rt
h
e
r 
w
o
rk
 w
ill
 n
o
w
 b
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 a
d
d
re
s
s
 s
h
o
rt
 t
e
rm

 a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 a
s
 w
e
ll,
 a
n
d
 t
o
 p
ilo
t 
n
e
w
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
e
s
 t
o
 h
e
a
lt
h
 a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
. 
C
le
a
rl
y
 a
 

d
o
w
n
w
a
rd
 t
re
n
d
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 b
y
 a
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r.
 I
t 
is
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
th
a
t 
s
u
b
s
ta
n
ti
v
e
 /
 e
m
b
e
d
d
e
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
re
 s
u
s
ta
in
e
d
 a
n
d
 e
ff
o
rt
s
 w
ill
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
is
 

is
 n
o
t 
a
 t
e
m
p
o
ra
ry
 s
p
ik
e
.

A
G

A
G

A
G

A
G

Page 40



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 3

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 a
n
d
 C

e
n
tr
a
l 
F
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 R

e
p
o
rt
 Q

u
a
rt
e
r 
2
 2
0
0
8
-0
9

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

In
d
ic
a
to
r 
T
y
p
e

R
e
fe
re
n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e
rv
ic
e

F
re
q
u
e
n
c
y
 &
 

M
e
a
s
u
re

R
is
e
 o
r 

F
a
ll

B
a
s
e
lin
e

L
a
s
t 
Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

T
a
rg
e
t

Q
tr
1

Q
tr
2

P
re
d
ic
te
d
 

F
u
ll 
Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

D
a
ta
 Q

u
a
lit
y

N
I 
1
8
0

T
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 o
f 

c
ir
c
u
m
s
ta
n
c
e
s
 w

h
ic
h
 a
ff
e
c
t 
c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 

H
B
/C

T
B
 e
n
ti
tl
e
m
e
n
t 
w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 y
e
a
r.

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 

B
e
n
e
fi
ts

M
o
n
th
ly

C
h
a
n
g
e
s
 p
e
r 

1
0
0
0
 

c
a
s
e
lo
a
d

R
is
e

N
e
w
 

in
d
ic
a
to
r

N
.A
.

7
2
4
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

p
e
r 
1
0
0
0
 

c
a
s
e
lo
a
d

3
0
9
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

p
e
r 
1
0
0
0
 

c
a
s
e
lo
a
d

2
1
8
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

p
e
r 
1
0
0
0
 

c
a
s
e
lo
a
d

7
2
4
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

p
e
r 
1
0
0
0
 

c
a
s
e
lo
a
d

N
o
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 

w
it
h
 d
a
ta

N
I 
1
8
1

T
im

e
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 

B
e
n
e
fi
t/
C
o
u
n
c
il 
T
a
x
 B
e
n
e
fi
t 
n
e
w
 c
la
im

s
 

a
n
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 e
v
e
n
ts

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 

B
e
n
e
fi
ts

M
o
n
th
ly

D
a
y
s

F
a
ll

N
e
w
 

In
d
ic
a
to
r

N
.A
.

1
4
.0
 d
a
y
s

2
2
.4
 d
a
y
s

2
3
.2
 d
a
y
s

1
4
 d
a
y
s

N
o
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 

w
it
h
 d
a
ta

B
V
-8

T
h
e
 p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
u
n
d
is
p
u
te
d
 i
n
v
o
ic
e
s
 

fo
r 
c
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 
g
o
o
d
s
 a
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
h
a
t 

w
e
re
 p
a
id
 b
y
 t
h
e
 a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 w
it
h
in
 3
0
 d
a
y
s
 

o
f 
s
u
c
h
 i
n
v
o
ic
e
s
 b
e
in
g
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 

a
u
th
o
ri
ty
.

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s

Q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y

%

R
is
e

9
1
.5
3
%

9
1
.5
3
%

9
2
%

8
8
%

7
8
%

8
5
%

S
e
e
 

c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

b
e
lo
w

B
P
-3
6
b

P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
s
e
t 

(L
S
P
, 
C
B
P
 &
 N

I)
 w
h
e
re
 w
e
 h
a
v
e
 "
n
o
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
" 
o
n
 d
a
ta
 q
u
a
lit
y

P
o
lic
y
, 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

&
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t

Q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y

%

R
is
e

N
e
w
 

In
d
ic
a
to
r

N
.A
.

T
o
 b
e
 s
e
t 

fo
r 

2
0
0
9
/1
0

5
5
%

6
6
%

U
n
a
b
le
 t
o
 

p
re
d
ic
t 
y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
 p
o
s
it
io
n

N
o
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 

w
it
h
 d
a
ta

1
7

1
5

1
6

1
4

A
G

P
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 w

it
h
in
 C
e
n
tr
a
l 
P
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 a
re
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 b
e
in
g
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te
d
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 w
o
rk
in
g
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
tl
y
, 
h
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 l
a
rg
e
 a
m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
in
v
o
ic
e
s
 w
h
ic
h
 h
a
v
e
 t
o
 b
e
 r
e
tu
rn
e
d
 t
o
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 e
it
h
e
r 
a
n
 o
rd
e
r 
n
u
m
b
e
r 
is
 n
o
t 
q
u
o
te
d
 o
r 
th
e
 c
o
rr
e
c
t 
c
o
d
in
g
 i
s
 n
o
t 
s
u
p
p
lie

d
, 
a
 p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il'
s
 i
n
v
o
ic
e
s
 w
ill
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 b
e
 p
a
id
 l
a
te
 u
n
ti
l 
th
is
 

re
c
ti
fi
e
d
. 
 I
f 
a
n
 o
rd
e
r 
w
a
s
 r
a
is
e
d
, 
a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
d
 a
n
d
 g
o
o
d
s
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 w
h
e
n
 g
o
o
d
s
 o
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w

e
re
 o
rd
e
re
d
 t
h
is
 w
o
u
ld
 g
o
 a
 l
o
n
g
 w
a
y
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
in
g
 t
h
e
 p
ro
m
p
t 
p
a
y
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
in
v
o
ic
e
s
.

A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
fu
ll 
y
e
a
r 
p
re
d
ic
ti
o
n
s
 s
h
o
w
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t
o
 b
e
 b
e
lo
w
 t
a
rg
e
t,
 i
t 
is
 f
e
lt
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 t
h
a
t 
a
n
 "
A
m
b
e
r"
 s
ta
tu
s
 b
e
 a
p
p
lie
d
 a
t 
th
is
 p
o
in
t 
u
n
ti
l 
th
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 s
u
rr
o
u
n
d
in
g
 t
h
is
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
a
re
 

re
s
o
lv
e
d
.

A
G

A
G

J
R

S
in
c
e
 q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
d
a
ta
 q
u
a
lit
y
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 a
d
d
re
s
s
e
d
. 
 F
o
r 
th
o
s
e
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 w
h
e
re
 w
e
 s
ti
ll 
d
o
 h
a
v
e
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 d
a
ta
 q
u
a
lit
y
 2
6
%
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
 

c
h
e
c
k
lis
ts
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 w
e
 d
o
 n
o
t 
k
n
o
w
 w
h
a
t 
th
e
ir
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
re
 f
o
r 
a
s
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
th
is
 d
a
ta
. 
 F
o
r 
6
%
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 r
a
is
e
d
 a
n
d
 a
c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 r
e
s
o
lv
e
 

th
e
s
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
, 
th
e
s
e
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 a
re
 m

a
in
ly
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 s
y
s
te
m
s
, 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
tr
o
ls
.

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

In
d
ic
a
to
r

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

In
d
ic
a
to
r

C
o
u
n
c
il 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 P
la
n

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

In
d
ic
a
to
r

T
h
e
re
 a
re
 s
o
m
e
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
 v
a
lid
it
y
 o
f 
th
e
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 b
e
in
g
 p
ro
d
u
c
e
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 p
ro
m
p
t 
p
a
y
m
e
n
t 
re
p
o
rt
. 
 T
h
is
 i
s
 d
u
e
 t
o
 W

e
b
-F
A
B
 n
o
t 
a
lw
a
y
s
 p
ro
m
p
ti
n
g
 f
o
r 
a
 l
a
te
 r
e
a
s
o
n
 t
o
 b
e
 

re
c
o
rd
e
d
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
in
v
o
ic
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re
 b
e
in
g
 p
a
id
 l
a
te
. 
 T
h
e
 F
A
B
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
te
a
m
 a
re
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
n
g
 t
h
is
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 t
h
e
 p
ro
b
le
m
 a
n
d
 h
o
p
e
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 t
h
is
 f
ix
e
d
 i
n
 t
im

e
 f
o
r 
q
u
a
rt
e
r 
3
. 
 T
h
e
 q
u
a
rt
e
r 

o
n
e
 f
ig
u
re
 w

a
s
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 u
s
in
g
 'B

lu
e
' F

A
B
, 
w
h
ic
h
 r
e
c
o
rd
e
d
 t
h
e
 l
a
te
 r
e
a
s
o
n
s
 a
c
c
u
ra
te
ly
, 
s
o
 t
h
e
 q
u
a
rt
e
r 
tw

o
 a
n
d
 y
e
a
r 
to
 d
a
te
 f
ig
u
re
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 c
a
lc
u
la
te
d
 u
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 o
f 

d
is
p
u
te
d
 i
n
v
o
ic
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
re
 r
e
c
o
rd
e
d
 a
t 
q
u
a
rt
e
r 
o
n
e
, 
w
h
ic
h
 s
h
o
u
ld
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
n
 a
c
c
u
ra
te
 p
ic
tu
re
 o
f 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
's
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
. 
 

T
h
e
 t
a
rg
e
t 
is
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 3
 e
le
m
e
n
ts
 :
 N
e
w
 C
la
im

 P
ro
c
e
s
s
in
g
 -
 C
u
rr
e
n
t 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o
n
 t
h
is
 i
s
 2
8
.7
4
 a
n
d
 n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 b
e
 1
7
.3
4
 f
o
r 
th
e
 r
e
m
a
in
d
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 y
e
a
r.
 C
h
a
n
g
e
s
 I
n
 C
ir
c
u
m
s
ta
n
c
e
s
 -
 C
u
rr
e
n
t 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 1
9
.9
0
 a
n
d
 n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 b
e
 1
3
.6
7
 f
o
r 
th
e
 r
e
s
t 
o
f 
th
e
 y
e
a
r.
 (
B
o
th
 e
s
ti
m
a
te
s
 a
re
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 a
s
s
u
m
p
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
c
la
im

s
 a
n
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 r
e
m
a
in
 a
t 
th
e
 s
a
m
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
fo
r 
th
e
 

re
s
t 
o
f 
th
e
 y
e
a
r 
a
s
 t
h
o
s
e
 t
o
 d
a
te
).
 I
n
 a
d
d
it
io
n
 "
Y
e
a
r 
E
n
d
" 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg
e
t 
- 
T
h
is
 w
ill
 g
e
n
e
ra
te
 a
ro
u
n
d
 5
3
,0
0
0
 "
1
 d
a
y
" 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 M

a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
. 
A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 

s
e
c
u
re
d
 t
o
 h
e
lp
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 t
h
e
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
ta
rg
e
t 
o
f 
1
4
 d
a
y
s
.

T
h
e
 o
ri
g
in
a
l 
ta
rg
e
t 
o
f 
8
7
5
 w
a
s
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 t
h
a
t 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 w

o
u
ld
 b
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re
d
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 f
u
ll 
1
2
 m

o
n
th
s
. 
T
h
e
 D
W
P
 h
a
s
 a
d
v
is
e
d
 L
A
s
 t
h
a
t 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 w
ill
 b
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re
d
 

b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 f
ro
m
 J
u
n
e
 2
0
0
8
 o
n
ly
. 
T
h
e
re
fo
re
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg
e
t 
h
a
s
 h
a
d
 t
o
 b
e
 a
m
e
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 r
e
fl
e
c
t 
th
is
 c
h
a
n
g
e
. 
T
h
e
 n
e
w
 t
a
rg
e
t 
is
 7
2
4
 f
o
r 
th
e
 p
e
ri
o
d
 0
1
/0
6
/0
8
 t
o
 3
1
/0
3
/0
9
 a
n
d
 i
s
 e
q
u
iv
a
le
n
t 
to
 

8
7
5
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 f
u
ll 
1
2
 m

o
n
th
s
. 
T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 o
n
 c
o
u
rs
e
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
th
e
 t
a
rg
e
t.
 T
h
e
 m

o
s
t 
u
p
 t
o
 d
a
te
 d
a
ta
 c
o
v
e
rs
 t
h
e
 p
e
ri
o
d
 f
ro
m
 0
1
/0
6
/0
8
 t
o
 0
8
/0
9
/0
8
 a
n
d
 s
h
o
w
s
 t
h
a
t 
1
5
,6
6
2
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
. 
T
h
is
 e
q
u
a
te
s
 t
o
 6
6
9
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 p
e
r 
1
,0
0
0
 c
a
s
e
s
. 
A
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
3
6
,5
0
0
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
o
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 t
h
e
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
ta
rg
e
t.
 I
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 i
n
it
ia
te
d
 t
o
 

c
o
in
c
id
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 r
e
in
s
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 r
is
k
-b
a
s
e
d
 d
a
ta
 m

a
tc
h
in
g
 l
is
ti
n
g
s
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 D
W
P
.

Page 41



Page 42

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 
 
Scrutiny Board (Central & Corporate Functions) 
 
Date:  5TH January 2009 
 
Subject:  Scrutiny Board (Central & Corporate Functions) –  Work Programme, 
    Executive Board Minutes and Forward Plan of Key Decisions 
 
 

        
 
 
1.0 INTRODUCTION 
 

1.1  Attached as Appendix 1 is the current Work Programme for this Scrutiny Board.  
This has been amended to take into account discussions held at the last meeting. 

 
1.2 Also attached as Appendix 2 and 3 respectively are the Executive Board minutes 

from 3rd December 2008 and the Council’s current Forward Plan relating to this 
Board’s portfolio.  

 

3.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 
3.1 Members are asked to; 

(i) Note the Executive Board minutes and Forward Plan 
(ii) Agree the Board’s work programme. 

 
Background Papers 
 
None used 

Specific Implications For:  

 
Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 
 

 

 

Originator: P N Marrington 
 
Tel: 39 51151  

Agenda Item 9

Page 43



Page 44

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 B
O
A
R
D
 (
C
E
N
T
R
A
L
 &
 C
O
R
P
O
R
A
T
E
 F
U
N
C
T
IO
N
S
) 
- 
L
A
S
T
 D
E
C
E
M
B
E
R
 2
0
0
8
  
 

 IT
E
M
 

D
E
S
C
R
IP
T
IO
N
 

N
O
T
E
S
 

T
Y
P
E
 O
F
 I
T
E
M
 

S
u
g
g
e
s
te
d
 A
re
a
s
 f
o
r 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 C
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 U
n
s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 C
a
ll
 C
e
n
tr
e
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

 
 

 

E
le
c
to
ra
l 
m
a
tt
e
rs
 

 
 

 

 

IT
E
M
 

D
E
S
C
R
IP
T
IO
N
 

N
O
T
E
S
 

T
Y
P
E
 O
F
 I
T
E
M
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 d
a
te
: 
6
th
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
 -
 T
h
e
 d
e
a
d
li
n
e
 f
o
r 
re
p
o
rt
s
 f
o
r 
th
is
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 i
s
 1
2
 N
o
o
n
 1
5
th
 D
e
c
 2
0
0
8
 

 

A
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

T
o
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 s
e
s
s
io
n
 3
 o
f 
th
is
 I
n
q
u
ir
y
 

 
R
P
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 d
a
te
: 
5
th
  
F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
 -
 T
h
e
 d
e
a
d
li
n
e
 f
o
r 
re
p
o
rt
s
 f
o
r 
th
is
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 i
s
 1
2
 N
o
o
n
 1
9
th
  
J
a
n
 2
0
0
9
 

 

U
s
e
 o
f 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts
 

T
o
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 s
e
s
s
io
n
 1
 o
f 
th
is
 I
n
q
u
ir
y
 

 
P
M
 

O
u
ts
o
u
rc
in
g
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

T
o
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 s
e
s
s
io
n
 3
 o
f 
th
e
 I
n
q
u
ir
y
 

 
R
P
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 d
a
te
: 
2
n
d
  
  
M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 -
 T
h
e
 d
e
a
d
li
n
e
 f
o
r 
re
p
o
rt
s
 f
o
r 
th
is
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 i
s
 1
2
 N
o
o
n
 1
6
th
  
F
e
b
 2
0
0
9
 

 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 o
f 
th
e
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 

 

T
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
q
u
a
rt
e
r 
3
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 

re
p
o
rt
. 
 

 
R
P
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 o
f 
th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

P
la
n
 

 
 

P
M
 

U
s
e
 o
f 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts
 

T
o
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 s
e
s
s
io
n
 2
 o
f 
th
is
 I
n
q
u
ir
y
 

 
P
M
 

A
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

S
e
s
s
io
n
 4
 

 
R
P
 

M
e
m
b
e
r 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

T
o
 a
g
re
e
 f
in
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
 

 
P
M
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 d
a
te
: 
  
6
th
  
  
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
9
 -
 T
h
e
 d
e
a
d
li
n
e
 f
o
r 
re
p
o
rt
s
 f
o
r 
th
is
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 i
s
 1
2
 N
o
o
n
 2
3
rd
  
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
R
e
p
o
rt
 

T
o
 a
g
re
e
 t
h
is
 B
o
a
rd
s
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
 t
o
 C
o
u
n
c
il 

 
 

Page 45



 
 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 B
O
A
R
D
 (
C
E
N
T
R
A
L
 &
 C
O
R
P
O
R
A
T
E
 F
U
N
C
T
IO
N
S
) 
- 
L
A
S
T
 D
E
C
E
M
B
E
R
 2
0
0
8
  
 

IT
E
M
 

D
E
S
C
R
IP
T
IO
N
 

N
O
T
E
S
 

T
Y
P
E
 O
F
 I
T
E
M
 

U
s
e
 o
f 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts
 

T
o
 a
g
re
e
 f
in
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
th
is
 I
n
q
u
ir
y
 

 
P
M
 

A
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

T
o
 a
g
re
e
 f
in
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
 

 
 

O
u
ts
o
u
rc
in
g
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

T
o
 a
g
re
e
 f
in
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
 

 
R
P
 

 K
e
y
: 
 

C
C
F
A
 /
 R
F
S
 –
 
C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
c
a
ll 
fo
r 
a
c
ti
o
n
 /
 r
e
q
u
e
s
t 
fo
r 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

R
P
 –
  
R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 p
o
lic
y
 

D
P
 –
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
n
e
w
 p
o
lic
y
 

M
S
R
 –
 M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

P
M
 –
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

B
 –
 B
ri
e
fi
n
g
s
 (
In
c
lu
d
in
g
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
a
re
a
s
 f
o
r 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
) 

S
C
 –
 S
ta
tu
to
ry
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

C
I 
–
 C
a
ll 
in
 

Page 46



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 14th January, 2009 

 

EXECUTIVE BOARD 
 

WEDNESDAY, 3RD DECEMBER, 2008 
 

PRESENT: 
 

Councillor A Carter in the Chair 

 Councillors R Brett, J L Carter, R Finnigan, 
S Golton, R Harker, P Harrand, J Procter, 
S Smith and K Wakefield  

 
 Councillor J Blake – Non voting advisory member 

  
 
 

137 Exclusion of the Public  
The substantive reports referred to under minutes 140 and 141 had been 
designated as exempt until 3rd December (1.00 pm)  and 27th November 
respectively.  This designation had arisen from embargoes on the documents 
which had substantially been the source of the contents of those reports and 
all information had been published on lifting of those embargoes. 
 

138 Declaration of Interests  
Councillor Wakefield declared a personal interest in the item relating to 
Machinery of Government and 14-19 Commissioning Arrangements (minute 
149) as a schools and college governor. 
 
Councillor Blake declared a personal interest in the item relating to the Vision 
for Council Leisure Centres (minute 154) as an NHS Leeds Board member. 
 

139 Minutes  
RESOLVED –  
(a) That the minutes of the meeting held on 5th November 2008 be 

approved. 
 
(b) That with reference to minute 122 relating to the Deputation to Council 

regarding sports facilities in the Hyde Park area, a further report be 
brought to the next meeting of the Board. 

 
ADULT HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE 
 

140 Independence, Wellbeing and Choice Inspection of Adult Social Services  
Tim Willis, the lead inspector from the Commission for Social Care Inspection, 
attended the meeting and presented the Service Inspection Report following 
the inspection in Leeds which was undertaken in Leeds in July/August 2008. 
 
The Director of Adult Social Services submitted a report on the outcome of the 
inspection and presented an action plan relating to the 25 recommendations 
contained in the inspection report. 
 
 

Page 47



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 14th January, 2009 

 

RESOLVED – 
(a) That the inspection report, the report of the Director and the action plan 

be noted. 
 
(b) That updates on progress against the action plan be brought to this 

Board as part of the Annual Performance Assessment reporting in 
December 2009. 

 
(c) That the inspection report and associated action plan be referred to the 

Scrutiny Board (Adult Social Care) for their oversight of performance 
against the targets set out in the plan. 

 
141 Annual Performance Assessment (Star Rating) for Adult Social Services 

2007/08  
The Director of Adult Social Services submitted a report on the annual 
assessment of Adult Social Care Services published by the Commission for 
Social Care Inspection on 27th November 2008 and attached to the report of 
the Director.  The response to the assessment was integrated into the action 
plan referred to in minute 140 above. 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That the report of the Director and the Performance Review report from 

the Commission be noted. 
 
(b) That the Annual Performance Review report be referred to the Scrutiny 

Board (Adult Social Care) for their oversight of performance against the 
targets set in respect of identified areas for improvement. 

 
CHILDREN'S SERVICES 
 

142 Future Secondary Provision Proposal for South Leeds High School  
Further to minute 43 of the meeting held on 16th July 2008 the Chief Executive 
of Education Leeds submitted a report on proposals to close South Leeds 
High School and to replace it with an Academy to serve the needs of children 
and young people from the Beeston and Holbeck, City and Hunslet and 
Middleton Park wards. 
 
The Chair referred to correspondence which had been addressed to members 
of the Board in relation to this, and to the proposal referred to in minute 143 
below, and other members confirmed their receipt of the same. 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That the outcome of the consultation, to close South Leeds High 

School on 31st August 2009, conditional upon Department for Children, 
Schools and Families approval to open an academy on that site 
opening on 1st September 2009, be noted. 

 
(b) That approval for the publication of a statutory notice to that effect be 

given. 
 

Page 48



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 14th January, 2009 

 

143 Future Secondary Provision Proposal for Intake High School  
Further to minute 220 of the meeting held on 16th April 2008 the Chief 
Executive of Education Leeds submitted a report on proposals to close Intake 
High School Arts College and to replace it with an Academy to serve the 
children and young people from the Bramley and Stanningley ward. 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That the outcome of the consultation, to close Intake High School on 

31st August 2009, conditional upon Department for Children, Schools 
and Families approval to open an academy on that site opening on 1st 
September 2009 be noted. 

 
(b) That approval be given for the publication of a statutory notice to that 

effect. 
 
ADULT HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE 
 

144 Reprovision of Windlesford Green Hostel for People with Learning 
Disabilities  
Referring to minute 57 of the meeting held on 22nd August 2007 the Director 
of Adult Social Services submitted a report on the proposed change of scope 
for the scheme established to create a new supported living development for 
people with learning disabilities at Windlesford Green. 
 
The rescoping provided for a smaller development meeting the needs of 
current residents, requiring a less than best disposal of land and resulting in 
land being made available for alternative use. 
 
RESOLVED – That the changes to the scheme as previously reported be 
noted, that the revised scheme as detailed in the report be approved and that 
the terms of the proposed lease as detailed in the report also be approved. 
 
NEIGHBOURHOODS AND HOUSING 
 

145 Deputation to Council - Pets in Council Houses  
The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods submitted a report in 
response to the deputation to Council from Cats Protection on 10th September 
2008. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 

146 Home Energy Conservation Act (HECA) (1995) - 12th Progress Report  
The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods submitted a report on the 
progress made in improving the overall energy efficiency of the Leeds housing 
stock. 
 
RESOLVED – That the content of the 12th HECA progress report and its 
release to the Government Office for Yorkshire and the Humber be noted. 
 

Page 49



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 14th January, 2009 

 

147 West Yorkshire Energy Efficiency Scheme - Expenditure Discharge and 
Legal Delegation  
The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods submitted a report on 
proposals that Calderdale Council be appointed as banker for the West 
Yorkshire Regional Energy Efficiency Scheme with responsibility for 
administering the scheme budget for the period April 2008 to March 2011. 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That the West Yorkshire Energy Efficiency Scheme be approved. 
 
(b) That the Scheme annual and approximate sub set expenditure be 

approved for discharge. 
 
(c) That Calderdale Council continue in the role of banker for the West 

Yorkshire Energy Efficiency Scheme for the period April 2008 to March 
2011 and that the Legal Delegation Form as contained in Appendix 1 to 
the report be approved. 

 
CHILDREN'S SERVICES 
 

148 Options for changes to primary provision in the Richmond Hill Planning 
Area  
The Chief Executive of Education Leeds submitted a report on the options 
available with regard to primary education provision in the Richmond Hill 
Planning Area. 
 
The options presented in the report were: 
 
1. The expansion of Richmond Hill Primary School linked to a proposal to 

close Mount St Mary’s Primary School. 
 
2. Closure of both Richmond Hill and Mount St Mary’s Primary Schools 

and the establishment of a new school. 
 
3. Closure of Richmond Hill and Mount St Mary’s Primary Schools and 

the establishment of a joint community and Catholic Provision. 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That formal consultation be undertaken on the linked proposals to: 

• Expand Richmond Hill Primary School by one form of entry with 
new community specialist provision for children with Special 
Education Needs 

• Close Mount St Mary’s Primary School. 
 
(b) That a further report be brought to the Board with regard to the land 

ownership position at Mount St Mary’s. 
 
 
 

Page 50



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 14th January, 2009 

 

149 Machinery of Government and 14-19 (25 for Learners with Learning 
Difficulties and/or Disabilities) Commissioning Arrangements  
The Chief Executive of Education Leeds submitted a report on the proposed 
local approach to the implementation of the Machinery of Government 
changes to deliver the transfer of responsibilities from the Learning and Skills 
Council to the City Council.  The report also referred to the strategic approach 
to the commissioning for 16-19 (25 for learners with learning difficulties and/or 
disabilities) learners in Leeds from September 2009 through which the 
Council will trial the operational response to its new responsibilities. 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That approval be given to the local approach to implementing the 

arrangements for the Council’s response to the Machinery of 
Government changes that will transfer responsibilities from the LSC to 
Leeds City Council as detailed in sections 3.1.2 and 3.1.3 of the report. 

 
(b) That the basis for the strategic commissioning arrangements for post 

16 learners in Leeds from September 2009 as detailed in sections 
3.2.2 to 3.2.4 of the report be noted, and that the Director of Children’s 
Services develop detailed arrangements for the commissioning of 
provision and for monitoring and evaluating the impact of these 
activities. 

 
(c) That a further report be brought to the Board as early as possible in 

2009 on the proposed strategic commissioning arrangements for post 
16 learners. 

 
 (Councillor Finnigan declared a personal interest in this item as a 

governor of Joseph Priestley College). 
 

150 Building Schools for the Future Phase 2 Priesthorpe Specialist Sports 
College  
The Chief Executive of Education Leeds submitted a report on proposals to 
proceed with the refurbishment of Priesthorpe Specialist Sports College as 
part of Wave 1, Phase 2 of the Building schools for the Future programme. 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That approval be given to the completion and entry into all necessary 

legal documentation for the Design and Build contract for Priesthorpe 
Specialist Sports College. 

 
(b) That expenditure of £16,579,338 from the capital programme be 

authorised. 
 

151 Leeds Building Schools for the Future: Follow On Project and 
Expression of Interest  
The Chief Executive of Education Leeds submitted a report on the ‘Follow On’ 
project for the Building Schools for the Future programme and on the 
submission of the expression of interest as the basis for transforming the 
remaining schools in BSF. 

Page 51



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 14th January, 2009 

 

 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That the priorities identified within the Expression of Interest be 

approved as the follow on project in Leeds through additional 
investment in Building Schools for the Future. 

 
(b) That further work be undertaken to detail the specific programmes in all 

the remaining geographical areas of Leeds. 
 
 

152 2008 Audit Commission School Survey  
The Chief Executive of Education Leeds submitted a report summarising the 
results from the Audit Commission’s School Survey for 2008. 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That the findings of the 2008 Audit Commission School Survey as set 

out in Appendix A to the report be noted. 
 
(b) That it also be noted that the results of the survey will be used to inform 

children’s services and partners’ service improvement plans. 
  
LEISURE 
 

153 Long Term Burial Requirements for the City  
The Director of City Development submitted a report on the current position 
with regard to the supply of burial space in Leeds and options for meeting the 
expected demand for burial space for the next 50 years and beyond. 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That the recommended policy to establish a preference for smaller 

locally based cemetery sites combined with the extension, where 
possible, for existing sites be adopted. 

 
(b) That officers explore further the potential to extend Farnley and 

Lofthouse cemeteries including consultation with planning officers 
about the inclusion of proposals in the Local Development Framework. 

 
(c) That officers look in more detail at the potential to develop small locally 

based cemeteries at Elmete, Priesthorpe Lane, Alwoodley Gates, Tile 
Lane East Moor and Haigh Farm Rothwell and report back to this 
Board on the outcome of this work. 

 
(d) That approval be given to the development of a 5 acre Cemetery at 

Whinmoor on the site identified on Plan B attached to the report, and 
that the implementation of this development be delivered as part of a 
larger masterplan for the site involving the decant of the Council’s 
nursery from Redhall. 

 
(e) That proposals to deliver a 14 acre cemetery extension at Lawnswood 

be not progressed. 

Page 52



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 14th January, 2009 

 

 
(f) That officers liaise with Leeds University to acquire the site of the 

American Football Field either through private treaty or Compulsory 
Purchase to deliver a 3.8 acre extension to Lawnswood Cemetery, that 
officers explore further the potential to deliver a 5 acre cemetery on the 
site of the former Elmete Caravan Park and that officers seek to 
acquire the 2.5 acre site at Horsforth Cemetery either through private 
treaty or Compulsory Purchase Order. 

 
(g) That the Capital Programme be amended to reflect schemes at 

Lawnswood £1,750,000 ,  Elmete Cemetery £743,000, Horsforth 
Cemetery Extension £350,000, Kippax Cemetery Extension £51,000 
and Harehills Cemetery £125,000, releasing £281,000 back to the 
general Capital Programme. 

 
(h) That officers liaise further with representatives of the Muslim 

community on the accommodation of Muslim burial needs in the 
Council’s network of smaller cemeteries. 

 
(i) That officers carry out consultations with the relevant Ward Members 

and Area Committees regarding these proposals. 
 

154 Vision for Council Leisure Centres  
Further to minute 74 of the meeting held on 2nd September 2008 the Director 
of City Development submitted a report on the outcome of the public 
consultation exercise undertaken in relation to the Council’s draft Vision for 
Leisure Centres. 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That the outcome of the public consultation exercise on the Vision for 

Council Leisure Centres be noted. 
 
(b) That officers explore in more detail the proposal to transfer Richmond 

Hill Sports Hall to community management as part of a community 
asset transfer. 

 
(c) That Sport England be requested to re-run their Facilities Planning 

Model for swimming pools provision in Leeds and in particular examine 
the implications of the Council’s draft proposals. 

 
(d) That officers consider the potential for community management for 

each of the centres most affected by these proposals and report back 
to a future meeting of this Board. 

 
(e) That officers further develop capital investment proposals for 

Aireborough, Bramley, Kirkstall, Pudsey, Otley, Rothwell, Scott Hall 
and Wetherby Leisure Centres. 

 
 
 

Page 53



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 14th January, 2009 

 

CENTRAL AND CORPORATE 
 

155 Implications of Introducing a Living City Wage for Leeds  
The Chief Executive submitted a report on the implications of introducing a 
Living City Wage in Leeds following a resolution made by Council at its 
meeting on 9th April 2008. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 

156 Business Transformation in Leeds City Council  
(a) Organisational Programme 
 The Assistant Chief Executive (Planning, Policy and Improvement) and 

the Director of Resources submitted a joint report outlining the 
Council’s developing business transformation agenda and setting out 
the reasons behind the development, the high level scope of the 
programme of work required, initial benefits accruing from the work and 
governance arrangements to secure delivery. 

 
 RESOLVED – That the establishment of an organisational wide 

Business Transformation Programme be endorsed in the terms 
outlined on the submitted report. 

 
(b) Design and Cost Report for Key Enabling Projects 
 The Director of Resources and Assistant Chief Executive (Planning, 

Policy and Improvement) submitted a joint report on proposals for the 
delivery of the first phase of the Business Transformation Programme. 

 
 RESOLVED – 
 (a) That approval be given to the release of £7,183,000 (over a five 

year period), to be funded from the Business Transformation 
allocation in the Strategic Development Fund for the first phase 
of the Business Transformation programme. 

 
 (b) That authority be given to incur expenditure on procuring and 

implementing the key enabling projects which provide the 
foundations for delivering the Council’s Business Transformation 
aspirations. 

 
 

157 Calling In of Decision Taken on 8th October 2008  
The Chief Democratic Services Officer submitted a report on the outcome of 
the Call In of a decision of the Executive Board on 8th October 2008 regarding 
the Capital Programme Update 2008 –2012 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 54



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 14th January, 2009 

 

DEVELOPMENT AND REGENERATION 
 

158 Deputation to Council - Spenhill Residents' Association regarding the 
Protection of Butcher Hill Playing Fields and Surrounding Land  
The Director of City Development submitted a report in response to the 
deputation to Council from the Spenhill Residents’ Association on 10th 
September 2008. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 

159 Leeds Local Development Framework Annual Monitoring Report  
The Director of City Development submitted a report on the City Council’s 
recommendations on the Leeds Local Development Framework for the 
Secretary of State’s consideration. 
 
An amended page of the submission was circulated at the meeting. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Annual Monitoring Report be approved for submission 
to the Secretary of State pursuant to Regulation 48 of the Town and Country 
Planning (Local Development) (England) Regulations 2004. 
 
DATE OF PUBLICATION:  5th December 2008 
LAST DATE FOR CALL IN: 12th December 2008 
 
(Scrutiny Support will notify Directors of any items Called In by 12.00 noon on 
Monday 15th December 2008). 
 
 
 
 

Page 55



Page 56

This page is intentionally left blank



 
L
E

E
D

S
 C

IT
Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 

 
F
O

R
W

A
R

D
 P

L
A

N
 O

F
 K

E
Y
 D

E
C

IS
IO

N
S

 
F
o
r 
th
e
 p
e
ri
o
d
 1
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 t
o
 3
1
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

 

K
e
y
 D

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 M

a
k
e
r 

E
x
p
e
c
te

d
 

D
a
te

 o
f 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
  

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 

C
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 M

a
k
e
r 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

(T
o
 w
h
o
m
 

re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 

b
e
 m
a
d
e
 a
n
d
 e
m
a
il 

a
d
d
re
s
s
 t
o
 s
e
n
d
 

re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
) 

D
e
s
ig
n
 C
o
s
t 
R
e
p
o
rt
 -
 Y
o
u
th
 C
a
p
it
a
l 

F
u
n
d
 

T
o
 g
iv
e
 a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 t
o
 i
n
c
u
r 

e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 o
f 
£
3
7
0
,1
0
0
 (
fu
lly
 

fu
n
d
e
d
 b
y
 D
C
S
F
).
  

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

  

1
/1
2
/0
8
 

P
a
n
e
l 
o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
 

  

Y
o
u
th
 M
a
tt
e
rs
 

 
S
a
lly
 T
h
re
lf
a
ll,
 H
e
a
d
 o
f 

E
a
rl
y
 Y
e
a
rs
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

s
a
lly
.t
h
re
lf
a
ll@

le
e
d
s
.g
o

v
.u
k
 

 

T
ra
n
s
fo
rm
in
g
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 

In
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 

a
g
e
n
d
a
 “
T
ra
n
s
fo
rm
in
g
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
” 

(D
o
H
 L
A
 C
ir
c
u
la
r 
(D
H
) 
(2
0
0
8
)1
) 

th
e
re
 w
ill
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 a
 v
a
ri
e
ty
 o
f 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 s
ta
ff
in
g
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 

p
re
d
o
m
in
a
n
tl
y
 w
it
h
in
 A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 

C
a
re
. 
 

 A
t 
th
is
 s
ta
g
e
 i
t 
is
 n
o
t 
d
e
te
rm
in
e
d
 

w
h
a
t 
th
e
s
e
 a
re
 b
u
t 
a
s
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
s
 

a
re
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
e
d
 i
t 
is
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 

re
s
o
u
rc
in
g
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
m
e
n
t 

o
f 
ta
rg
e
ts
. 
T
h
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
 s
e
ri
e
s
 o
f 

re
p
o
rt
s
 a
s
 t
h
is
 i
s
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
. 

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
A
d
u
lt
 

S
o
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 

C
h
ie
f 
O
ff
ic
e
r 

(H
R
) 

  

1
/1
2
/0
8
 

A
s
 a
 m
in
im
u
m
 t
h
e
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
 

m
e
m
b
e
r,
 S
ta
ff
 a
n
d
 

T
ra
d
e
 U
n
io
n
s
. 

H
o
w
e
v
e
r 
a
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 w
ill
 

b
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re
 a
ll 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
re
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 a
n
d
 

in
fo
rm
e
d
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
ly
. 
 

  

L
o
c
a
l 
G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 

C
ir
c
u
la
r 
L
A
C
 (
D
H
) 
(2
0
0
8
)  

 

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

  

Page 57



 
K

e
y
 D

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 M

a
k
e
r 

E
x
p
e
c
te

d
 

D
a
te

 o
f 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
  

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 

C
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 M

a
k
e
r 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

(T
o
 w
h
o
m
 

re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 

b
e
 m
a
d
e
 a
n
d
 e
m
a
il 

a
d
d
re
s
s
 t
o
 s
e
n
d
 

re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
) 

M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 r
e
p
a
ir
s
 t
o
 L
e
e
d
s
 

C
it
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il'
s
 s
it
e
 e
x
c
lu
d
in
g
 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 S
to
c
k
 i
n
 t
h
e
 t
ra
d
e
s
 o
f 

p
a
in
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 d
e
c
o
ra
ti
n
g
; 
d
ra
in
a
g
e
 /
 

d
ra
in
 c
le
a
ra
n
c
e
; 
g
u
tt
e
r 
c
le
a
n
in
g
; 

g
la
z
in
g
; 
lig
h
tn
in
g
 p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
; 

m
e
ta
lw
o
rk
, 
ro
o
fi
n
g
 a
n
d
 t
a
rm
a
c
d
a
m
 /
 

g
ro
u
n
d
w
o
rk
s
 

A
w
a
rd
 o
f 
C
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 

C
h
ie
f 
O
ff
ic
e
r,
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 

P
ro
p
e
rt
y
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

  

1
/1
2
/0
8
 

C
lie
n
t 
D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 

  

C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
A
w
a
rd
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

 
C
h
ie
f 
O
ff
ic
e
r,
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
ro
p
e
rt
y
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

  

R
e
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 o
f 
P
ro
p
e
rt
y
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

(E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
) 

T
o
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
 n
e
w
 s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

fo
r 
th
e
 P
ro
p
e
rt
y
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

S
e
rv
ic
e
, 
in
 l
in
e
 w
it
h
 r
e
c
e
n
t 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

to
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
tu
a
l 
a
n
d
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
. 

C
h
ie
f 
O
ff
ic
e
r 

(H
R
) 

  

1
/1
2
/0
8
 

S
ta
ff
 a
n
d
 T
U
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 s
ta
rt
e
d
 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
0
8
 

(i
n
fo
rm
a
l)
. 
F
o
rm
a
l 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p
e
ri
o
d
 

w
ill
 c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
 o
n
 

p
ro
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 

D
e
le
g
a
te
d
 D
e
c
is
io
n
 

re
p
o
rt
 (
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

e
n
d
 O
c
to
b
e
r)
. 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
w
ill
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 

T
U
s
 d
u
ri
n
g
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
. 
T
h
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
ill
 a
ls
o
 l
ia
s
e
 

w
it
h
 k
e
y
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 a
s
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
. 

D
e
le
g
a
te
d
 D
e
c
is
io
n
 

P
a
n
e
l 
R
e
p
o
rt
 

 

C
h
ie
f 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
(H
R
) 

n
e
il.
e
v
a
n
s
@
le
e
d
s
.g
o
v
.

u
k
 

 

Page 58



 
K

e
y
 D

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 M

a
k
e
r 

E
x
p
e
c
te

d
 

D
a
te

 o
f 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
  

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 

C
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 M

a
k
e
r 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

(T
o
 w
h
o
m
 

re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 

b
e
 m
a
d
e
 a
n
d
 e
m
a
il 

a
d
d
re
s
s
 t
o
 s
e
n
d
 

re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
) 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 R
e
c
o
rd
s
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

F
a
c
fi
lit
y
  
a
t 
W
e
s
tl
a
n
d
 R
o
a
d
. 

A
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
o
f 
re
le
a
s
e
 o
f 
£
7
4
5
,4
0
0
 

fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

F
u
n
d
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 c
o
n
v
e
rs
io
n
 o
f 
th
e
 

s
e
le
c
te
d
 W
e
s
tl
a
n
d
 R
o
a
d
 S
it
e
 i
n
to
 a
 

b
e
s
p
o
k
e
 r
e
c
o
rd
s
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

fa
c
ili
ty
. 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
 

(P
o
rt
fo
lio
 :
 

C
e
n
tr
a
l 
a
n
d
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
) 

 

3
/1
2
/0
8
 

T
h
e
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 c
a
s
e
 i
n
 

th
e
 a
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 o
f 
th
is
 

re
p
o
rt
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 u
p
o
n
 

w
id
e
ly
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 

a
u
th
o
ri
ty
, 
a
n
d
 h
a
s
 

g
a
in
e
d
 a
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
fr
o
m
 

A
s
s
e
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

G
ro
u
p
, 
a
n
d
 f
ro
m
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 L
e
a
d
e
rs
h
ip
 

T
e
a
m
. 
P
le
a
s
e
 s
e
e
 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
c
o
n
tr
o
l 

s
h
e
e
t 
fo
r 
fu
ll 
d
e
ta
ils
. 

T
h
e
 D
e
s
ig
n
 a
n
d
 C
o
s
t 

re
p
o
rt
 h
a
d
 b
e
e
n
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 o
n
 b
y
 t
h
e
 

P
ro
je
c
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

(D
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

R
e
c
o
rd
s
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t)
, 

P
ro
je
c
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
r 
fo
r 

th
e
 W
e
s
tl
a
n
d
 R
o
a
d
 

p
ro
je
c
t 
it
s
e
lf
, 
P
ro
je
c
t 

O
ff
ic
e
r 
(D
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 R
e
c
o
rd
s
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t)
, 
a
n
d
 

c
o
lle
a
g
u
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 D
e
s
ig
n
 

A
lli
a
n
c
e
, 
a
n
d
 w
it
h
in
 

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t.
  
 

T
h
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 t
o
 b
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 

to
 t
h
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 m
a
k
e
r 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 a
g
e
n
d
a
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
. 

 

J
a
m
e
s
 R
o
g
e
rs
, 

A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 
C
h
ie
f 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 (
P
la
n
n
in
g
, 

P
o
lic
y
 a
n
d
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t)
 

ja
m
e
s
.r
o
g
e
rs
@
le
e
d
s
.g

o
v
.u
k
 

 

Page 59



 
K

e
y
 D

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 M

a
k
e
r 

E
x
p
e
c
te

d
 

D
a
te

 o
f 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
  

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 

C
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 M

a
k
e
r 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

(T
o
 w
h
o
m
 

re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 

b
e
 m
a
d
e
 a
n
d
 e
m
a
il 

a
d
d
re
s
s
 t
o
 s
e
n
d
 

re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
) 

T
h
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
a
 n
e
w
 m
o
b
ile
 a
n
d
 

fi
x
e
d
 v
o
ic
e
 a
n
d
 d
a
ta
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 

T
h
e
 t
e
n
d
e
r 
is
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 b
e
in
g
 

a
d
v
e
rt
is
e
d
 a
n
d
 w
e
 a
im
 t
o
 b
e
 i
n
 

p
o
s
it
io
n
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 a
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 a
n
d
 

a
w
a
rd
 i
n
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
. 
T
h
e
 n
e
w
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
w
ill
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 f
o
r 

w
h
e
n
 t
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
w
it
h
 

O
ra
n
g
e
 e
x
p
ir
e
s
 i
n
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
. 

C
h
ie
f 
IC
T
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

  

2
/1
/0
9
 

   

T
e
n
d
e
r 
p
a
c
k
 /
 b
id
s
 

 
D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

  

L
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 s
ta
ff
in
g
 r
e
v
ie
w
 

T
o
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
 a
 r
e
v
is
e
d
 s
ta
ff
in
g
 

s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 f
o
r 
th
e
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
it
h
in
 s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
. 

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
, 
C
h
ie
f 

O
ff
ic
e
r 
(H
R
) 

  

2
/1
/0
9
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 h
a
s
 

ta
k
e
n
 p
la
c
e
 w
it
h
 s
ta
ff
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 

re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
s
. 

  

R
e
p
o
rt
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C
h
ie
f 

H
u
m
a
n
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

O
ff
ic
e
r 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 u
p
d
a
te
d
 

jo
b
 o
u
tl
in
e
s
. 

 

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

p
a
u
l.
b
ro
u
g
h
to
n
@
le
e
d
s
.

g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

C
o
n
s
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 v
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il'
s
 L
o
a
n
 A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
w
it
h
 

Y
o
rk
s
h
ir
e
 C
o
u
n
ty
 C
ri
c
k
e
t 
C
lu
b
 

T
o
 g
ra
n
t 
c
o
n
s
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 a
g
re
e
 

v
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 L
o
a
n
 

A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
w
it
h
 Y
o
rk
s
h
ir
e
 C
o
u
n
ty
 

C
ri
c
k
e
t 
C
lu
b
 p
u
rs
u
a
n
t 
to
 t
h
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 H
e
a
d
in
g
le
y
 

C
ri
c
k
e
t 
G
ro
u
n
d
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
 

(P
o
rt
fo
lio
 :
 

C
e
n
tr
a
l 
a
n
d
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
) 

 

1
4
/1
/0
9
 

T
h
e
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
C
e
n
tr
a
l 
a
n
d
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
. 
 

  

T
h
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 t
o
 b
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 

to
 t
h
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 m
a
k
e
r 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 a
g
e
n
d
a
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 

 

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

d
o
u
g
.m
e
e
s
o
n
@
le
e
d
s
.g

o
v
.u
k
 

 

Page 60



 
K

e
y
 D

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 M

a
k
e
r 

E
x
p
e
c
te

d
 

D
a
te

 o
f 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
  

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 

C
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 M

a
k
e
r 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

(T
o
 w
h
o
m
 

re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 

b
e
 m
a
d
e
 a
n
d
 e
m
a
il 

a
d
d
re
s
s
 t
o
 s
e
n
d
 

re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
) 

3
rd
 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

In
 n
o
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
p
o
s
it
io
n
 a
ft
e
r 

n
in
e
 m
o
n
th
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 a
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 a
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

tr
e
a
tm
e
n
t 
o
f 
a
n
y
 v
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
. 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
 

(P
o
rt
fo
lio
:C
e
n
tr
a
l 

a
n
d
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
) 

 

1
3
/2
/0
9
 

   

T
h
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 t
o
 b
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 

to
 t
h
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 m
a
k
e
r 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 a
g
e
n
d
a
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 

 

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

  

R
e
n
e
w
a
l 
o
f 
L
ia
b
ili
ty
 I
n
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 

C
o
v
e
r 
w
it
h
 e
ff
e
c
t 
fr
o
m
 1
s
t 
A
p
ri
l 

2
0
0
9
 

T
o
 p
la
c
e
 t
h
e
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
lia
b
ili
ty
 

in
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 c
o
v
e
r 
w
it
h
 a
n
 i
n
s
u
re
r 

s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 a
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t.
 

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

  

4
/3
/0
9
 

N
o
n
e
 

  

L
ia
b
ili
ty
 I
n
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 T
e
n
d
e
r 

D
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 

 

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

ro
b
e
rt
.d
a
v
is
o
n
@
le
e
d
s
.

g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

 

Page 61



  N
O

T
E

S
 

 K
e
y
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
  
a
re
 t
h
o
s
e
 e
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
: 

•
 
w
h
ic
h
 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 i
n
c
u
rr
in
g
 e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 o
r 
m
a
k
in
g
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 o
v
e
r 
£
2
5
0
,0
0
0
 p
e
r 
a
n
n
u
m
, 
o
r 

•
 
a
re
 l
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
e
ff
e
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 l
iv
in
g
 o
r 
w
o
rk
in
g
 i
n
 a
n
 a
re
a
 c
o
m
p
ri
s
in
g
 t
w
o
 o
r 
m
o
re
 w
a
rd
s
 

 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B

o
a
rd

 P
o
rt

fo
li
o
s
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 M

e
m

b
e
r 

 

C
e
n
tr
a
l 
a
n
d
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
R
ic
h
a
rd
 B
re
tt
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
A
n
d
re
w
 C
a
rt
e
r 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
S
te
v
e
 S
m
it
h
 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 a
n
d
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
J
o
h
n
 L
e
s
lie
 C
a
rt
e
r 

L
e
is
u
re
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
J
o
h
n
 P
ro
c
te
r 

C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
  

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
S
te
w
a
rt
 G
o
lt
o
n
 

L
e
a
rn
in
g
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
R
ic
h
a
rd
 H
a
rk
e
r 

A
d
u
lt
 H
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
P
e
te
r 
H
a
rr
a
n
d
 

L
e
a
d
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 L
a
b
o
u
r 
G
ro
u
p
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
K
e
it
h
 W
a
k
e
fi
e
ld
 

L
e
a
d
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 M
o
rl
e
y
 B
o
ro
u
g
h
 

In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
G
ro
u
p
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
R
o
b
e
rt
 F
in
n
ig
a
n
 

A
d
v
is
o
ry
 M
e
m
b
e
r 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
J
u
d
it
h
 B
la
k
e
 

 In
 c
a
s
e
s
 w
h
e
re
 K
e
y
 D
e
c
is
io
n
s
 t
o
 b
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 b
y
 t
h
e
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
 a
re
 n
o
t 
in
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 P
la
n
, 
5
 d
a
y
s
 n
o
ti
c
e
 o
f 
th
e
 i
n
te
n
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 s
u
c
h
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 g
iv
e
n
 b
y
 w
a
y
 o
f 
th
e
 a
g
e
n
d
a
 f
o
r 
th
e
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
. 
 

Page 62


	Agenda
	6 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	7 Budget Strategy 2009/10
	8 Council Business Plan Performance Report for Quarter 2 2008/09
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4
	Appendix 5
	Appendix 6

	9 Work Programme, Executive Board Minutes and Forward Plan of Key Decisions
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3


